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PROSPECTUS (NOT COMPLETE)
ISSUED FEBRUARY 7, 2002

4,250,000 Shares

CACI

Common Stock

CACI International Inc is offering 4,250,000 shaoéséts common stock in a firmly underwritten ofifey.

Our common stock is traded on the Nasdaqg Natioraakbt under the symbol “CACI.” The last reportetegarice of our common stock
on the Nasdaq National Market on February 6, 2082 $89.32 per share.

Investing in our common stock involves a high degeeof risk. See “Risk Factors” beginning on page 6.

Per Share Total
Offering Price $ $
Discounts and Commissions to Underwrit $ $
Offering Proceeds to CACI International | $ $

Neither the Securities and Exchange Commissiorangistate securities commission has approved appisved of these securities, or
determined if this prospectus is truthful or contgleAny representation to the contrary is a crahoffense.

CACI International Inc has granted the underwritbisright to purchase up to an additional 637 &tres of common stock to cover .
overallotments. The underwriters can exercise thistrgtany time within thirty days after the offeririthe underwriters expect to deliver-
shares of common stock to investors on ~ 2002.

Joint Book-Running Managers

Banc of America Securities LLC Raymond James

U.S. Bancorp Piper Jaffray
Legg Mason Wood Walker

Incorporated

, 2002

The information in this prospectus is not complete and may be changed. We may not sell these securities until the registration
statement filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission is effective. This prospectus is not an offer to sell these securities,
and we are not soliciting an offer to buy these securities in any state where the offer or sale is not permitted.
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You should rely on the information contained irsthrospectus. We have not, and the underwriters hat/ authorized any other
person to provide you with different informatiohahyone provides you with different or inconsidteriormation, you should not rely on it.
We are not, and the underwriters are not, makingften to sell these securities in any jurisdictishere their offer or sale is not permitted.
You should assume that the information appearirtgigiprospectus is accurate only as of the dath@ifront cover of this prospectus,
regardless of the time of delivery of this prospsatr of any sale of our common stock. Our busirf@ssncial condition, results of operations
and prospects may have changed since the datatedion the front cover of this prospectus.

“Digital Systems International Corporation,” “DSI@hd “XEN Corporation” are our registered servicarks in the United States.
“Vision & Solution Center” and “RENovate” are owrsice marks. This prospectus also contains tradesyand service marks of other
entities.
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PROSPECTUS SUMMARY

You should read the following summary together #ithmore detailed information regarding our compamd the common stock
being sold in this offering and our consolidatethficial statements and their related notes appeggeisewhere in this prospectus. Unless we
indicate otherwise, all information in this prospes assumes that the underwriters do not exerbisie tver-allotment option.

CACI INTERNATIONAL INC

We are a leading provider of information technolsgyvices and solutions focusing primarily on ULh&ional defense, intelligence
and civilian agencies. Our markets also includeesaad local governments, commercial enterprisdSa@meign governments. Our business
was founded in 1962, based on computer simulatiohrtology. We have strategically diversified ousibass within the growing information
technology and network systems markets. Our seoffegings include:

Managed Network Services We develop systems architecture and engineegsigds and provide detailed network architectures,
systems specifications and implementation guidsltheough all phases of the network life cycle.

Systems Integratior- We combine new technologies with existing systantsgrate hardware, software and networks from ipla
sources and integrate previously separate systgmsingle systems. Many of our systems integragiforts include web enabling existing
systems and business processes.

Engineering Services- Our engineering services include designing, dgual and integrating new systems, reverse engimger
older systems and performance testing of systesngell as a range of logistics and supply chainagament functions. We provide*CSR
services, or command, control, communications, agarg, intelligence surveillance and reconnaissaroéces, in support of combat forces,
as well as weapons, electronic signals and segstaras engineering.

Knowledge Management We design, furnish and operate web-based andt(derver enterprise-wide systems that incorporate
advanced technologies in the areas of databasege@eat, imaging, document management, workflowkvwoocess management and
groupware.

We believe our success has resulted from our apahilities: comprehensive technical skills, detigeato client satisfaction, and
our experienced personnel and management teameliverdour services through a highly skilled wonlkde of approximately 5,500
employees, of whom more than 4,000 have secueigrahces with the U.S. government.

We have long-standing contractual relationship$ wiainy of our clients, and have supported manheftfor 12 years or more in
part because we provide rapid turnaround solutorisquick reaction support. We operate 90 officebfacilities throughout the United
States and the United Kingdom. For our managedor&teervices clients we operate approximately 3/&&ork connection sites
throughout the world, including numerous remotessit
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We provide a broad range of comprehensive infomnatichnology solutions by adapting emerging tettdgies and leveraging our
strengths in areas such as:

* network systems design, integration and sug * intelligence analysis and support syste

* information assurance and secu e supply chain management and logis

* software development and integrat » litigation support systems and servi

* rapid hardware and software prototyp * reengineering and systems migrat

* modeling and simulatio * financial management and HR syste

* data warehousing and data min * gec-demographic and customer data anal

To augment our service offerings, we created osioviiand Solution Center, an advanced technicditfaor simulating and
modeling complex networks and systems that enatikests to test alternative solutions before invegsignificant time and money.

Over the last four fiscal years, we have increamgdevenue at a compound annual growth rate, dBR Aof 21% through focused
internal initiatives and a disciplined program ofjaisitions. For the fiscal year ended June 3012G@ generated revenue of $557.9 million
and for the six months ended December 31, 200hemerated revenue of $308.1 million. We derived 8%ur revenue in fiscal 2001 from
federal government contracts.

OUR OPPORTUNITY WITHIN THE FEDERAL GOVERNMENT MARKE T

The federal government is the largest buyer ofrinftion technology services in the world. The psmubfederal budget for fiscal
2003 projects an increase in government spendingfiormation technology from $32.9 billion in 198® an estimated $52.1 billion in 2003,
representing a CAGR of 17%. According to the curegtministration, the increase in information temlbgy spending in the proposed budget
will be used to improve the government’s overalfpenance and support three key priorities: hometlsecurity, the war on terrorism and
economic growth. Several significant industry treatid growth drivers include:

Increased spending on national defense, intelligence and homeland security . The change in presidential administrations aed#tent
terrorist incidents in the U.S. have stimulateditoloal funding for national defense, intelligerened homeland security.

Ongoing modernization of federal information technology systems . The federal government has invested heavilyngelaproprietary
information systems and special purpose communmwitatinetworks. The need to modernize these outdgttdms and networks is increasing
demand for information technology services.

Increasing government reliance on outsourcing . Declining in-house technology expertise is makingdreasingly difficult for many
government agencies to efficiently manage the desigvelopment, implementation, use and suppdrtfofmation and network technology,
and agencies are increasingly relying on serviogigers to develop the complex solutions they nequi

2
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OUR CAPABILITIES AND DISTINCTIONS

We believe we are well positioned to meet the englvequirements of the information technology smrs marketplace because we
possess several important business strengthsdinglthe following:

Comprehensive technical skills. We possess comprehensive technical skills thavaito deliver a wide array of information tecromy
services to our clients. Our technical skill basgdudes systems engineering and integration, dsg¢adb@sign and development, network
engineering and management, hardware and softwaretyping, software development, and modeling sintlilation. To support the
delivery of these services, we rely on over 1,200rmation technology specialists, 765 engineeand logistics specialists, 523 network
specialists, 410 functional scientific analysts 82dsignals analysts. In addition, our 310 progeand project managers bring technical and
management experience across our service offerings.

Extensive client experience and commitment to client satisfaction. Since our founding 40 years ago, we have stre$geiiniportance of
client satisfaction. As a result, we have been @bhaaintain long-term relationships with our lasgelients and develop an in-depth
understanding of their critical missions, businegthods and information technology systems. Ouwaticgiships with the U.S. Army
Communications and Electronics Command, the U.SyMéilitary Sealift Command, the U.S. Army Chief 8faff, the Department of
Justice, and the U.S. Naval Supply Systems Comrawd endured over 12 years.

Highly qualified personnel and management team. We continue to emphasize the importance of attrgand retaining the most highly
qualified personnel in our industry. As of Janu28y 2002, 1,648 of our employees held Secret abeasaand 1,100 held Top Secret
clearances. Of these employees, 325 also heldtBenSompartmented Information clearances. In @iditour senior management team has
an average of 27 years of industry-related expeeeimcluding as military officers and agency exe@s, and their knowledge, experience,
reputations and contacts are invaluable to theesscand growth of our company.

OUR GROWTH STRATEGY

Our goal is to continue our history as a leadingvjater of information technology services and sohs to the federal government
and other clients. Our strategy to reach that fgmalses on the following major elements:

Sustain and expand our core business . We seek to expand our core business by winningeimpeted contracts and cross-selling to
existing clients. We believe our deep understandinaur client’s objectives, business processestatithical requirements will help us
achieve this goal. During the period from fisca®@Zhrough December 31, 2001, we won approxim&é® (based on dollar value) of all
competitively awarded renewals of contracts forakhive were the incumbent supplier.

Target opportunities and win new business in high-growth areas . We identify the most attractive opportunitieshigh-growth areas
such as managed network services, information assarand national intelligence.We identify and tiy@ew opportunities that either
represent significant revenue potential or posstategic significance. We compete for new busigdsighlighting our record of successful
past performance and our technology solutions waiehtailored to client requirements.

Continue to pursue strategic acquisitions . We intend to continue to pursue strategic acqorsitito expand our service offerings, increase
our base of federal government clients and deepenetationships with existing clients. Since 1982, have successfully acquired and
integrated 18 businesses which have brought usieogrowth areas such as managed network seamzethe intelligence community.

Our principal executive offices are located at 1Nadth Glebe Road, Arlington, Virginia 22201 and ¢elephone number is (703)
841-7800. Our web site addressvisw.caci.com The information on our web site is not incorpechby reference into this prospectus.
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THE OFFERING

Common stock offered by CA( 4,250,000 share
Common stock to be outstanding after the offe 27,746,194 share
Use of proceeds We intend to use approximately $69.8 million toagp

indebtedness, approximately $15.0 million for cogént and
deferred payments for prior acquisitions, and #raainder for
working capital and other general corporate purposeluding
possible acquisition:

Nasdaq National Market symb CACI

The number of shares of common stock to be outstgradter this offering is based on the numbertafres outstanding as of
December 31, 2001. This number does not include:

e options outstanding at December 31, 2001 to puscBak30,396 shares of common s

e an additional 374,790 shares of common stock tleahawe reserved for grant under our stock optianghfter December 31,
2001
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SUMMARY CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA

(dollars in thousands, except per share data)

We derived the following summary consolidated ficiahdata from our audited financial statementsofiar fiscal years ended June
30, 1999, 2000 and 2001 and from our unauditedhiiz statements for the six months ended Dece®ibe2000 and 2001. We restated our
income statement data to reflect our dispositiotwaf businesses. We did not restate our balancat sla¢a to reflect these dispositions. You
should read this information in conjunction with &Magement’s Discussion and Analysis of Financialditmn and Results of Operations”
elsewhere in this prospectus and our financiaéstahts and the related notes.

The as adjusted column in the consolidated balaheet data below gives effect to the sale of tBB3}000 shares of common stock
we are offering at an assumed public offering pof839.32 per share (based on the February 6, @@8thg price), after deducting the
estimated underwriting discounts and commissiomkestimated offering expenses payable by us aed &fiplication of our net proceeds of
the offering to repay approximately $69.8 millionindebtedness.

Six months ended Decembe

Year ended June 30, 31,
1999 2000 2001 2000 2001
Income statement data:
Revenue $427,42. $484,54! $557,89( $258,61¢  $308,14:
Operating expense 400,29( 451,92¢ 520,53! 242,29: 284,29°
Income from operatior 27,31 32,61¢ 37,35¢ 16,32« 23,84
Income from continuing operatiol 14,317 17,89: 20,76¢ 8,99: 14,02¢
Income (loss) from discontinued operatic (147) (613) 9) 12t (209)
Gain (loss) on disposal on discontinued operat — 21,13¢ 1,54t — (1,250
Net income $ 14,17( $ 38,41 $ 22,30: $ 9,11t  $ 12,57(
L] L] L] L] L]

Earnings per common and common share equivalent:
Basic:

Income from continuing operatiol $ 0.6¢ $ 0.7¢ $ 0.9z $ 04C $ 0.6C

Net income 0.6t 1.7C 0.9¢ 0.41 0.54
Average shares outstandi 21,79: 22,62( 22,63¢ 22,59¢ 23,20«
Diluted:

Income from continuing operatiol $ 0.64 $ 0.77 $ 0.9 $ 03¢ $ 05¢

Net income 0.6: 1.6¢€ 0.97 0.4C 0.5z
Average shares and equivalent shares outstal 22,44( 23,15¢ 23,05¢ 22,91¢ 23,97¢

December 31, 2001

Actual As adjusted
Balance sheet data
Working capital $97,82¢ $ 167,48:
Total asset 335,71 408,86¢
Long-term obligations 81,65 11,85¢
Shareholder equity 185,65¢ 353,95

All information in this prospectus gives effecbto 2-for-1 stock split effected in the form of a dividendmé share of common stock for e
share of common stock outstanding on November(8il,.2
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RISK FACTORS

You should consider carefully the risks describeldw before you decide to buy our common stockriske and uncertainties
described below are not the only ones we facenyfdad the following risks actually occur, our busss, financial condition or results of
operations would likely suffer. In that case, trealing price of our common stock could fall, andiynay lose all or part of the money you
paid to buy our common stoc

Risks Related to Contracting with the Federal Gover  nment

We depend on contracts with the federal government for a substantial majority of our revenue, and our business could
be seriously harmed if the government ceased doing business with us.

We derived 85.1% of our total revenue in fiscal 2@dd 89.4% of our total revenue in the six moetided December 31, 2001
from federal government contracts, either as a@ontractor or a subcontractor. We derived 58.8%uptotal revenue in fiscal 2001 and
63.5% of our total revenue in the six months eridedember 31, 2001 from contracts with agencieb@fiepartment of Defense. We expect
that federal government contracts will continudéathe primary source of our revenue for the farabke future. If we were suspended or
debarred from contracting with the federal governtigenerally, or with any significant agency in theelligence community or the
Department of Defense, or if our reputation ortieteship with government agencies were impairedf thre government otherwise ceased
doing business with us or significantly decreasedamount of business it does with us, our busjmesspects, financial condition and
operating results could be seriously harmed.

Our business could be adversely affected by changes in budgetary priorities of the federal government.

Because we derive a substantial majority of ouenee from contracts with the federal governmentbeleve that the success and
development of our business will continue to depemaur successful participation in federal govegntrcontract programs. Changes in
federal government budgetary priorities could diyeaffect our financial performance. A significashécline in government expenditures, or a
shift of expenditures away from programs that wgpsut or a change in federal government contragiligies, could cause federal
government agencies to reduce their purchases gpdémacts, to exercise their right to terminatetcacts at any time without penalty or not
to exercise options to renew contracts. Any sutio@e could seriously harm our business, prospéngmcial condition or operating results.
Among the factors that could seriously affect addral government contracting business are:

* changes in federal government programs or requinés,
* budgetary priorities limiting or delaying federalvggrnment spending generally, or specific departmienagencies in

particular, and changes in fiscal policies or ala@ funding, including potential governmental slomtns (such as that which
occurred during the governm’s 1996 fiscal year’

e anincrease in setsides for small businesses that could result innability to compete directly for prime contractsc

* curtailment of the federal governmemntise of technology solutions firr

6
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Our federal government contracts may be terminated by the government at any time, and if we do notrep  lace them, our
operating results may be harmed.

We derive substantially all of our revenue fromdiad government contracts that typically span anmare base years and one or
more option years. The option periods typicallyeomore than half of the contract’s potential dioratFederal government agencies
generally have the right not to exercise theseoapgtieriods. In addition, our contracts typicallgatontain provisions permitting a
government client to terminate the contract focdsvenience. A decision not to exercise optiomnogisror to terminate contracts could result
in significant revenue shortfalls.

Federal government contracts contain numerous provi sions that are unfavorable to us.

Federal government contracts contain provisionsaaadubject to laws and regulations that givegtheernment rights and remedi
some of which are not typically found in commerdahtracts, including allowing the government to:

* cancel multiyear contracts and related orders if funds for remttperformance for any subsequent year becomeilable
* claim rights in systems and software developedd;

e suspend or debar us from doing business with ttherét government or with a governmental agencypsadines and penalti
and subject us to criminal prosecution; i

e control or prohibit the export of our data and temlogy

If the government terminates a contract for coneeog, we may recover only our incurred or committests, settlement expenses
and profit on work completed prior to the termipatilf the government terminates a contract foadif we may be unable to recover even
those amounts, and instead may be liable for exaesds incurred by the government in procuring limeie=d items and services from anot
source. Depending on the value of a contract, srchination could seriously harm our financial citieth and results of operations. As is
common with government contractors, we have expeeé and continue to experience occasional perfocengssues under certain of our
contracts. Certain contracts also contain orgaioizak conflict of interest clauses that limit ounilaty to compete for certain related follow-on
contracts. For example, when we work on the designparticular system, we may be precluded frommeting for the contract to install tf
system.

If we fail to establish and maintain important rela  tionships with government entities and agencies, ou r ability to
successfully bid for new business may be adversely affected.

To facilitate our ability to prepare bids for newsiness, we rely in part on establishing and maiintg relationships with officials ¢
various government entities and agencies. Theagarships enable us to provide informal input addice to government entities and
agencies prior to the development of a formal Wig. may be unable to successfully maintain ourigglahips with government entities and
agencies, and any failure to do so may adversébgtadur ability to bid successfully for new busise

We derive significant revenue from contracts andta sk orders awarded through a competitive bidding pro cess. If we are
unable to consistently win new awards over any exte nded period, our business and prospects will be adv ersely affected.

Substantially all of our contracts and task ordeith the federal government are awarded througbnapetitive bidding process. We
expect that much of the business that we will Sed¢ke foreseeable future will

7
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continue to be awarded through competitive biddiRegcently, members of Congress and administrafiticials have proposed changes to
procurement process intended to increase compettitong suppliers to the federal government. Budggtressures and reforms in the
procurement process have caused many federal goeetrclients to increasingly purchase goods andcger through indefinite
delivery/indefinite quantity, or ID/IQ, contract8eneral Services Administration contracts, or G8Atacts, and other government-wide
acquisition contracts, or GWAC contracts. Thesdreats, some of which are awarded to multiple @mttrs, have increased competition
pricing pressure, requiring that we make sustapust-award efforts to realize revenue under each santract. Moreover, even if we are
highly qualified to work on a particular new comtrave might not be awarded business because dédseal government’s policy and
practice of maintaining a diverse contracting base.

This competitive bidding process presents a nurabgsks, including the following:

* we bid on programs before the completion of thesidn, which may result in unforeseen technologidéitulties and cost
overruns;

* we expend substantial cost and managerial time#Hiodt to prepare bids and proposals for contrtwis we may not wil

* we may be unable to estimate accurately the regeumad cost structure that will be required toiserany contract we win;
and

* we may encounter expense and delay if our compefitimtest or challenge awards of contracts tomu®mpetitive bidding,
and any such protest or challenge could resuhiérré¢submission of bids on modified specificatiamrsn the termination,
reduction or modification of the awarded contr:

If we are unable to win particular contracts, weyrba foreclosed from providing to clients servitest are purchased under those
contracts for a number of years. If we are unableonsistently win new contract awards over angrdéd period, our business and prospects
will be adversely affected. In addition, upon thxpieation of a contract, if the client requiresthar services of the type provided by the
contract, there is frequently a competitive retiddprocess. There can be no assurance that weviwiliny particular bid, or that we will be
able to replace business lost upon expiration orptetion of a contract, and the termination or momwal of any of our significant contracts
could harm our operating results.

Our business may suffer if we or our employees are unable to obtain the security clearances or other q ualifications we
and they need to perform services for our clients.

Many of our federal government contracts requiréousave security clearances and employ personitielspecified levels of
education, work experience and security clearamkeef January 1, 2002, approximately 4,100, or 78%our U.S. employees held security
clearances that permitted them to work on claskifiatters. Among those with security clearancégl8 held Secret clearances and 1,100
held Top Secret clearances. Of these employeesal8@%eld more difficult-to-obtain Sensitive Comtpgented Information clearances.
Depending on the level of clearance, security eleees can be difficult and time-consuming to obtHiwe or our employees lose or are
unable to obtain necessary security clearancemayenot be able to win new business and our egigliients could terminate their contracts
with us or decide not to renew them. To the extentannot obtain or maintain the required secutitarances for our employees working on
a particular contract, we may not derive the reeesmticipated from the contract, which could sesiginarm our operating results.
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We must comply with a variety of laws and regulatio ns, and our failure to comply could harm our operat ing results.

We must observe laws and regulations relatingeddimation, administration and performance of fatlgovernment contracts
which affect how we do business with our clientd aray impose added costs on our business. For dgathe Federal Acquisition
Regulation and the industrial security regulatiohthe Department of Defense and related laws declrovisions that:

e allow our federal government clients to terminat@at renew our contracts if we come under fora@gmership, control or
influence;

* require us to disclose and certify cost and pridata in connection with contract negotiations;
* require us to prevent unauthorized access to filedgsnformation

Ouir failure to comply with these or other laws aedulations could result in contract terminatiasd of security clearances,
suspension or debarment from contracting with gaefal government, civil fines and damages andicahprosecution and penalties, any of
which could have a material adverse effect on osiress.

The federal government may reform its procurement o r other practices in a manner adverse to us.

The federal government may reform its procuremeattres or adopt new contracting rules and regulat such as cost accounting
standards. It could also adopt new contracting odshelating to GSA contracts or other governmeidewontracts, or adopt new socio-
economic requirements. These changes could impailility to obtain new contracts or win re-comgzetontracts. Any new contracting
methods could be costly or administratively difftdior us to satisfy, and, as a result could hatmaperating results.

Restrictions on or other changes to the federal gov ernment’s use of service contracts may harm our ope rating results.

We derive a significant amount of revenue from eereontracts with the federal government. The govent may face restrictions
from new legislation, regulations or governmentounpressures, on the nature and amount of sertfieagovernment may obtain from priv
contractors. For example, the Truthfulness, Respiitys and Accountability in Contracting Act, proged in 2001, would have limited and
severely delayed the government’s ability to useape service contractors. Although this proposaswot enacted, it or similar legislation
could be proposed at any time. Any reduction ingbreernment use of private contractors to provide federaltises would adversely impe
our business.

Our contracts and administrative processes and syst ems are subject to audits and cost adjustments by t he federal
government, which could reduce our revenue, disrupt our business or otherwise adversely affect our res ults of
operations.

Federal government agencies, including the Def@usgract Audit Agency, or the DCAA, routinely auditd investigate
government contracts and government contractorsiridtrative processes and systems. These agareiesv our performance on contracts,
pricing practices, cost structure and compliandé applicable laws, regulations and standards. H&yreview our compliance with
government regulations and policies and the adggofacur internal control systems and policiesjuding our purchasing, property,
estimating, compensation and management informagistems. Any costs found to be improperly allogdtea specific contract will not be
reimbursed, and any such costs already reimbursest lne refunded.
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Moreover, if any of the administrative processes systems are found not to comply with requirememésmay be subjected to increased
government scrutiny and approval that could delagtberwise adversely affect our ability to compfeteor perform contracts. Therefore, an
unfavorable outcome to an audit by DCAA or anoti@rernment agency could materially affect our catitige position and result in a
substantial adjustment to our revenues. If a gawernt investigation uncovers improper or illegahates, we may be subject to civil and
criminal penalties and administrative sanctionsluding termination of contracts, forfeitures obfits, suspension of payments, fines and
suspension or debarment from doing business wélietieral government. In addition, we could susfenious reputational harm if allegations
of impropriety were made against us.

Failure to maintain strong relationships with other contractors could result in a decline in our reven ue.

We derived 12.1% of our total revenue in fiscal 2@dd 8.7% of our total revenue in the six montideel December 31, 2001 from
contracts in which we acted as a subcontractaroon feaming arrangements in which we and otheraoturs bid on particular contracts or
programs. As a subcontractor or teammate, we tdtencontrol over fulfillment of a contract, andgrgerformance on the contract could
tarnish our reputation, even when we perform asired. We expect to continue to depend on relatigmsswith other contractors for a porti
of our revenue in the foreseeable future. Moreower revenue and operating results could be adyeaffected if any prime contractor or
teammate chose to offer directly to the client m&w of the type that we provide or if they teanthvather companies to provide those
services.

We may not receive the full amounts authorized unde  r the contracts included in our backlog, which coul d reduce our
revenue in future periods.

Our backlog consists of funded backlog, which isdshon amounts actually obligated by a client fympent of goods and services,
and unfunded backlog, which is based upon managésrestimate of the future potential of our exigttontracts and task orders, including
options, to generate revenue. Our backlog mayesatltin actual revenue in any particular periachtaall.

The maximum contract value specified under a gawent contract or task order awarded to us is ncessarily indicative of the
revenues that we will realize under that controt.example, we derive a substantial portion ofrewenue from government contracts in
which we are not the sole provider, meaning thatgtbvernment could turn to other companies tolfdiffe contract. We also derive revenues
from ID/IQ contracts, which do not require the gowaent to purchase a material amount of goodsreicgs under the contract.

Without additional Congressional appropriations, so me of the contracts included in our backlog will re main unfunded
which could significantly harm our prospects.

Although many of our federal government contraetfuire performance over a period of years, Congrften appropriates funds 1
these contracts for only one year at a time. Assalt, our contracts typically are only partialiynfied at any point during their term, and all or
some of the work intended to be performed undecdmracts will remain unfunded pending subseq@amgressional appropriations and the
obligation of additional funds to the contract hg {procuring agency. Nevertheless, we estimatstwane of the contract values, including
values based on the assumed exercise of opticatieto these contracts, in calculating the amofiour backlog. Because we may not
receive the full amount we expect under a contaatestimate of our backlog may be inaccurate.
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Employee misconduct, including security breaches, c ould result in the loss of clients and our suspensi on or disbarment
from contracting with the federal government.

We may be unable to prevent our employees fromgingan misconduct, fraud or other improper actéstthat could adversely
affect our business and reputation. Misconductdmdlude the failure to comply with federal goverent procurement regulations,
regulations regarding the protection of classifiddrmation and legislation regarding the pricirfdabor and other costs in government
contracts. Many of the systems we develop invole@aging and protecting information involved in oatl security and other sensitive
government functions. A security breach in onehekt systems could prevent us from having accessctocritically sensitive systems. Ot
examples of employee misconduct could include tarel fraud and violations of the Anti-Kickback AGhe precautions we take to prevent
and detect this activity may not be effective, ardcould face unknown risks or losses. As a resfudimployee misconduct, we could face
fines and penalties, loss of security clearancesaisgension or debarment from contracting withfélderal government, which would
materially harm our business.

Risks Related to Our Business

Our failure to attract and retain qualified employe  es, including our senior management team, may adver  sely affect our
business.

Our continued success depends to a substantiadelegrour ability to recruit and retain the techicskilled personnel we need to
serve our clients effectively. Our business invelttee development of tailored solutions for ouerds, a process that relies heavily upon the
expertise and services of our employees. Accordjrglr employees are our most valuable resourcemp@ttion for skilled personnel in the
information technology services industry is interesed technology service companies often experibigteattrition among their skilled
employees. There is a shortage of people capalfikiraj these positions and they are likely to m@ma limited resource for the foreseeable
future. Recruiting and training these personneliiregsubstantial resources. Our failure to attaat retain technical personnel could increase
our costs of performing our contractual obligatiorsluce our ability to efficiently satisfy ouretits’ needs, limit our ability to win new
business and constrain our future growth.

In addition to attracting and retaining qualifiethnical personnel, we believe that our succedslefiend on the continued
employment of our senior management team and ilityalb generate new business and execute progatsessfully. Our senior managen
team is very important to our business becaus@patseputations and individual business relatigrshre a critical element of obtaining ¢
maintaining client engagements in our industrytipalarly with agencies performing classified ogemas. The loss of any of our senior
executives could cause us to lose client relatipsstr new business opportunities, which couldogesly harm our business. Although we
have an employment agreement with our ChairmarCinef Executive Officer that automatically renews éneyear periods, that agreem:
does not ensure that he will remain with us.

Our markets are highly competitive, and many of the companies we compete against have substantially gr  eater
resources.

The markets in which we operate include a largebemof participants and are highly competitive. Maff our competitors may
compete more effectively than we can because treelaeger, better financed and better known corgsatiian we are. In order to stay
competitive in our industry, we must also keep paite changing technologies and client preferentfage are unable to differentiate our
services from those of our competitors, our revanag decline. In addition, our competitors havalelished relationships among themselves
or with third parties to increase their abilityaddress client needs. As a result, new competitoatliances among competitors may emerge
and compete more effectively than we can. Theatsis a significant industry trend towards consdiatg which may result in the emergence
of companies who are better able to compete agasst
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Our quarterly revenue and operating results could b e volatile.

Our quarterly revenue and operating results mastilite significantly and unpredictably in the fetuin particular, if the federal
government does not adopt, or delays adoption lofidget for each fiscal year beginning on Octohen fails to pass a continuing resoluti
federal agencies may be forced to suspend ouramiatand delay the award of new and follow-on @mi$rand orders due to a lack of
funding. Further, the rate at which the federalegoment procures technology may be negatively &ftefollowing changes in presidential
administrations and senior government officialsefBfiore, period-to-period comparisons of our opegatesults may not be a good indication
of our future performance. Our quarterly operatiesults may not meet the expectations of secuatiadysts or investors, which in turn may
have an adverse effect on the market price of ommeon stock. Our quarterly operating results mag 8uctuate due to impairment of
goodwill charges required by recent changes inatiiing standards.

We may lose money or generate less than anticipated profits if we do not accurately estimate the cost of an engagement
which is conducted on a fixed-price basis.

We perform a portion of our engagements on a fpede basis. We derived 19.3% of our total reveinuescal 2001 and 21.0% of
our total revenue in the six months ended DecerdbeP001 from fixed-price contracts. Fixed pricatracts require us to price our contracts
by predicting our expenditures in advance. In aoldjtsome of our engagements obligate us to pramdming maintenance and other
supporting or ancillary services on a fixgdee basis or with limitations on our ability tacrease prices. Many of our engagements are al
a time-and-material basis. While these types ofrects are generally subject to less uncertairday fixed-price contracts, to the extent that
our actual labor costs are higher than the contedes, we can lose money on the contract.

When making proposals for engagements on a fixexd jpasis, we rely on our estimates of costs anuhgj for completing the
projects. These estimates reflect our best judgmagyarding our capability to complete the taskcigfitly. Any increased or unexpected costs
or unanticipated delays in connection with the geriance of fixed-price contracts, including delagssed by factors outside our control,
could make these contracts less profitable or ditplbde. From time to time, unexpected costs anahtinipated delays have caused us to
incur losses on fixed-price contracts, primarilyconnection with state government clients. On cagasions, these losses have been
significant.

Systems failures may disrupt our business and have an adverse effect on our results of operations.

Any systems failures, including network, softwaréhardware failures, whether caused by us, a {héndy service provider,
unauthorized intruders and hackers, computer \vérusatural disasters, power shortages or terrattistks, could cause loss of data,
interruptions or delays in our business or thadwfclients. In addition, the failure or disruptiohour mail, communications or utilities could
cause us to interrupt or suspend our operationgh@rwise harm our business. Our property and basimterruption insurance may be
inadequate to compensate us for all losses thatomayr as a result of any system or operationhlraor disruption.

The systems and networks that we maintain for bents, although highly redundant in their desigoyld also fail. If a system or
network we maintain were to fail or experience ggninterruptions, we might experience loss of rexeor face claims for damages or
contract termination. Our errors and omissionslitginsurance may be inadequate to compensaterws!l the damages that we might incur.

12



Table of Contents

We may have difficulty identifying and executing ac quisitions on favorable terms and therefore may gro w at slower than
anticipated rates.

One of our key growth strategies has been to seddgipursue acquisitions. Since 1992, we have meduand integrated 18
acquisitions. Through acquisitions, we have expdmile base of federal government clients, incredisedange of solutions we offer to our
clients and deepened our penetration of existimyptd. We may encounter difficulty identifying aedecuting suitable acquisitions. Without
acquisitions, we may not grow as rapidly as theketagxpects, which could adversely affect our sfmike. We may encounter other risks in
executing our acquisition strategy, including:

* increased competition for acquisitions may increhsecosts of our acquisitiol

e our failure to discover material liabilities duritige due diligence process, including the faildrpraor owners of any acquired
businesses or their employees to comply with appleclaws or regulations, such as the Federal Aitpri Regulation and
health, safety and environmental laws, or thelufaito fulfill their contractual obligations toaHederal government or other
customers; an

* acquisition financing may not be available on readde terms or at a

We may have difficulty integrating the operations o f any companies we acquire, which may adversely aff  ect our results
of operations.

The success of our acquisition strategy will depgpah our ability to continue to successfully intgg any businesses we may
acquire in the future. The integration of theseitesses into our operations may result in unforesperating difficulties, absorb significant
management attention and require significant firdmesources that would otherwise be availableierongoing development of our
business. These integration difficulties include ititegration of personnel with disparate busimegkgrounds, the transition to new
information systems, coordination of geographicdilspersed organizations, loss of key employeegqgfired companies, and reconciliation
of different corporate cultures. For these or otlk@sons, we may be unable to retain key clienéeqgéired companies. Moreover, any
acquired business may fail to generate the revennet income we expected or produce the efficesnor cost-savings that we anticipated.
Any of these outcomes could adversely affect o@raiing results.

If our subcontractors fail to perform their contrac tual obligations, our performance as a prime contra ctor and our ability
to obtain future business could be materially and a dversely impacted.

Our performance of government contracts may invihesissuance of subcontracts to other companies which we rely to
perform all or a portion of the work we are obligito deliver to our clients. A failure by one oona of our subcontractors to satisfactorily
deliver on a timely basis the agreed-upon suppliegor perform the agreed-upon services may méyesiad adversely impact our ability to
perform our obligations as a prime contractor.

In extreme cases, a subcontractor’s performandeigiefy could result in the government terminating contract for default. A
default termination could expose us to liability &xcess costs of reprocurement by the governnmehhave a material adverse effect on our
ability to compete for future contracts and tas#ers.
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Our business may be adversely affected if we cannot collect our receivables.

We depend on the collection of our receivablesetoegate cash flow, provide working capital, paytdetd continue our business
operations. If the federal government, any of dheoclients or any prime contractor for whom we arsubcontractor fails to pay or delays
the payment of their outstanding invoices for aggson, our business and financial condition mapaterially adversely affected. The
government may fail to pay outstanding invoicesaumber of reasons, including lack of appropddtmds or lack of an approved budget.
Some prime contractors for whom we are a subcawirheve significantly less financial resourcesthee do, which may increase the risk
that we may not be paid in full or payment may bged.

Our global networks require our employees to travel to potentially dangerous places, which may result in injury to key
employees.

Our domestic business involves the maintenancéobignetworks that require us to dispatch empleyteesarious countries around
the world on short notice. These countries mayx{pegencing political upheaval or unrest, and imeacases war or terrorism. Certain senior
level employees or executives are, on occasiomgbdne teams deployed to provide services indloegintries. As a result, it is possible that
certain of our employees or executives will suffgary or bodily harm in the course of these depients. It is also possible that we will
encounter unexpected costs in connection withepatriation of our employees or executives for@aaseyond our control.

Our failure to adequately protect our confidential information and proprietary rights may harm our com petitive position.

Our success depends, in part, upon our abilitydtept our proprietary information and other irgetual property. Although our
employees execute confidentiality agreements pittgection may be inadequate to deter misapprogmiatf our confidential information. In
addition, we may be unable to detect unauthorizedadf our intellectual property in order to tak@egpriate steps to enforce our rights. If we
are unable to prevent third parties from infringorgmisappropriating our copyrights, trademarksther proprietary information, our
competitive position could be seriously harmed.

We face additional risks which could harm our busin ess because we have international operations.

Our international operations consist of our U.Ksé@ business which conducts the majority of it$rass in the United Kingdom
and limited business in the Republic of Irelandr Gperations in the United Kingdom and the Republitreland comprised approximately
8.4% of our revenue in fiscal 2001 and 6.5% ofrewenue in the six months ended December 31, 2000U.K.-based operations are
subject to risks associated with operating in aifpr country. These risks include fluctuationshia value of the British pound, longer
payment cycles, changes in foreign tax laws andlatigns and unexpected legislative, regulatorgneenic or political changes.

Our U.K.-based operations are also subject to askeciated with operating a commercial, as opptwsadjovernment contracting,
business, including the effects of general econaoiditions in the United Kingdom on the telecomioations, computer software and
computer services sectors and the impact of mareesdrated and intense competition for the redwobame of work available in those
sectors. Our revenue from this business decling@% from the six months ended December 31, 2000d@ix months ended December 31,
2001 largely as a result of our exposure to the. tekecom industry, which has been experiencingkwess, and lower revenue from other
direct costs that we bill directly to clients. Wéilve are marketing our services to clients in itriks that are new to us, our efforts in that
regard may be unsuccessful. Other factors thatadsgrsely affect our international operations acerginued decline in the economy of the
United Kingdom, difficulties relating to managingrdbusiness internationally, and multiple tax stuues. Any of these factors could
adversely affect our operating results.
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We may be exposed to liabilities or losses from ope  rations that we have discontinued.

We have sold certain portions of our business.nkae information on these discontinued operatiplegse see “Managements’
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition &w®bults of Operations—Discontinued OperationswWefincur greater losses than we
expect on this disposition there may be a negatigact on future operating results.

Risks Related to this Offering

Management could apply the proceeds of this offerin g to uses that do not increase our market value or improve our
operating results.

We intend to apply approximately $69.8 million afr;met proceeds to repay amounts outstanding underew credit facility. We
intend to use up to $15 million of our net proceemake contingent and deferred payments that aeowe in connection with two
previously completed acquisitions. Finally, we mddo contribute our remaining net proceeds ofatiering to working capital to support
general corporate purposes, as well as possiblasiigns of businesses, products, and technoldpetsare complementary to ours. We have
not reserved or allocated the remaining net pracéamdany specific purpose, and we cannot state egttainty how our management will use
the net proceeds. Accordingly, our managementhaie considerable discretion in applying the reingimet proceeds. We may use the
remaining net proceeds for purposes that do nattriesany increase in our results of operationsharket value.

The market price of our common stock is volatile.

The market price of our common stock has fluctuatietbly and may continue to do so. For exampleindufiscal 2001 the price of
our stock ranged from a high of $23.500 per shaeelow of $8.375 per share. Many factors coulcseate market price of our common
stock to rise and fall. Some of these factors are:

e variations in our quarterly operating rest

* the hiring or departure of key person

e acquisitions or strategic alliances by us or otliresur industry

* changes in presidential administration or goverrirfisoal policy
* shifts or delays in government budget allocati

e acts of war, terrorism or national calamit

* announcements of technological innovati

* introduction of new pricing policies by us or oumapetitors

e changes in accounting principl

¢ changes in estimates of our performance or recordatims by financial analysts; ¢
* market conditions in the industry and the economg avhole

In addition, the stock market has recently expegerextreme price and volume fluctuations. Thasedhtions have particularly
affected the market prices of the securities of yrtaohnology companies
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generally. These broad market fluctuations coulceegkly affect the market price of our common stétken the market price of a stock has
been volatile, holders of that stock have oftetitinged securities class action litigation agaihst company that issued the stock. If any of our
stockholders brought such a lawsuit against us;awudd incur substantial costs of defending the laws paying a settlement or court
judgment. The lawsuit could also divert the time attention of our management. Any of these evemttd seriously harm our busine

Purchasers in this offering will experience immedia te dilution as the net tangible book value of the s hares of common
stock will be substantially lower than the offering price.

The price you will pay for our common stock in thi$ering is substantially higher than the pro farmet tangible book value per
share of our common stock. As a result, if we Wigrgdated for book value immediately following shoffering, each stockholder purchasing
in this offering would experience immediate andstabtial dilution. Dilution is the difference betarethe offering price per share and the pro
forma net tangible book value per share of our comstock.

Provisions of our charter and by-laws and Delaware law make a takeover of our company more difficult.

Our basic corporate documents and Delaware lavagoptovisions that might enable our managemerggist an attempt to take
over our company. For example, our board of dimsatan issue shares of common stock and prefetweld without stockholder approval,
and the board could issue stock to dilute and adyeaffect various rights of a potential acqui@ur by-laws contain provisions which limit
the circumstances under which stockholders maydaten by written consent. The board could usedtend other provisions to discourage,
delay or prevent a change in the control of ourgany or a change in our management. These prosisimght also discourage, delay or
prevent an acquisition of our company at a prieg ylou may find attractive. These provisions calfb make it more difficult for you and
our other stockholders to elect directors and taker corporate actions. These provisions could time price that investors might be willing
to pay for shares of our common stock.

16



Table of Contents

SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Some of the information in this prospectus ancheaxdocuments that we incorporate by referencetlisgprospectus contains
forward-looking statements that involve substaniilds and uncertainties. You can identify thes¢estents by forward-looking words such
as “expect,” “anticipate,” “plan,” “believe,” “segk‘estimate,” “internal,” “backlog” and similar wds. Statements that we make in this
prospectus and in the documents that we incorpbsateference into this prospectus that are né¢istents of historical fact may also be
forward-looking statements. In particular, stateta¢hat we make in “Management’s Discussion andliysimaof Financial Condition and
Results of Operations” relating to our revenuesfiability and the sufficiency of capital to megorking capital and capital expenditures
requirements, are forward-looking statements. Faoivi@oking statements are not guarantees of ourdyserformance, and involve risks,
uncertainties and assumptions that may cause tualaesults to differ materially from the expeaias we describe in our forward-looking
statements. There may be events in the futureatbatre not accurately able to predict, or over Whie have no control. You should not
place undue reliance on forwalabking statements. We do not promise to notify ifaue learn that our assumptions or projectioresvarong
for any reason. Before you invest in our commouglstgou should be aware that the factors we distcu&Risk Factorsand elsewhere in th
prospectus could cause our actual results to diféen any forward-looking statements.
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USE OF PROCEEDS

We estimate that our net proceeds from the saleeoft, 250,000 shares of common stock we are offedfter deducting the
estimated underwriting discounts and commissionkesmtimated offering expenses that we will pay, as&liming a public offering price of
$39.32 per share (based on the February 6, 208hglprice), will be approximately $158.0 millicor, approximately $181.8 million if the
underwriters exercise their over-allotment optioriill.

We intend to use approximately $69.8 million of aet proceeds to repay amounts outstanding underew credit facility, which
bears interest at the London Inter Bank OffereceRatt LIBOR, plus 0.875%. Within the last year, iave used funds borrowed under our
previous credit facility to pay for acquisitiongpurchase shares of our common stock and makakeapjtenditures. We intend to use up to
$8.0 million of our net proceeds to make contingemtments that we may owe in connection with ouclpase in fiscal 2001 of the federal
services business of N.E.T. Federal, Inc., a sidosidf net.com. We intend to use up to $7.0 millto make deferred payments in November
2002 and May 2003 in connection with our purchddRigital Systems International Corporation in $002.

We intend to contribute our remaining net procezfdbe offering to working capital to support geslesorporate purposes, as wel
possible acquisitions of businesses, productsegtthblogies that are complementary to ours. We@mngnuously evaluating acquisition
opportunities, and, at any given time, may be irfous stages of due diligence or preliminary distarss with respect to a number of poter
transactions. From time to time, we may enter im@n-binding letters of intent, but we are not cotiyesubject to any definitive agreement
with respect to any transaction material to ourrafens or otherwise so far advanced in any disonssas to make a transaction material to
our operations reasonably certain. On Januaryd@R 2ve entered into a letter of intent to acqtheestock of an engineering and informat
technology services company specializing in thégiesntegration and management of value-oriendedure enterprise network systems for
agencies of the federal government. The closing@fcquisition is contingent upon the executiodeaffnitive agreements and completion of
due diligence satisfactory to us in our sole digore The anticipated purchase price is approxiiyaig6.0 million, with approximately $34.0
million to be paid at closing and $2.0 million te paid twelve months after closing.

Pending these uses, we intend to invest our neepds in short-term, investment-grade securitidsrest-bearing securities or
guaranteed obligations of the United States aagencies.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

We have never paid cash dividends on our commark sithe current policy of our board of director¢dsetain all earnings to
reinvest in our continued growth.

PRICE RANGE OF COMMON STOCK

Our common stock is traded on the Nasdaqg Natioraak®t under the symbol CACI. As of December 31,122@0ere were 587
holders of record of our common stock. We belidwat there are a substantial number of additionaéfieial owners that hold stock in
nominee or “street name” through brokerage firm® Tollowing table provides the high and low sgldases for our common stock as
reported on the Nasdaq National Market for eadh@fperiods indicated.

. Low High
Fiscal 2000
First quartel $ 10.128 % 11.81:
Second quarte 9.87¢ 12.00(
Third quartel 10.37¢ 15.12¢
Fourth quarte 9.12¢ 15.06:
Fiscal 2001
First quartel 8.37¢ 12.75(
Second quarte 9.56: 12.25(
Third quartel 11.09¢ 14.06:
Fourth quarte 13.31: 23.50(
Fiscal 2002
First quartel 16.60( 28.42¢
Second quarte 25.51( 43.50(
Third quarter (through February 6, 20( 30.80( 42.99(

On February 6, 2002, the closing sale price forammmon stock as reported on the Nasdaq Nationgtéflavas $39.32.
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CAPITALIZATION

The following table summarizes our capitalizatienoh December 31, 2001 on an actual basis andjasted to reflect our sale of
4,250,000 shares of common stock, after dedudtiagstimated underwriting discounts and commissamiasestimated offering expenses
we will pay and assuming a public offering prices80.32 per share (based on the February 6, 208thgl price), and after application of our
net proceeds of the offering to repay approxima$€9.8 million in indebtedness. You should read thformation in conjunction with our

consolidated financial statements and their relatsds.

As of December 31, 2001

Actual

As adjusted

(dollars in thousands,
except share data)

(unaudited)
Note payable, lor-term $ 73,30° $ 3,50(
Other lon¢-term obligation: 6,84( 6,84(
Shareholder equity:
Preferred stock, $0.10 par value; 10,000,000 steart®rized; none outstanding, actual and as
adjustec — —
Common stock, $0.10 par value; 40,000,000 shartt®@ared; 31,268,000 shares outstanding, actual;

35,518,000 shares outstanding, as adj. 3,127 3,552
Capital in excess of pi 35,66 193,19°
Retained earning 171,86¢ 171,86¢
Accumulated other comprehensive | (3,980 (3,98¢)
Treasury stock, at cost; 7,772,000 shares, actubaga adjuste (21,019 (21,019

Total shareholde’ equity 185,65¢ 343,61«

Total capitalizatior $ 265,80t $ 353,95

] ]

The information in this table excludes:

e options outstanding at December 31, 2001 to puecBak30,396 shares of common s

* options to purchase an additional 374,790 sharesrafnon stock that we have granted or may gran¢uodr stock option

plans after December 31, 20
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SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA

(dollars in thousands, except per share data)

We have derived the following selected consolidditeahcial data as of June 30, 2000 and 2001 anthéofiscal years ended June
30, 1999, 2000 and 2001 from our consolidated fir@rstatements included elsewhere in this prosigeethich have been audited by Delc
& Touche LLP, independent auditors. We have derthedfollowing selected consolidated financial dageof June 30, 1997, 1998 and 1999
and for the fiscal years ended June 30, 1997 afifl fiBm our consolidated financial statements noluided in this prospectus. We have
derived the following selected consolidated finahdiata as of December 31, 2001 and for the sixtihsoended December 31, 2000 and 2001
from our unaudited consolidated financial statemeWte have restated our income statement datdléstreur disposition of two businesses.
We have not restated our balance sheet data axtéflese dispositions. We have prepared our utelidonsolidated financial statements on
the same basis as our audited financial statemientise opinion of our management, our unauditetsotidated financial statements include
all adjustments, consisting only of normal recugradjustments, necessary for a fair presentatidheoinformation. Our results of operations
for the six months ended December 31, 2001 areexsssarily indicative of future operating resitsu should read the selected
consolidated financial data in conjunction with “Mayement’s Discussion and Analysis of Financialditiom and Results of Operationahd
our consolidated financial statements and theedlabtes.

Six months ended Decemb

Year ended June 30, 31,
1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2000 2001
Income statement data:
Revenue $260,61(  $312,77(  $427,42. $484,54! $557,89( $ 258,61 $ 308,14«
Operating expenst 243,49 293,81! 400,29( 451,92¢ 520,53! 242,29: 284,29°
Income from operatior 17,89: 20,31« 27,13: 32,61¢ 37,35¢ 16,32« 23,84
Income from continuing operatiol 9,631 10,92: 14,317 17,89 20,76¢ 8,99: 14,02¢
Income (loss) from discontinued
operations 43¢ 794 (147 (613 9) 12t (209)
Gain (loss) on disposal on
discontinued operatior — — — 21,13¢ 1,54t — (1,250
Net income 10,07 11,71t 14,17( 38,41: 22,30: 9,11¢ 12,57(
| | ] ] | ] L]
Earnings per common and
common share equivalent:
Basic:
Income from continuing operatiol $ 04€¢ $ 051 $ 0.6€ $ 0.7¢ $ 0.9z $ 04C % 0.6C
Net income 0.4¢ 0.5¢ 0.6t 1.7C 0.9¢ 0.41 0.54
Average shares outstandi 21,00¢ 21,55¢ 21,79: 22,62( 22,63¢ 22,59¢ 23,20«
Diluted:
Income from continuing
operations $ 04 $ 04¢ $ 0.64 $ 0.77 $ 0.9 $ 03¢ $ 0.5¢
Net income 0.4¢ 0.5: 0.6: 1.6€ 0.97 0.4C 0.52Z
Average shares and equivalent
shares outstandir 22,01( 22,30¢ 22,44( 23,154 23,05¢ 22,91¢ 23,97¢
June 30,
1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 December 31, 2001
Balance sheet data
Working capital $ 4201« $ 5487¢ $ 66,72¢ $ 6249 $ 8196 3 97,82t
Total asset 118,86( 163,06( 221,71 235,99 284,73: 335,711
Long-term obligations 10,56¢ 31,23: 67,02 31,91 55,23( 81,65
Shareholder equity 70,77¢ 84,32’ 98,93" 141,96¢ 160,20« 185,65¢
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

We provide the following discussion and analysisribance your understanding of our financial statemand the related notes.
You should read this discussion in conjunction waith financial statements and the related notefeddrwe note otherwise, references to
years are references to our fiscal year, which endiune 3C

Overview

We are a leading provider of information technolsgyvices and solutions to U.S. national defemgelligence and civilian
agencies, foreign governments, state and localrgovents, and commercial enterprises. Our servi@ings include managed network
services, systems integration, engineering senandsknowledge management.

We report operating results and financial datavio $egments: domestic operations and internatimpetations. In fiscal 2001, our
domestic operations accounted for approximatelg®lof our revenue, and our international operatemtounted for approximately 8.4% of
our revenue. In the six months ended December@11,Dur domestic operations accounted for apprateéim 93.5% of our revenue, and our
international operations accounted for approxinyaéeb% of our revenue. Our domestic operationsigeoservices and solutions across all
four of our services offerings. Clients of our datie operations are primarily agencies within trepBrtment of Defense and federal civilian
agencies, and our domestic operations also semuenber of foreign governments and clients in thmmercial and state and local
government sectors. Our international operationsige systems integration and marketing servicemtomercial and government clients.
We evaluate the performance of both of our opegatggments based on pre-tax income or loss.

We believe our contract base is well diversifigdfiscal 2001, our domestic operations providedises under more than 2,300 task
orders issued under approximately 396 separateamtst We estimate that no single contract or tadkr accounted for more than 9.5% of
our revenue during the six months ended Decemhe2(BI1.

Our federal government contracts, which comprigga@imately 85.1% of our revenue in fiscal 200%, subject to government
audits of our direct and indirect costs. The majaof these incurred cost audits have been conplar®ugh June 30, 1998. We do not
anticipate any material adjustment to our constdididinancial statements in subsequent periodaddits not yet completed.

We provide the substantial majority of our servid&sctly to our clients as a prime contractor, Wetalso provide services indirec
as a subcontractor. We derived 87.9% of our revémtiscal 2001 and 91.3% of our revenue in thensonths ended December 31, 2001
from projects for which we served as the prime @oibr. We typically provide our services undertcacts with a base term, often of one
year, and option terms, typically of four yearsraare, which the client can exercise on an annugikbVe also have contracts with fix
terms, some extending as long as five to ten yéditsough we occasionally obtain government cornt@t which the contracting agency
obligates funding for the full term of the contrattost of our government contracts receive incraaiéanding, which subjects us to the
government’s annual appropriations process.
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We generate revenue from time-and-material corgyacist-reimbursable contracts, fixed-price corsresnftware licenses and
maintenance support services. The following tabdeipdes information about the amounts of reventrébatable to our time-and-material
contracts, cost-reimbursable contracts and firradiprice contracts, including software licenses miathtenance support services, during
fiscal 1999, fiscal 2000, fiscal 2001 and the sbmiins ended December 31, 2000 and 2001.

Year ended June 30, Six months ended December 31,

1999 2000 2001 2000 2001

(dollars in thousands)

Time-and-materials $263,89! 61.8% $277,82° 57.3% $332,95! 59.7% $156,37! 60.5% $183,79: 59.6%
Cost-reimbursable 86,87¢ 20.3% 118,07: 24.4% 117,30: 21.0% 59,68¢ 23.1% 59,75¢ 19.4%
Firm fixec-price 76,65: 17.9% 88,647 18.3% 107,63« 19.3% 42,55¢ 16.4% 64,594 21.0%

Total $427,42: 100.0% $484,54! 100.0% $557,89( 100.0% $258,61¢ 100.0% $308,14: 100.0%

Under a time-and-material contract, we receivexedfihourly rate for each direct labor hour we wankl reimbursement for our
direct costs. To the extent that our actual lalestsvary significantly from the negotiated rataeder a time-and-material contract, we can
either make more money than we originally anti@patr lose money on the contract. Under cost-reigdhle contracts, we are reimbursed
for allowable costs and receive a supplementahviéch represents our profit. Cost-plus fixed featcacts specify the contract fee in dollars
or as a percentage of anticipated costs. Costiptesitive fee and cost-plus award fee contractgigedfor increases or decreases in the
contract fee, within specified limits, based upetual results as compared to contractual targetiafwors such as cost, quality, schedule and
performance. Under fixed-price contracts, we agpgeerform specified work for a firm fixed pricé.dur actual costs exceed our estimate of
the costs to perform the contract, we may gendeateprofit or incur a loss. A significant perceggaf our fixed-price contracts are fixed-
price level-of-effort contracts, which represemigr levels of risk as time-and-material contractsfixed unit price contracts, under which
we agree to provide certain units of performanca fated price per unit. A portion of our fixed-pei contracts are fixed-price completion
contracts, in which we agree to complete a progath as the development and installation of a otthat meets stated criteria for
performance and functionality, for a fixed pricee\yenerally do not undertake complex, high-riskkysuch as software development, under
fixed-price terms.

We recognize revenue on time-and-material conttadise extent of billable rates times hours debdeplus expenses incurred. We
recognize revenue on cost-reimbursable contradtsetextent of allowable costs incurred plus a prgpnate amount of the fee earned. We
recognize revenue on fixed-price contracts undeptrcentage-of-completion method based on costsrad in relation to total estimated
costs. We recognize revenue from software liceaksssipon delivery of the software when there isigaificant obligation to perform after
the sale. When there is a significant obligationgimduction, modification or customization aftketsale, we recognize revenue from soft
license sales under the percentage-of-completidhade Revenue from maintenance support servicesrisefundable, and we generally
recognize that revenue on a straight-line basis thveterm of the service agreement. We recordipians for estimated losses on
uncompleted contracts in the period in which wedaine those losses.

The following table shows our revenue in dollard as a percentage of revenue from the followingntlgroups:

Year ended June 30, Six months ended December 31,

1999 2000 2001 2000 2001

(dollars in thousands)

Department of Defens $216,57: 50.7% $249,77¢ 51.5% $325,11¢ 58.2% $143,75( 55.6% $195,85¢ 63.5%
Federal civilian agencies 130,76t 30.6% 141,39: 29.2% 149,20! 26.8% 71,34¢ 27.€% 79,70: 25.%
Commercial 57,81( 13.5% 60,18! 12.4% 61,02¢ 10.9% 30,27¢ 11.7% 25,20¢ 8.2%
State and local government 22,27: 5.2% 33,19¢ 6.%% 22,53¢ 4.C% 13,24: 5.1% 7,37¢ 2.4%

Total $427,42: 100.(% $484,54! 100.(% $557,89( 100.(% $258,61¢ 100.(% $308,14« 100.(%
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Recent Acquisitions

We have completed eight acquisitions since thermégyg of fiscal 1999. We have accounted for ahafse acquisitions using the
purchase method of accounting and have includedethéts of their operations in our revenue sieerespective dates of acquisition. We
funded these transactions through borrowings uadeline of credit and available working capitalr@nanagement generally tracks revenue
generated by an acquired business for one yearisf@cquisition date. Revenue reported as cantibafter the acquisition date represents
amounts that are identifiable to specific acquiredtracts or, in the case of an acquired compaeybased on management’s assessment tha
such revenues are attributable to the acquired aognpnd not internal growth.

In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standardsr&cor FASB, issued Statement of Financial AccimgnStandards No. 141,
Business Combinatior, or SFAS No. 141. SFAS No. 141 requires that adiifless combinations be accounted for by the paechrethod of
accounting. The provisions of SFAS No. 141 applgltdusiness combinations initiated after June2B@1. SFAS No. 141 also applies to all
business combinations accounted for using the pgcimethod for which the date of acquisition iy 1yl2001, or later. We do not expect the
adoption of the provisions of SFAS No. 141 to hamémpact on our consolidated financial positiomesults of operations.

In June 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. X3@qdwill and Other Intangible AssetSFAS No. 142 requires that, upon its adopt
amortization of goodwill will cease and instead tarrying value of goodwill will be evaluated forpairment at least annually. Identifiable
intangible assets will continue to be amortizedrdkeir useful lives and reviewed for impairmengiccordance with SFAS No. 121,
Accounting for the Impairment of Lo-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to be Bsp®f. Any impairment identified will be treated
as a cumulative effect of a change in accountiimcple. We elected to early adopt SFAS No. 14&ative July 1, 2001, when we
discontinued the amortization of goodwill. Althoutite adoption of SFAS No. 142 will not have any &uofpon our cash flow, the
discontinuation of amortization of goodwill will faa a positive impact on our reported income frorarapons and earnings, except to the
extent that we may record charges for any impaitroegoodwill that may occur from time to time. Wave completed our benchmark
impairment test and have not experienced any impait of our goodwill. As a result of our acquisitioand our adoption of SFAS No. 142,
period-to-period comparisons of our results of afiens are not necessarily meaningful.

The following is a description of our material aigitions since the beginning of fiscal 1999:

On November 13, 1998, we acquired all of the comstonk of QuesTech, Inc., a company that specihiizéhe development and
application of information technology, scientifiesearch and management support services for teasiefind national security communities.
We paid total consideration of approximately $4@i0ion, including assumed liabilities. We allocdtapproximately $31.0 million of the
purchase price to goodwill.

On February 1, 2000, we acquired all of the comstonk of XEN Corporation for $4.3 million in caskEN specialized in
providing systems engineering, engineering deslggtance learning, training development, multimeslipport, and data security services to
national intelligence organizations, the Departn@idefense and the U.S. Navy. We allocated apprately $2.4 million of the purchase
price to goodwill.

On April 1, 2000, we purchased substantially alihaf assets of Century Technologies, Incorporai&NTECH), a company that
provided network systems design and integratiod,smftware development and integration for the Deapant of Defense and federal civili
agencies. We paid total consideration of $14.4ioniJlincluding $4.0 million for a split-dollar lifsasurance policy for the principal
stockholder. We allocated $4.0 million of the pwsé price to the life insurance policy, an intalegésset, and are amortizing it over seven
years. We allocated approximately $5.2 millionha# purchase price to goodw

On December 2, 2000, we acquired the federal ss\iasiness of N.E.T. Federal, Inc., a subsidibtnebcom. We structured the
acquisition as a purchase of assets. The federates business provided secure network servidesings, including network engineering
and design, implementation, installation and
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integration, as well as network maintenance andagament. We paid a base purchase price of $25l@miih cash and an additional $2.0
million within one year after closing. We agreednake additional payments of up to $13.0 milliommgchievement of specific milestones.
As of December 31, 2001, we have paid a total @ &illion, and we may make additional milestoagments of up to $8.0 million. We
allocated approximately $19.3 million of the purs@arice to goodwill.

On November 1, 2001, we purchased all of the outtitg capital stock of Digital Systems Internatib@arporation, or DSIC, for
approximately $47.4 million, of which we agreedptry approximately $7.0 million over 18 months frime date of acquisition. The
acquisition expands our systems integration, masthagéwvork services and information assurance chfediand clients. We allocated
approximately $23.8 million of the purchase pricggbodwill and $8.1 million to intangible assetse e amortizing substantially all of the
intangible assets over a period of ten years.

Discontinued Operations

Since the beginning of fiscal 1999, we have disgafdwo businesses. We have restated our statsroénperations for all periods
presented in order to reflect these dispositions.

On December 15, 1999, we sold the net assets EOMNET products business for $40.0 million. We énaegregated our
operating loss attributable to this discontinuedration from our continuing operations and repoited a separate line item on our
consolidated statements of operations. The COMNHS resulted in net after-tax gains of $21.1 millio fiscal 2000 and $1.5 million in
fiscal 2001. Revenue from this discontinued operatvas $8.3 million in fiscal 1999 and $3.1 millionfiscal 2000.

On October 31, 2001, we signed a letter of intertispose of our domestic marketing systems graog,on January 6, 2002, we
sold the net assets of this group to ESRI Busitrdesmation Solutions, a subsidiary of the Enviremtal Systems Research Institute, Inc.,
for $3.5 million in cash. We have also segregatadoperating loss attributable to this discontinogdration from our continuing operations
and reported it as a separate line item on ourdlinladed statements of operations. This sale redulft a net after-tax loss of approximately
$1.3 million. Included in the loss was a net-af@erdoss from discontinued operations of approxetya$0.3 million for the period from
October 31, 2001 to January 6, 2002. Subsequelatrigary 6, 2002, all of the assets and liabilitrdsbe removed from our consolidated
balance sheet.
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Results of Operations

The following table provides the relative percerfathat certain items of expense and earningstbeavenue:

Six months ended

Year ended June 30, December 31,
1999 2000 2001 2000 2001
Revenue 100.% 100.(% 100.(% 100.%  100.(%
Costs and expense
Direct costs 59.2 59.1 61.4 60.7 61.C
Indirect and selling expens 32.1 31.¢ 29.t 30.t 29.4
Depreciation and amortizatic 1.7 1.€ 1.t 1.€ 1.8
Goodwill amortizatior 0.7 0.8 0.c 0.¢ 0.C
Total operating expens: 93.7 93.2 93.2 93.7 92.2
Income from operatior 6.3 6.7 6.7 6.3 7.8
Interest expens 0.8 0.7 0.€ 0.€ 0.4
Income before income tax 5.k 6.C 6.1 5.7 7.4
Income taxe: 2.1 2.3 2.4 2.2 2.8
Income from continuing operatiol 3.4 3.7 3.7 3.5 4.€
Discontinued operations:
Income (loss) from discontinued operatic (0.2 (0.7 (0.0 0.C (0.2
Gain (loss) on disposal of discontinued operat — 4.3 0.2 — (0.9
Net income 3.2% 7.% 4.C% 3.5% 4.1%
I I I I I

Comparison of six months ended December 31, 2001 and 2000

Revenue . For the six months ended December 31, 2001, oaf ietenue increased 19.2%, or $49.5 million, t083 million compared to
the same period last year. This revenue growthdsigen primarily by higher levels of managed netkvand engineering services business
from federal government clients.

Revenue from the Department of Defense increase¥@6r $52.1 million, to $195.9 million for the$t six months of fiscal 2002,
as compared to the same period in fiscal 2001 .aEleisition of the federal services business of N.Eederal, which we completed on
December 2, 2000, and DSIC accounted for the ntgjofithe growth, contributing $30.4 million in remue. Contracts with the U.S. Army,
U.S. Navy, U.S. Air Force and the Defense Infororatbervice Agency, either obtained through acdaisstor from internal growth, were the
primary contributors to the increase in revenuelierfirst six months of fiscal 2002.

Revenue from federal civilian agencies increase@%Zor $8.4 million, to $79.7 million for the firsix months of fiscal 2002, as
compared to the first six months of fiscal 2001v&wae from the Department of Justice was $35.8aniflor the six months ended December
31, 2001 as compared to $34.9 million for the speréod in fiscal 2001. The overall increase in fadleivilian agency revenue was mainly
generated from continued growth in managed netwerkices business, GSA contracts and our work thaglDepartment of Justice.

Commercial revenue, which is primarily derived fronr operations based in the United Kingdom, desgédy 16.8%, or $5.1
million, to $25.2 million for the first six monthsf fiscal 2002, as compared to the first six momthBscal 2001. The decrease in commercial
revenue was largely the result of our exposuréddinited Kingdom telecom industry, which has begperiencing weakness, and lower
other direct costs, which are billed directly t@nots and recorded as revenue, in the first sixtheoof fiscal 2002 as compared to the first six
months of fiscal 2001.
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Revenue from state and local governments decreis86lo, or $5.9 million, to $7.4 million for the smonths ended December 31,
2001, as compared to the same period a year agodddiine in revenue was primarily due to estiméisdes on fixed-price contracts. Our
continued and expanded focus on opportunities thigtDepartment of Defense and federal civilian agenhas resulted in a reduced
emphasis on state and local government clients.

Direct costs . Direct costs include direct labor and other digts, such as equipment purchases, subcontractisrand travel expenses.
Direct costs for the first half of fiscal 2002 iesaised 19.8%, or $31.1 million, to $188.1 millicorfrthe same period in fiscal 2001. As a
percentage of revenue, direct costs were relativ@hstant at 61.0% in the first half of fiscal 200®1 60.7% in the first half of fiscal 2001.
The largest component of direct costs, direct lavais $96.8 million for the first half of fiscal @@ and $80.2 million for the first half of fisc
2001. The increase in direct labor was due to tbevth in our federal government business, botth@D@epartment of Defense and federal
civilian agencies, as well as from the acquisitiohthe federal services business of N.E.T. FederdIDSIC. Other direct costs were $91.3
million for the first half of fiscal 2002 and $76m8illion for the first half of fiscal 2001. The ingase in other direct costs was primarily from
the same two acquisitions.

Indirect costs and selling expenses . Indirect costs and selling expenses include fringeefits, marketing costs, bid and proposal costs,
indirect labor and other discretionary costs. Pogiof these costs are highly variable. Indirestzand selling expenses increased 14.9%, or
$11.7 million, to $90.7 million in the first half fiscal 2002 from the same period a year ago. fsraentage of revenue, indirect costs
decreased from 30.5% in the first half of fiscaD2@0 29.4% in the first half of fiscal 2002 duectintinuing cost controls and increased
operating leverage resulting from the acquisitiohthe federal services business of N.E.T. FedardIDSIC.

Depreciation and amortization . Depreciation and amortization rose 39.0%, or $lilbom, to $5.5 million for the six months ended
December 31, 2001 from the same period a yearTdgnincrease was primarily due to the amortizatiboompleted software development
projects, for which all costs are being amortizadddl on current and future revenue with annualmim amortization equal to straight-line
amortization over the remaining estimated econdifigic

As previously noted, effective July 1, 2001, wetdd SFAS Nos. 141 and 142, which relate to businembinations and the
amortization of goodwill. In accordance with theseounting pronouncements, we recorded no amadizakpense for our goodwill during
the six months ended December 31, 2001.

Income from operations . Income from operations increased 46.1%, or $7.5anjlto $23.8 million for the six months ended Beter 31,
2001, as compared to the same period a year agoaddption of SFAS 142, which discontinued the dizetion of goodwill, accounted for
approximately 31.2% of the increase. The balandbefncrease in operating income was due to isectaevenues and lower indirect costs
and selling expenses as a percentage of revenue.

Interest expense . Interest expense decreased 22.9%, or $0.4 mitico$1.2 million for the six months ended Decemier2001 from the
same period a year ago. The decrease was attribygaimarily to a significant decline in interestes.

Income taxes . Our effective income tax rate for the first hafffiscal 2002 was 38% compared to 39% for the sper®d a year ago.
Comparison of fiscal 2001, fiscal 2000 and fiscal 1999

Revenue . For our fiscal year ended June 30, 2001, ourmageéncreased by 15.1%, or $73.3 million, to $55#ilion. This increase was
primarily in our managed network services busirsssresulted from a combination
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of internal growth and our acquisition of the fealeservices business of N.E.T. Federal. Our tetatnue in fiscal 2000 increased by 13.4%,
or $57.1 million, to $484.5 million. This increasmas primarily due to acquisitions we made durisgdi 2000 and to a 5% internal growth
rate mainly in our revenues from sales to the Diepamt of Defense and state and local governments.

Acquisitions that we made during fiscal 2001 arsddl 2000 accounted for $52.8 million of our fis2801 revenue growth. In fiscal
2001, the federal services business of N.E.T. Rédentributed $27.6 million in revenue, CENTECHtrdbuted $19.5 million, XEN
contributed $4.8 million and another acquired comypzontributed $0.9 million.

Our revenue from the Department of Defense ince88e2%, or $75.3 million, to $325.1 million ind&l 2001, as compared to
fiscal 2000. In fiscal 2000, Department of Defersseenue increased 15.3%, or $33.2 million, to $248illion, as compared to fiscal 1999.
The growth in our revenue from the Department diedse from 1999 to 2001 is primarily due to growtimanaged network services, which
was derived from both internal growth and our asitjoin of the federal services business of N.Edddfal, and growth in intelligence
community work.

Our revenue from federal civilian agencies incrdaés&%, or $7.8 million, to $149.2 million for fiak2001 as compared to fiscal
2000. Our revenue from the Department of Justice $va.4 million in fiscal 2001, $73.6 million irséial 2000 and $75.0 million in fiscal
1999. In fiscal 2001, our revenue from other feberalian agencies grew by 10.3%, or $7.0 milliaa,$74.8 million compared to fiscal 20
The increase was primarily due to our sales tdtgartment of State.

In fiscal 2001, our commercial revenue, which wamarily derived from our operations based in th@teld Kingdom, increased
slightly by 1.4%, or $0.8 million, to $61.0 millipas compared to fiscal 2000. Our slower-than-ggted growth rate was primarily due to a
decrease of approximately 10% in the average foreighange rate for the year compared to fiscab 2b0fiscal 2000, our commercial
revenue grew by 4.1%, or $2.4 million, to $60.2liml. This increase was primarily the result of dlmited Kingdom'’s marketing systems
group’s sales of territory optimization and markgtanalysis software products and services, asasaibntinued increased demand for
systems integration services.

Our revenue from state and local governments dsedely 32.1% from $33.2 million in fiscal 2000 @2% million in fiscal 2001.
The decrease is attributable primarily to the réidadn our Y2K remediation business. Our revermoenf state and local governments
increased by 49.0% from $22.3 million in 1999 t@&$3million in 2000, due to the increase in our Y&nediation business.

Direct costs. As a percentage of revenue, our total direct agste 61.4% in fiscal 2001, 59.1% in fiscal 2000 &8d2% in fiscal 1999.
Direct labor was $171.4 million in fiscal 2001, $1@ million in fiscal 2000 and $125.0 million irs@ial 1999. Our other direct costs were
$170.8 million in fiscal 2001, $140.4 million irsial 2000 and $127.9 million in fiscal 1999. Ourestdirect costs grew over the three-year
period as we obtained a higher number of primeraotd that experience an increased level of otlectdcosts.

Indirect costs and selling expenses . Most of our indirect costs and selling expensesvwgghly variable and grew in proportion with our
growth in revenue. As a percentage of revenuejnalirect costs were 29.5% in fiscal 2001, 31.8%s0al 2000 and 32.1% in fiscal 1999.
That continued decline is due to the impact of bighther direct costs on revenue.

Depreciation and amortization. Depreciation and amortization of our property aqdipment increased 9.6%, or $0.7 million, to $8.5
million in fiscal 2001. Depreciation and amortizatiincreased by 7.7%, or $0.6 million, to $7.8 imillin fiscal 2000 from fiscal 1999
primarily due to property and equipment acquiraddfiar Vision and Solution Center, our new financiaftware system and certain leasehold
improvements.

28



Table of Contents

Goodwill . Our goodwill amortization increased by 36.9%, od$dillion, to $5.2 million in fiscal 2001 as a wdtsof acquisitions. Our
acquisition of the federal services business of N.Eederal resulted in incremental goodwill exgeat$0.7 million. The remaining $0.7
million increase in our goodwill amortization cafnem acquisitions we made in fiscal 2000. In fise@D1, CENTECH contributed $0.6
million of additional goodwill amortization expenaad XEN contributed $0.1 million. In fiscal 20@®odwill amortization increased
$0.7 million due to our acquisitions.

Income from operations . Our income from operations increased 14.5%, or 84#lifon, to $37.4 million for fiscal 2001, as comned to

fiscal 2000. This was due to a 15.1% growth in neseand a relative reduction in indirect expenses percentage of revenue. In fiscal 2000,
our income from operations increased 20.2%, or §5lEon, to $32.6 million, which was primarily due a 13.4% growth in revenue and a
relative reduction in indirect expenses.

Interest expense. Our interest expense for fiscal 2001 remained éimeesas fiscal 2000, at $3.3 million. Although oarrbwings increased
by $20.6 million in fiscal 2001 as compared to &is2000, our interest rates decreased, thus neguitino significant change in our interest
expense in fiscal 2001.

Income taxes . Our effective income tax rates were 39.0% in fig01, 39.0% in fiscal 2000 and 39.1% in fiscal94.99
Effects of Inflation

In fiscal 2001, we conducted approximately 59.7%uwf business under time-and-material contractgrevtabor rates are often
fixed for several years. We generally have beea ttbprice these contracts in a manner to accomiadlda rates of inflation experienced in
recent years. In that year, we conducted approeimatl.0% of our business under cost-reimbursadéracts, which automatically adjust
revenue to cover costs increased by inflation. \@fedact the remaining portion of our business uffided-price contracts, which generally
have not been adversely affected by inflation.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Historically, our positive cash flow from operatgand our available credit facilities have providedadequate liquidity and worki
capital to fund our operational needs and suppartoquisition activities.

As of December 31, 2001, we had cash and cashaqots of $14.0 million. Our working capital was/®® million as of December
31, 2001, $82.0 million as of June 30, 2001 and%61llion as of June 30, 2000. Our working capiteireased slightly in the first six mon
of fiscal 2002 primarily as a result of increasaditgenerated from operations. The $19.5 millieneiase in our working capital from fiscal
2000 to fiscal 2001 was primarily due to higherasts receivable attributable to revenue growth.

Our operating activities provided cash of $12.diomilfor the six months ended December 31, 2001%&H8 million for the six
months ended December 31, 2000. In the first sirtimoof fiscal 2002, our operating activities gexted cash primarily from net income of
$12.6 million. In the first six months of fiscal @D, operating activities generated cash primardyfnet income of $9.1 million and increa
in accrued compensation and benefits and incones taayable.

Our operating activities provided cash of $31.3iomlin fiscal 2001 and $19.9 million in fiscal 2B0The increase in cash provided
by our operating activities was due to growth ioome from continuing operations of $2.9 million doned with lower tax payments in fisc
2001. We made tax payments of $12.1 million indis2000 relating to the sale of our COMNET produgsiness.
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We used $47.1 million of cash in investing actastin the six months ended December 31, 2001, cadpa $34.1 million for the
same period a year ago. Investing activities inetupurchases of property and equipment, businesskbrelated intangible assets.

We used $39.2 million of cash in investing actastin fiscal 2001 compared to net cash providemhysting activities of $10.9
million in fiscal 2000. This change was due prirhard investments made in the acquisitions of #iefal services business of N.E.T. Fed
and another company. In fiscal 2000, the sale ofGEIMNET products business generated $37.0 millicevailable funds. In fiscal 2001, \
also increased our investment activity in intemndibveloped software for external sale by approsége2.5 million. Our purchases of office
and computer-related equipment of $8.7 millionigedl 2001, $8.1 million in fiscal 2000 and $7.5lion in fiscal 1999 accounted for a
significant portion of the remaining cash usednweisting activities.

Our financing activities provided cash of $33.3liwil for the six months ended December 31, 200fmpared to $30.2 million for
the same period a year ago. The primary sourceastf provided by financing activities was from netrowings under our line of credit
facility of $20.9 million in the first six months éiscal 2002 and $35.5 million during the samei@ein fiscal 2001, proceeds from exercises
of stock options of $12.5 million in the first smonths of fiscal 2002 and $2.0 million in the fisst months of fiscal 2001.

During fiscal 2001, we financed our investing aitiéés from operating cash flow and from a net imsein borrowings of $20.6
million under our line of credit. In fiscal 2000evihad a decrease of $33.8 million in our borrowitigs primarily to the cash generated from
the sale of our COMNET products business.

During fiscal 2001, we repurchased approximately,@20 shares of our common stock at an aggregaie @r$7.3 million.

At December 31, 2001, we had an unsecured revolinegf credit that permitted borrowings of upfb25.0 million with an annual
sublimit of $40.0 million on amounts borrowed fagaisitions. On February 4, 2002, we replaceddreslit facility with a new five-year
unsecured credit agreement, which increased owowarg limit to $185.0 million and our annual subit for acquisitions to $75.0 million.
As of February 7, 2002, the applicable interest vedis equal to LIBOR plus a margin of 0.875%. e glay a fee on the unused portion of
the facility. Our U.K.-based subsidiary also maiimsaa. &0.5 million unsecured line of credit, whiekpires in November 2002. At December
31, 2001, we had approximately $69.8 million outdiag under our lines of credit.

We believe that the proceeds of this offering, aasihand, cash generated by operations and amaveitable under our lines of
credit will provide the required liquidity and cégdiresources for the foreseeable future.

Our ability to generate cash from operations depéoc significant extent on winning new contraid recompeted contracts from
our government customers in competitive biddingcpeses. If a significant portion of our governmaanitracts were terminated or if our win
rate on new contracts or recompeted contracts teedtecline significantly, our operating cash flowwid decrease, which would adversely
affect our liquidity and capital resources.

Historically, we have relied on borrowings under oredit facility and cash generated from operatitmfinance our acquisitions.
Under our new credit facility, we will be able torbow up to $75.0 million for acquisitions, but grf we comply with specified financial
ratios and other covenants under that facility. &ample, at the end of each fiscal quarter ousaliaated leverage ratio, or the ratio of our
consolidated debt to our consolidated earningsrbeéfderest, taxes, depreciation and amortizatoEBITDA, for the previous four quarters
may not exceed 3.0x. As of December 31, 2001, onsalidated leverage ratio was 1.2x. Our inabtlitfinance acquisitions for any
prolonged period of time would seriously affect ability to execute our growth strategy and wouddrh our financial condition and results
of operations.
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Other Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In July 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 1A8¢counting for Asset Retirement ObligatioBEAS No. 143 requires that the fair ve
of a liability for an asset retirement obligatios kecognized in the period in which it is incurréd reasonable estimate of fair value can be
made. The associated asset retirement cost wouddpitalized as part of the carrying amount ofltmg-lived asset. SFAS No. 143 will be
effective for fiscal years beginning after June 28)2. We have not determined the effect thatstaisement will have on our consolidated
financial position or results of operations.

In October 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. ®eLounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Lonigdd Assetsthat replaces
SFAS No. 121. SFAS No. 144 requires that long-limssgets be measured at the lower of carrying anwuatr value less cost to sell,
whether reported in continuing operations or ircdiginued operations. SFAS No. 144 also broademseorting of discontinued operations
to include all components of an entity with opeyas that can be distinguished from the rest ottitéy and that will be eliminated from the
ongoing operations of the entity in a disposalgeaion. The provisions of SFAS No. 144 are effector financial statements issued for
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2001 hatee not yet completed our analysis of this newnpomcement and the impact it will he
on our consolidated financial statements.

In November 2001, the Emerging Issues Task Force| T, issued Topic No. D-10lcome Statement Characterization of
Reimbursements Received “Out-of-Pocket” Expenses IncurredEITF Topic No. D-103 requires that companies repgimbursements
received for out-of-pocket expenses incurred asmes, rather than as a reduction of expenses. rbivésipns of EITF Topic No. D-103 are
effective for financial statements issued for flgezars beginning after December 15, 2001. As we tiéstorically accounted for
reimbursements of out-of-pocket expenses in theneraprovided for under EITF Topic No. D-103, werdi expect the adoption of the
provisions of EITF Topic No. D-103 to have an imipais our consolidated financial position or resolt®perations.
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BUSINESS
Overview

We are a leading provider of information technolsgyvices and solutions to U.S. national defemgelligence and civilian
agencies, foreign governments, state and localrgavents, and commercial enterprises. Our businassfeunded in 1962 based on
simulation technology. We have strategically diifegd within the information technology industry,qviding managed network services,
systems integration, engineering services and kedyd management to our clients.

We believe our success has resulted from our apahilities: comprehensive technical skills, enagicommitment to client
satisfaction, and our experienced personnel ancagenent team. We deliver our services through lalyhigkilled workforce of
approximately 5,500 employees worldwide, of whonrenthan 4,000 have security clearances with the gb®ernment. We provide a broad
range of comprehensive, practical information tetbgy solutions by adapting emerging technologies laveraging our strengths in areas
such as:

* information assurance and secu e reengineering and systems migrat

¢ software development and integrat ¢ financial management and HR syste

e rapid hardware and software prototyp ¢ supply chain management and logis

* network systems design, integration and sug e litigation support systems and servit

* modeling and simulatio * intelligence analysis and support syste

e data warehousing and data min e gec-demographic and customer data anal

To augment our service offerings and enhance dlityatb adapt emerging technology, we created\dision and Solution Center,
an advanced technical facility for simulating andd@ling complex networks and systems. The Centablen clients to test alternatives and
select the most appropriate solution before inmgssignificant time and money.

Our primary clients are within the Department of@ese, the Department of Justice, the DepartmeStaik, the Federal Aviation
Administration, agencies in the U.S. intelligenoenenunity and other federal civilian agencies. Wewveel approximately 85.1% of our
revenue from contracts with the federal governniefiscal 2001 and 89.4% in the six months endedeDer 31, 2001. We also provide
marketing services and systems integration sert@ebents in the United Kingdom and the Republfidreland, from whom we derived 8.4
of our revenue in fiscal 2001 and 6.5% of our rexem the six months ended December 31, 2001. €hwadd for our services is created in
large measure by the increasingly complex netwsykiems and information environment in which gowsgnts and businesses operate, and
by their need to stay current with emerging tecbgglwhile increasing productivity and, ultimatepgrformance. We have maintained a very
high rate of repeat business. From fiscal 1997dodmber 31, 2001, we won approximately 94% (basedbtar value) of all competitively
awarded renewals of contracts for which we werdribembent supplier. We were a prime contracto8 6:19% of our engagements in fiscal
2001, and 91.3% in the six months ended Decemhez(®1l, and we have been providing services tangbeu of clients for more than 12
years.

Over the last four fiscal years, we have increamegdevenue at a compound annual growth rate, de8RLof 21% and our earnings
per share from continuing operations at a CAGR0862hrough focused internal initiatives and a g¢iloed program of acquisitions that hi
added to our capabilities and expanded our cliesetand service offerings. For the fiscal year élddee 30, 2001, we generated revenue of
$557.9 million and for the six months ended Decen®ie 2001, we generated revenue of $308.1 million.

Our headquarters are located in Arlington, Virgimiad we have operating offices and facilitiesver®0 locations throughout the
United States and four locations in the United Iioig.
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Industry Overview
The Federal Government Technology Services Market

The federal government is the largest buyer ofrméttion technology services in the world. The psgabfederal budget for fiscal
2003 projects an increase in government spendinigformation technology from $32.9 billion in 198® an estimated $52.1 billion in 2003,
representing a CAGR of 17%. According to the curegtministration, the increase in information temlbgy spending in the proposed budget
for fiscal 2003 will be used not only to improvethovernment’s overall performance within and agg®svernment agencies but also to
support three key priorities in the proposed budgemeland security, the war on terrorism and enoagrowth.

Government Contracts and Contracting

The federal procurement process for informatiohnetogy solutions has evolved dramatically overl#st decade, largely as a
result of efforts to streamline the procuremencpes. Traditionally, each government agency pusshgeods and services through single
contracts awarded after a lengthy competitive Iniggirocess in which prospective suppliers wouldvgubeparate proposals for particular
programs or elements of those programs. Thouglptbisess produced competitive outcomes, it oftengmted agencies from moving swit
to fulfill their technology needs. Through legisl&t and regulatory initiatives to enable governmegencies to adopt more commercial
purchasing practices, the federal government deeela variety of additional contracting methodshéligh traditional single-award
contracts are still widely used, government agenaie increasingly relying on indefinite deliveingefinite quantity, or ID/IQ, government-
wide acquisition contracts, or GWACSs, and Geneeal/t8es Administration, or GSA, contracts.

ID/1Q contracts establish preferred provider relaships with the federal government. These corgrgealify contractors to provide
specified goods and services to the issuing ageutygenerally do not obligate the agency to purelsasy particular amount of goods or
services. To procure goods or services under thieamd, the agency issues a task order to theadnoirthat details the agency’s needs.
Although agencies often administer ID/IQ contrdotstheir own procurement needs, they sometimesissntracts in which they administer
procurement for their own needs as well as thesieédther federal agencies. These contracts aerkias GWACs and are often awarde
multiple prime contractors, all of whom are therefmlified to supply the same goods and servicemyoagency of the federal government.
Qualified contractors often compete with each othasbtain task orders under GWACs. The lower aestuced procurement time and
increased flexibility of GWACs have made them pap@mong many agencies for large-scale procurenoéteshnology services. GSA
contracts, including contracts commonly known a®\&G8hedule contracts, are procurement contractsrestered by the GSA on behalf of
the entire federal government. Like GWACSs, any agesf the government can procure goods and serffiogsany contractor awarded a
GSA contract at the prices and terms stated iconéract.

Significant Industry Growth Trends

Several significant industry trends are expectecbtttinue to drive the growth of the federal tedbgg services market and our
business. Those factors include:

* increased spending on national defense, intelligemz homeland securi
* ongoing modernization of federal information teclogy systems; ar

* increasing government reliance on outsouri
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Increased spending on national defense, intelligence and homeland security . The change in presidential administrations aed#tent
terrorist incidents in the U.S. have stimulateditlaal funding for national defense, intelligeraned homeland security. In the proposed
budget for fiscal 2003, the administration is agkior total national defense spending of $379duillia 9% increase over the $348 billion
estimated for fiscal 2002. This increase is alledab fighting terrorism, enhancing intelligencengaing and analysis capabilities, and
sustaining current military readiness. The budgetdasts that national defense spending will ré&ddH billion in fiscal 2005, a growth rate
of almost 6% annually over defense spending irafi2002. In October 2001, the Government Elect®oaitd Information Technology
Association projected that defense-related infoilwnaiechnology spending would increase at a comg@nmmual growth rate of over 9%
between fiscal 2001 and 2005. As part of the Depamt of Defense’s process of transforming our arfoezks to perform their missions
more effectively, it is seeking to improve*GSR systems, or systems for command, control, conications, computers, intelligence,
surveillance, and reconnaissance, to improve ieed-tlecision-making on the battlefield. Increasedegnment attention to these priorities is
expected to increase demand for related technaogie

e Homeland Security . On September 18, 2001, Congress enacted a $4thteithergency supplemental appropriation bill. Of
that amount, $13 billion was immediately allocatethomeland defense, including combating terrowsm protecting critical
infrastructure. The administration’s budget foc&is2002 provided an additional $14 billion for t@me purposes. The
proposed budget for fiscal 2003 includes $37 billior homeland defense, of which $8 billion is uaéd in the Department of
Defense’s budget and the remaining $29 billiom@uded in other departments’ budgets. We belibaegome of this
increased funding will be used to improve inforroatassurance, including actions taken to improedrttegrity of informatiol
and information systems. In October 2001, the Gawent Electronics and Information Technology Asatien projected that
government spending for information assurance wimdtease more than 25% annually between fiscal 20@ 2005

* National Intelligence . Although budgets for federal intelligence ageneiesclassified, the most recently declassified
information indicated that the federal intelligernelget was at least $28 billion in fiscal year &9&hile budget numbers for
subsequent years have not been released, the pbfemteral budget for fiscal 2003 seeks to subisinincrease investment
in intelligence capabilities

* C*“ISR. According to Frost & Sullivan, a market researemfithe federal government spends approximatelytfion
annually on advanced systems and communicatiors f68R-related activities. Under the new administmatitne Department
of Defense is placing renewed emphasis on optimigystems that gather and communicate informati@utaan adversary for
real-time use on the battlefield. Among other atities, the U.S. Army effort to transition to a future combat systeat tielies
heavily on information is expected to lead to irmsed funding for CISR systems.

Ongoing Modernization of Federal Information Technology Systems . The federal government has invested heavilyrigelaproprietary
information systems and special purpose commumitsithetworks, which were often developed usingdstads unique to the government.
These systems have been expensive, difficult astlycm maintain because they are often incompatiith new technology. Political
pressures and budget constraints often demanthise systems perform with greater efficiency, Whequire ongoing improvements and
occasional wholesale replacement. The need to weptte government’s outdated technology infrastmecsystems is increasing demand for
information technology services.
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Increasing government reliance on outsourcing . Declining in-house technology expertise is maktrigcreasingly difficult for many
government agencies to efficiently manage the desigvelopment, implementation, use and suppdrtfofmation and network technology,
and agencies are increasingly relying on serviogigers to develop the complex solutions they negjuAccording to a July 2001 report from
the General Accounting Office, the federal governnpmirchased $13.4 billion of information technglagrvices from outside contractors in
fiscal year 2000, up from $3.7 billion in fiscalarel 990, representing a CAGR of 13.7%. Severatis@me expected to accelerate the
government’s reliance on service providers to Hudfiarger scope of its responsibilities. Thesatis include:

* Aging of federal workforce . In April 2001, the General Accounting Office esdited that approximately 31% of employees
working in 24 federal agencies, representing 98%xefcutive branch agencies (excluding the Postai&e the Federal
Reserve, the Tennessee Valley Authority and iiggetice agencies), in 1998 will be eligible to rekiye2006 and that
approximately half of those eligible employees aittually retire by the end of 2006. In a lateroepthe General Accounting
Office concluded that the federal government’s peive human capital challenges in the informatemmnhology sector are
eroding or threatening the ability of many agentiesarry out their missions economically, effidigrand effectively

* Increased governmental emphasis on competitive sourcing . In its efforts to improve the management andgreraince of
government, the current administration has madepetitive sourcing a major initiative of its managahagenda. Nearly half
of all federal employees perform tasks that ardihgavailable in the commercial marketplace. Adling to the current
administration, public-private competition for therformance of these tasks will create signifigamgrovements in
performance and cost savings exceeding 20%. Thierduadministration has committed to simplifyingdamproving the
procedures for evaluating public and private soajraed is simultaneously working with the privatetsr and federal
employee unions to find long-term solutions to refdhe current process governing these competitMfesbelieve these
actions are expected to lead to increased outswuaticommercial activities currently conductedtby federal governmer

Our Capabilities

We believe we are well positioned to meet the englvequirements of the information technology smrs marketplace because we
possess several important business strengthsdinglthe following:

Comprehensive Technical Skills

We possess comprehensive technical skills thatval®to deliver a wide array of information techomy services to our clients. Our
technical skills include systems engineering amegration, database design and development, netvagineering, hardware and software
prototyping, and modeling and simulation. To suppioe delivery of these services, we rely on oy20Q information technology specialists,
765 engineering and logistics specialists, 523 agtwpecialists, 410 functional scientific analyaitgl 82 signals analysts. In addition, our
program and project managers bring technical anthgement experience across our service offerings.

Extensive Client Experience and Commitment to Client Satisfaction

Since our founding 40 years ago, we have stre$seiinportance of client satisfaction, which is adamental building block of our
culture. As a result, we have been able to mairitaig-term relationships with our largest clientslalevelop an in-depth understanding of
their critical missions, business methods and m#dron technology systems. Our relationships withW.S. Army Communications and
Electronics Command,

35



Table of Contents

the U.S. Navy Military Sealift Command, the U.Sn#yr Chief of Staff, the Department of Justice, dmelW).S. Naval Supply Systems
Command have endured over 12 years. We believexgarience throughout our history positions usoimjpete successfully for new
business and contract rewards. For example, frecalfil997 to December 31, 2001, we won approxiym&#do (based on dollar value) of all
competitively awarded renewals of contracts forakhive were the incumbent supplier.

Highly Qualified Personnel and Management Team

We continue to emphasize the importance of attrgaind retaining the most highly qualified andlskilpersonnel in our industry.
As of January 23, 2002, over 78% of our U.S. empdsyheld government security clearances. Amongmptoyees with security clearanc
1,648 held Secret clearances, 1,100 held Top Selemtances. Of these employees, 325 also heldt@erGompartmented Information
clearances. These clearances are difficult to olaad provide a competitive advantage when we punsw business with the federal
government in high growth areas that require higlells of security and confidentiality. In addititmour talented employee base, our
executive management team has extensive expesepparting government and commercial clients aretatpng successful businesses.
With an average of 27 years of industry-relateceeigmce, including as military officers and ageeggcutives, our senior management
team’s knowledge, experience, reputations and cttae invaluable to the success and growth otompany. In addition, our senior
management team has an average tenure of 11 y#hmurcompany, providing strong continuity of nagement.

Our Services and Solutions
We provide the following information technology gees and solutions:

* managed network services and information assur
* systems integratio

* engineering services; a

* knowledge manageme

Managed Network Services and Information Assurance

We deliver global network services focused on thigre life cycle of special purpose networks thadlae the secure transmission of
classified and unclassified data. We design systhatssupport growth and change through the appmicaf flexible, scalable network
environments. We apply a range of analysis, modelimd simulation tools to assess current netwarkseaaluate the performance of desired
enhancements and upgrades to determine the masipaiape solution before implementation. Our prtgdnclude dedicated or shared
networks, virtual private networks, intranets, dimel Internet, for which projects we currently sugi@pproximately 3,600 customer-owned
nodes (a suite of hardware and software suppoatimgtwork connection) globally. We develop systanchitecture and engineering designs
and provide detailed network architectures, systgpesifications and implementation guidelines tigtoall phases of the network life cycle.
We furnish complete procurement support for acgginecessary materials, software, hardware anditsror global networks. We also
provide complete network implementation serviceaiad the world, including integration, installatjagasting and training. Finally, we
provide 24x7 network management services bothattcsites and through our Network Operations GenteNOC, in Chantilly, Virginia.

The NOC provides advanced network control, systerasagement and helpdesk operations to monitor amhge network assets globally.
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In connection with our managed network servicespffer information assurance solutions for bothediand wireless systems to
ensure that systems and information transmissimnsexure and maintain their integrity. We conduntérprise security assessments and
audits to determine compliance with security guited and potential intrusion risks and vulnerapil?/e develop information security and
business continuity plans, policies and procedinefyding disaster recovery plans. We also protidming, certification and regulatory
compliance services. In addition, we provide immetation and management strategy to meet intridgtection and response requirements,
and we provide advanced firewall and cryptograghigport. We also establish and maintain incidespoase teams to provide quick reaction
capability in the event of unauthorized intrusion.

Some of our significant programs in managed netwgerkices include:

*  Federal Aviation Administration Agency Data Telecommunications Network (ADTN) . We are the prime contractor for
the ADTN, which carries all of the FAA’s adminidtikee infrastructure data and video traffic, inclogifinancial and personnel
data and email. The FAA outsources the ADTN tongwae furnish all of the hardware and softwareasfiructure, informatic
assurance and network operation monitoring, manageend helpdesk support for approximately 100€@@loyees of the
FAA and Coast Guard worldwid

* U.S. Customs Service . We provide comprehensive information assurancetaathre support to the U.S. Customs Service.
Our work includes developing policies, proceduned systems architectures and providing certificatiod accreditation
services. In addition, we provide intrusion moririgrand incident response support, education aicirtig, and program
management for the information assurance efforte@fCustoms Servic

* U.S. Navy Computer Incident Response Team . We established, staffed and continue to supporttise Navy Computer
Incident Response Team, or NAVCIRT, located atNhey Fleet Information Warfare Center in Norfolkirginia. NAVCIRT
monitors Navy networks on land and at sea for uraiged intrusions and provides immediate suppadtanalytical assistan
on a 24x7 basis. NAVCIRT is capable of handlingidenrange of activities, including intrusion detent incident recovery
and investigations, virus control, fault analysisl ahe issuance of security advisories to Navy agdempusers

* U.S. Air Force Global Seismic Telemetry Network (GSTN) . We support the GSTN, serving both the U.S. Air Eand
Sandia National Laboratory. GSTN monitors all glabarth disturbances for compliance with nucleat b&an treaty
requirements and is a significant resource for giimjing earthquakes and possible tests of nucleapans. In support of the
GSTN, we provide global command and control suppmtwork engineering and 24x7 network managemmsshhalpdesk
support to 24 locations located across every centiin the world

Systems Integration

We deliver systems integration services, includ@gngineering and modernizing existing systemsdaveloping new systems to
meet the demands of our clients for operationatieficy and cost effectiveness. We combine newntelcigies with existing systems,
integrate hardware and software from multiple sesir@nd integrate previously separate systemsimgéessystems. In supporting clients, we
apply our simulation and modeling expertise andwety of proprietary and licensed tools to alldiemnts to visualize choices in processes
and systems before committing to a particular aofsaction. We enhance system productivity usimgpsoprietary RENovate reengineer
methodology, which extracts core business logimfexisting systems and preserves it for migratiombre modern environments. We also
plan, design, implement and manage systems inteiodadidress specific technical or business needayMf our systems integration efforts
include “web enabling” existing systems and busra®cesses.
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Some of our significant programs in systems intégmnanclude:

U.S. Army Materiel Command . We automated financial management functionshferd.S. Army Materiel Command, or
AMC, with our proprietary RM-Online integrated fingial management system. RM-Online is a secure;enalbled system
used to track and manage AMC’s multi-billion buddg@#M-Online tracks financial information and proésdinancial reports,
automatically using historical data to predict fetfinancial outcomes. It contains secure linksifidormation exchange. The
Army Test and Evaluations Command and a nationalligence agency have selected RM-Online as firgncial
management system because of its functionalitgcéffeness and ease of use. We are currently ipriieess of implementing
these systems for these clier

Department of Defense Joint Warfare System (JWARS) . We are one of two prime contractors working as tomplex,
object-oriented theater-level warfare analysis sintilation tool. JWARS is employed by all of thenad services, the Joint
Staff and the Office of the Secretary of Defenggdommander in Chief course of action analysis@ladning and force
assessment. JWARS also is used to simulate ayafiebunter-terrorism and operations other thanseanarios. JWARS
provides users with the capability to rapidly defobjectives, evaluate threats, address forcetstaupequirements, evaluate
logistical impacts and conduct feasibility assesssef various courses of actic

Defense Advanced Research Projects Agency (DARPA) . We were recently awarded a contract to providgmm
management and technical expertise to DARPA’s imfdion Technology Office aimed at freeing DARPAC#entists and
technical personnel to focus on their primary noissif researching and developing new technology eWect that our team
will provide assistance in managing individual piag budgets and complete technology assessmengswgbroducts and
technologies of interest to DARPA. We will assifARPA in managing conferences and industry briefiwgsldwide.

Republic of Ireland Census . We are providing a comprehensive solution for tineent Irish Republic census, including
designing and printing census forms; scanning aading collected data; and providing computer systand software that
will process responses. The system uses technelogtee areas of intelligent and optical charatepgnition and data
processing to bring significant efficiency to trensus proces

Engineering Services

Our engineering services include designing, dewetppnd integrating new systems, reverse engingelofer systems and
performance testing of systems. We providd€R services in support of combat forces, as welWaapons, electronic signals and sensor
systems engineering. We offer a range of logistios supply chain management functions to a numibaremts, including the U.S. Navy
fleet operations. We support programs to extenddéhneice lives of aging aircraft. We furnish theSUintelligence community with prototype
development, software design and systems integragovices. In connection with our engineering iseis; we make available a broad array
of modeling and simulation tools and services.

Some of our significant programs in engineeringises include:

U.S. Army Communications and Electronics Command . We deliver a wide range of scientific and enginegsupport to
the Intelligence and Information Warfare Directestincluding materials acquisition, systems deaiughlogistics engineerin
We provide rapid hardware and software prototypsudtware development and systems engineering
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integration of electronic warfare and sensor syst#rat collect and analyze intelligence data. Weslig prototypes of
systems and solutions critical to the Army’s conéid evolution toward more agile, versatile anddiypieployable forces.
This includes systems for improved intelligencdexilon through networked sensors, electronic cdro@pabilities to counter
both conventional and new cyber weapons, and eeldanformation warfare systern

U.S. Navy Office of Naval Research . We deliver the engineering services for the renagtet identification system
developed under the Congressionaligndated Geotrack Program. Geotrack providessacare environment, the capability
furnish precise position locations and asset camdibformation. We are integrating sensors with @eotrack system to
conduct remote monitoring, including location amddition of stored military ordnance and halon &edn canisters. The
resulting system will reduce the cost, and, monadartantly, the human and environmental risk of ngamgithese dangerous
items.

U.S. Navy Naval Research Laboratory . We are supporting the Tactical Electronic Warfarésion’s Central Target
Simulator. In so doing, we define, simulate and@ai@ known threat systems and systems under dewelat and support
technology intended to counter these threats. \llizaubur experience and expertise in informatiechinology, electronic
warfare and simulation modeling to help the Navigarce its ability to protect the U.S. Fle

U.S. Air Force . Under a number of contracts with the Air Force,deéiver engineering services to support extendiegg t
useful lives of aging aircraft, including the B&;141, C-130, C-5, KC-135 andFaircraft. Where spare and replacement
are no longer available from the original supplieve reverse engineer those parts and producdaitet data package that 1
Air Force can use to acquire new inventc

Knowledge Management

We deliver knowledge management solutions thatlerdients to digitize, organize and access laigames of information
efficiently and cost effectively. We design, futmiand operate web-based and client/server enterpitke systems that incorporate advanced
technologies in the areas of database managemmegirig, document management, workflow, work proceasagement and groupware. (
knowledge management systems provide readily abdesmtabases and data warehouses with advantedetideval capability to improve
productivity and user support for clients with nipli user locations. Our knowledge management Bystaanage data and document cap
conversion of data to digital format, Internet amglanet document publishing, correspondence tragkireedom of Information Act and
declassification process management, electrongecrimdtion distribution, action tracking and work pess automation for our clients.

We help clients define their needs through requénets analysis, simulation and modeling, and strafg@gnning. We assist clients
the development of knowledge management policidgpancedures and in selecting and developing pilstems. We utilize business process
re-engineering, resource planning and systems eagig to develop specific systems.

Some of our significant programs in knowledge mamnagnt include:

Department of Justice (litigation) . We provide sophisticated litigation support systéha have enabled the Department of
Justice to effectively manage databases of ovenillidn pages of documents. Our systems enable meat of Justice
personnel to retrieve information across a numbeliferent locations for use in case preparatiod eeal-time graphic display
in court for over 200 cases, including the Winsi@ses (stemming from the savings and loan crisid)lae Navy's A-12
aircraft litigation (related to the terminationtbf mult-billion dollar
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development contract for the Navy’s A-12 aircrafthe support, provided in part through our propgtADIIS automated
document imaging and indexing system, helped thg/ldad Department of Justice win a decision inARE? case that
involves allegations of damages in excess of $bbil

* Department of Justice (debt collection) . We developed an automated debt management systieah ttee Collection
Litigation Automated Support System, or CLASS, ¢$gist the Department of Justice’s efforts in calfecamounts owed by
delinquent student loans holders and Superfundeetiaolluters. CLASS tracks and calculates the arhand distribution of
debts referred to Department of Justice as thdecmir of last resort.” The system also tracksdbiéection litigation process
by generating legal documents containing infornmafa courts and attorneys. CLASS is installedaratiide at U.S.
Attorney's offices, as well as offices of private counsel tire Department of Justic

e U.S. Navy Naval Supply Systems Command . We reengineered the system for updating officidicgalirectives when we
developed the Quality Automated Document SystenQWADS. QUADS integrates off-the-shelf software gwots, hardware
and custom interfaces and utilizes the Internetferconnectivity needed to support document tistion and management
across virtually every Navy base, naval centeri{sagcthe Naval Surface Warfare Center) and poititfearound the world

Vision and Solution Center

We created our Vision and Solution Center to supiher development of technical solutions acrosssewvice offerings and enhar
our ability to adapt emerging technology. The Ceigt@n advanced technical facility that enablesexisting and potential clients to define,
model, simulate and visualize complex changes ahdrecements to their technical environments. Ogitnengineers in our Vision and
Solution Center use our proprietary RENovate res®ying methodology and simulation tools to asaadsmodel clients’ current technical
environments. Once a client’s environment has Ineetdeled, we can make changes and additions tdiémt’s simulated network
environment. At the Vision and Solution Centereets are invited to personally interact with thsémulated technical environments and
visualize the alternative enhancements or chargssare evaluating.

Our Vision and Solution Center is a very effectigsource for our clients as they examine complexghs or enhancements to their
technical environments such as installing new safénapplications, implementing enhanced networkitoong and security tools, or
designing network configuration changes. By simotag change or enhancement to a client’s techeivaronment prior to a full-scale
implementation, our clients are better able to ss#ge advantages of alternative solutions for teehnical needs and thereby reduce the
and expenses associated with deploying an inadegoattion.

Our Growth Strategy

Our goal is to continue our history as a leadirayjater of information technology services and solut to the federal government
and other clients. Our strategy to reach that gmdlides the following:

e Sustain and expand our core business . Through a focused effort to provide outstandingrdliservice, we seek to expand
our core business by winning all recompeted cotgrand cross-selling to existing clients. We balieur deep understanding
of our client’s objectives, business processestacithical requirements will help us achieve thialg@/e have demonstrated
the
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value of this understanding by winning approxima@1% (based on dollar value) of all competitivalyarded renewals of
contracts for which we were the incumbent supptiering the period from fiscal 1997 through Decenfie 2001. Our
sensitivity to client needs also enables us tosesadl our other capabilities, bringing new tecluggl and solutions to existing
clients, thereby expanding our overall businesatiaiship.

e Target opportunities and win new business in high-growth areas . We seek to identify the most attractive oppotigasiin
high-growth areas such as managed network seniidesmation assurance and national intelligenag match our skills with
client needs. Our centralipanaged business development program focuses wtifyiteg and qualifying new opportunities tl
either represent significant revenue potentialagsgss strategic significance. After identifyingsi opportunities, our busine
development team competes for new business byibfdginlg our record of past performance and ourretdgy solutions and
capabilities that are tailored to the cl’'s needs

* Continue to pursue strategic acquisitions . We intend to continue to pursue strategic acquoisitito expand our service
offerings, increase our base of federal governrokents and deepen our relationships with existiints. Since 1992, we
have successfully acquired and integrated 18 bssésewhich have brought us into new growth areets &8st managed netwc
services and the intelligence community. We oftawehseveral potential acquisition candidates urelgew, and we intend to
continue to pursue candidates that broaden andleomept our existing skills and expand our cliergeh

Business Development

Our business development group’s objectives aigetatify, qualify and win competitive new businegsportunities that either
represent significant revenue potential or posstategic significance. Our centrally-managed bessrdevelopment group is staffed with
personnel who have established relationships ilteat markets that we have targeted as havingtirpotential.

From fiscal 1997 through December 31, 2001, weahadmpetitive contract win rate for new businessasured in terms of the ra
of dollars won to dollars bid, of 53%. From fisd®97 through December 31, 2001, we won approxim&é¥o (based on dollar value) of all
competitively awarded renewals of contracts foralihive were the incumbent supplier. We periodicafigess the size of the new business
pipeline required to support our growth objectiaes adjust the pipeline based on historical dathidmnd win rates. Our business
development group, working with executive managemead senior technologists, is responsible foinfillthe pipeline with opportunities that
we believe we can win. We use a rigorous intereailew process, led by senior executives, to séthecopportunities that offer the highest
probability of success.

We also have a centrally-managed federal sales tdarae mission is to generate task orders on egigitbvernment contracts. The
team focuses on selling new services to curreantdj expanding our market share within curreentlorganizations and capturing business
with new clients.
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Acquisitions

We employ a highly disciplined process to evaluhgestrategic, financial, operational and legakaspof acquisitions. Since 1992,
we have completed 18 strategic acquisitions. Edcluoacquired businesses has been integrateaumtorganization in order to enhance our
experience and technical capabilities and expandl@ant base. The following table provides infotioa regarding some of our significant

acquisitions.
Calendar
Year Acquired business Business description

2001 Digital Systems International Corporation Network systems design and integration, financiahagemen
and HR systems, and reengineering and systemstioigfar
the Department of Defense and federal civilian ages

2000 Federal services business Network systems design and integration for the Btepent of

of N.E.T. Federal, Inc Defense, federal civilian agencies and intelligedi@nts

2000 Century Technologies, Incorporated (CENTECH) Network systems design and integration and soft
development and integration for the Department effieldse and
federal civilian agency clien

2000 XEN Corporation Software development and integration and engingesdémvices
for intelligence client:

1998 QuesTech, Inc. Rapid hardware and software prototyping, intellgeanalysis
and information assurance for the Department obbBbsf and
intelligence client:

1997 Government Systems, Inc. Network systems design and integration and infoione
assurance for the Department of Defense and fedistthn
agencie

1997 Systems Engineering Division of Statistica, | Simulation and modeling for the Department of Dek

1996 Sunset Resources, Inc. Rapid hardware and software prototyping and supipin
management for Department of Defense cli

1996 IMS Technologies, Inc. Litigation support systems and services and datalaasing
for the Department of Defense and federal civibgencie:

1995 Automated Sciences Group, Inc. Engineering services, software development andjiat®on for
the Department of Defense and federal civilian ages

1993 Federal government business divisions of SofTech, Software development and integration, simulatioth modeling

Inc. and reengineering and systems migration for Departrof
Defense client
1992 American Legal Systems Corporati Litigation support systems and services for comméuotients
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Our acquisitions in the network systems area ifustour use of strategic acquisitions to enter maukets and expand our reach
within existing markets. We first entered the masthgetwork services business with our 1997 acdpistf Government Systems, Inc., a
provider of network systems design and integragiod information assurance to clients including@iepartment of Defense and federal
civilian agencies. After integrating this acquisitiinto our operations, we built upon this platfdmgnpurchasing Century Technologies,
Incorporated (CENTECH) in March 2000. The CENTEQGidwsition added full-service technology solutidosnetwork systems and
electronic benefits transfer systems. In Decembé02we acquired the federal services business©BfiNFederal, Inc., a subsidiary of
net.com, and in November 2001 we acquired Digiyait&ns International Corporation, both of whichtier expanded both our client base
and our network services capabilities.

We are continuously evaluating acquisition oppdties, and, at any given time, may be in varioagss of due diligence or
preliminary discussions with respect to a numbegyaiéntial transactions. From time to time, we raaier into non-binding letters of intent,
but we are not currently subject to any definitagreement with respect to any transaction materialir operations or otherwise so far
advanced in any discussions as to make a transantiterial to our operations reasonably certain.

Clients

We provide information technology services to Lh&ional defense, intelligence and civilian agesiciereign governments, state
and local governments, and commercial enterpriagbe six months ended December 31, 2001, we el@d@pproximately 89.4% of our
revenue from federal government clients, 2.4% fetate and local government clients and 8.2% fromcommercial clients, which are
primarily based in the U.K.

Our biggest client is the Department of Defensemfivhom we derived approximately 63.5% of our rexeim the six months ended
December 31, 2001. We derived approximately 11.6%uprevenue in the six months ended Decembe?@d1 from the Department of
Justice. These Departments comprise a substantidber of separate agencies, offices or departmeats, of which typically exercises
independent decision-making and contracting authdie believe our contract base among those atisganizations is well diversified. In
fiscal 2001, our domestic operations provided sewifor more than 2,300 task orders issued foroxpately 396 separate contracts, and we
estimate that no single contract or task orderausa for more than 9.5% of our revenue duringsikenonths ended December 31, 2001.

The following departments and agencies represemtedss section of our client base during fisc@l12@nd the six months ended
December 31, 2001:

Department of Defense and intelligence agencies

Office of the Secretary of Defen Defense Advanced Research Projects Age
U.S. Air Force Defense Information Systems Ager

U.S. Army Defense Logistics Agenc

U.S. Navy Multiple intelligence and classified agenc
U.S. Marine Corp: National Guard Burea

Federal civilian departments and agencies

Department of Commerc Department of the Treasu
Department of Educatic Environmental Protection Ageni
Department of Justic Federal Aviation Administratio
Department of Stat U.S. Coast Guar
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Backlog

We define backlog, which is comprised of funded anfiinded backlog, as our estimate of the remaifihge revenue from
existing signed contracts, assuming the exercisdl options relating to those contracts. Thisraate includes revenue for solutions that we
believe will be provided in the future under therie of executed, multiplaward contracts in which we are not the sole pmvitheaning the
the client could turn to our competitors to fulfile contract. It also includes an estimate of mereefrom ID/IQ contracts. Our backlog does
not include any future revenue from our internagiasperations.

We define funded backlog as the portion of backtwgvhich funding currently is appropriated andighted to us under the contract
by the purchasing agency or otherwise authorizegdgment to us by the client upon completion epacified portion of work, less revenue
previously recognized. Our funded backlog doesmdude the full potential value of our contradiecause Congress often appropriates 1
for a particular program or contract on a yearlgoarterly basis, even though the contract mayfealperformance over a number of years.

We define unfunded backlog as the net of the ttinated potential value of our contracts, lesslifug to date. Our assessment
contracts potential value is based upon factors such &gritial trends, competition and budget availabiliye review unfunded backlog o
quarterly basis to determine if any adjustmentsamessary.

Our estimated backlog as of December 31, 2001 wa&l$ billion, of which $307.8 million was fundeakforders we believed to be
firm. Our total backlog as of December 31, 2000 #R275 billion, of which $339.1 million were furdierders. The primary source of our
backlog is contracts with the U.S. government.

Patents, Trademarks, Trade Secrets and Licenses

We hold one patent in the United States and orenpat Canada. While we believe our patents ari@ vak do not believe that our
business depends on patent protection in any rahtealy.

We claim copyright, trademark and proprietary rigimt each of our proprietary computer software daid products and their related
documentation. We hold registered trademarks andcgemarks in the United States and in other adesitprimarily the United Kingdom.
All of our registered trademarks and service manky be renewed indefinitely. In addition, we assegyright in essentially all of our
electronic and hard-copy publications, our propmngsoftware and data products and in software nwdyte at the expense of the U.S.
government. Copyrights can be maintained in the fhi/Sup to 75 years. Because most of our busimegdves providing services to
government entities, our operations generally atesnbstantially dependent upon obtaining and/dntaming copyright or trademark rights,
although our international operations make usé@dé protections and benefit from them as discdtois in competition. We also have
agreements that give us the right to distribute mater software, data and other products owned lhgrst and to receive income from those
products. As a systems integrator, it is importaat we maintain access to software, data and ptsdwpplied by these third parties, and we
generally have experienced little difficulty in dgiso. The durations of these agreements vary diogcpto the terms of the agreements
themselves.

We have a number of trade secrets that contriloubeit success and competitive distinction, and meeavor to protect the secrecy
of this proprietary information. While we believgat retaining continuing protection of our tradersés and confidential information is
important, we are not materially dependent on greciic trade secret or group of trade secrets.
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Competition

We participate in a highly competitive and fragneehiarket. Our competitors vary by line of businessl range from small
businesses to multi-billion dollar corporations.r@dmary competitors include Accenture, Affiliat€@bmputer Services, Booz-Allen &
Hamilton, Inc., Computer Sciences Corporation, Etetc Data Systems, Lockheed Martin, Northrop Gmam, Raytheon, Science
Applications International Corporation and Titanr@aration. We compete in this market by demonstgatiistinction in past performance,
offering high-value solutions, highly-qualified iastry experts and experience-based understanditig @lient’'s mission.

Employees

As of January 23, 2002, we had approximately 5d&fe employees. Our U.S.-based companies emplayeximately 5,300
people, including approximately 4,100 employees/8%6, with government security clearances and an@88 who have processed
documentation to obtain a clearance. Among our eyegs with security clearances, 1,648 held Set@atances and 1,100 held Top Secret
security clearances. Of these employees, 325 alsoSensitive Compartmented Information clearan®es.U.K.-based subsidiary employs
approximately 276 employees. We have no unionirepl@yees and do not have any collective bargaiagrgements. We believe we have
been successful in retaining our employees by iofferompetitive salary structures, attractive ina@ncompensation and benefits programs,
career growth opportunities and technical and lesidle training, flexible schedules and the oppdtiuto participate in projects of high
national priority, often in classified environmerifge consider our relations with employees to badgo

Facilities

We have maintained our corporate headquarterslingdon, Virginia since 1972. We have a five-yesade for 90,000 square feet at
1100 North Glebe Road. Our other major officeslacated in Chantilly, Virginia in two adjacent hdiihgs totaling 213,000 square feet, with
leases expiring in 2009. In addition, we leasetal tof 1.2 million square feet in 95 offices thrdwogit the U.S. No lease extends beyond
November 2009. We do not own any real propertyth®fleased amount, 378,000 square feet, or 33pajdsfor directly by our clients. W
also maintain 14 SCIFs, or Sensitive Compartmehtiamation Facilities, comprising approximately,@00 square feet in the U.S. These
reinforced rooms of varying size, protected elattrally, and restricted to special classified “né@#now” program access. A total of 30
facilities or offices are cleared for top secratdiiing and storage; 11 others are cleared for sbaralling and storage.

Our United Kingdom headquarters consist of 21,@fi(aee feet, with a lease expiring in 2013, in Lamdengland. We lease other
offices in Birmingham and Cheshire, England, anthBigrgh, Scotland. Together with the London offitesse leases comprise a total of
25,300 square feet.

Legal Proceedings

On September 27, 2000, we filed an appeal withAtimeed Services Board of Contract Appeals challeggive denial of our claim
for breach of contract damages from the UnitedeStBtefense Information Systems Agency. Our appeissdamages arising from the
Defense Information Systems Agency'’s breach ofgarement with us pursuant to which the Departmébefense was required to conduct
all electronic data interchanges (which can bediyoanderstood to mean e-commerce) during the gdram September 2, 1994 through
April 22, 1998 exclusively through certified valadded networks, such as the network maintainedibybolly-owned subsidiary, CACI,
INC.-FEDERAL. In its decision of March 22, 2001thre companion case of GAP Instrument CorporaticddB8A No. 51658 (2001), the
Armed Services Board of Contract Appeals held tiatGovernment’s failure to conduct all electromiéta interchanges exclusively through
certified value-added networks constituted a bredaontract. We are working with the Defense Infation Systems Agency to develop
issues related to damages for negotiation.
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MANAGEMENT

The following table provides information about @xecutive officers and directors as of Februarg0®2.

Name Age Position

J.P. London (3 64 Chairman, President and Chief Executive Off

L. Kenneth Johnso 55 President, U.S. Operations, CACI, IMFEDERAL

Stephen L. Waechter 51 Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officéreasurer and Director of
Business Service

Gregory R. Bradfort 53 Chief Executive, CACI Limited, and President, Infation Solution:

Jeffrey P. Elefante 55 Executive Vice President, General Counsel, Segresad Director of
Contract and Administrative Servic

Peter A. Derow (1 61 Director

Richard L. Leatherwood (1) (. 62 Director

Warren R. Phillips (1) (3 61 Director

Charles P. Revaile (2) (: 68 Director

Glenn Ricart (1 52 Director

Vincent L. Salvatori (2 69 Director

William B. Snyder (1) (2) (3 72 Director

Richard P. Sullivan (2) (z 68 Director

John M. Toups (2) (= 76 Director

(1) Member of the audit committee
(2) Member of the compensation committee

(3) Member of the executive committee

Dr. J. P. Londorwas named our Chairman of the Board in April 1396.was elected our President and Chief Executifie€fin 1984 and
has been one of our directors since 1981. From 1®&284, Dr. London was President of our largestrating division. From 1979 to 1982,
Dr. London was one of our Executive Vice Presidelatem 1977 to 1979, Dr. London served as one oSamior Vice Presidents; from 1975
to 1977, he was one of our Vice Presidents. Drdoons currently a director and member of the EXeelCommittee of the Armed Forces
Communications and Electronics Association and feamerly a member of the Senior Advisory Boardha Northern Virginia Technology
Council, the Board of Advisors of the George Wagton University School of Business and Public Mamagnt and the Board of Advisors
of Marymount University. Dr. London holds a B.S.Engineering from the United States Naval AcadeamyM.S. in Operations Research
from the United States Naval Postgraduate Schabbaboctorate in Business Administration, with idistion, from the George Washington
University School of Business and Public Managemgatly in his career, in the 1960s, Dr. Londorvedras a Naval Aviator; he now holds
the rank of Captain, U.S. Navy Reserve (Retired).
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L. Kenneth Johnscwas named President, U.S. Operations of CACI, INREDERAL upon the merger of CACI, Inc. with CACI, G\
FEDERAL in April 2001. From August 1999 to April @0, Mr. Johnson was President of CACI, Inc. FrorbrbBary 1998 to August 1999,
Mr. Johnson was employed by Federal Sources,dné/ashington, D.C.-based consulting firm speciadjzn analysis and assessment of the
federal information technology industry. From Oaptk990 to February 1998, he was employed by Traoterprise Solutions (formerly
Cordant, Inc.), a complex systems integrator, mgidienior vice president positions for new businkess&lopment and federal programs
before becoming President and Chief Executive ©ffiPreviously, he was the Senior Vice Presidemrofjram Development at PRC, Inc.,
an information technology services provider. A graig of the U.S. Military Academy at West Point, Nlwhnson served with the U.S. Army
Infantry in Vietnam as a military advisor.

Stephen L. Waechtaras named Executive Vice President, Chief Finar@ffiter, Treasurer and Director of Business Sewim April 1999.
From 1997 to 1999, Mr. Waechter was Executive \Roesident, Chief Financial Officer and TreasureGdfSI Corp., a provider of integrat
information technology solutions. From 1996 to 199IF. Waechter was Senior Vice President, ChiefRaial Officer and Treasurer of The
Vincam Group, Inc., a professional employers orgation. From 1993 to 1996, Mr. Waechter was Seviioe President, Chief Financial
Officer and Treasurer of Applied Bioscience Intdimzal, Inc., a contract research organizationni®74 to 1993, Mr. Waechter held a
number of senior management positions at Geneeakiid Company, most recently as Vice Presidemiaiée, with General Electric
Information Services.

Gregory R. Bradfordvas named Chief Executive of CACI Limited in 206@om 1985 to 2000, he was Managing Director of CABiited.
Since 1994, he has been President of our Inform&gadutions Group. Mr. Bradford was one of our BExee Vice Presidents from 1987 to
1993, one of our Senior Vice Presidents from 1986387 and one of our Vice Presidents from 1983&6. He was our European Legal
Counsel from 1983 to 1985 and one of our DirectéiSontracts from 1979 to 1983.

Jeffrey P. Elefantwas named our Director of Contract and Administetervices in 1998, Executive Vice President id6l%nd our
General Counsel and Secretary in 1992. From 1999%6, Mr. Elefante was one of our Senior Vice llersts. Mr. Elefante joined us in
1983 as Director of Litigation, and between 1988 24887 he was the manager of our market informatroducts group. From 1987 through
1991, Mr. Elefante was Assistant General Counsgfioi2 joining us, Mr. Elefante was a partner of [t firm of Keck, Mahin and Cate.

Peter A. Derovhas been a director since August 2000. From 1988%@, Mr. Derow was President and Chief ExecuBficer of
Institutional Investor, Inc., a publisher of infaation serving the financial services industry. Blerow is also director and Non-Executive
Vice Chairman of Dice, Inc., a career site serthgyinformation technology industry, 101 Commurimas, LLC, a publisher serving the
information technology industry, Globalspec Incsjte serving engineers, and MediaMap, Inc., asstging journalists and the public
relations industry.

Richard L. Leatherwoohas been a director since 1996. From 1986 to 1981, eatherwood was President and Chief Executiffec€ of
CSX Equipment Group. In 1985, Mr. Leatherwood wase\Chairman of Chessie System Railroads and Sedbdéi@m 1983 to 1985, Mr.
Leatherwood was President and Chief Executive &ffaf Texas Gas Resources Group. Mr. Leatherwoodriently a director of Dominion
Resources, Inc., an integrated gas and electripaom Mr. Leatherwood was formerly a director ofnftinion Energy, Inc.

Dr. Warren R. Phillipshas been a director since 1974. From 1999 thro0§h,Dr. Phillips was Chairman of the Board of USA
Welcome.com, a web-based information source farivdtional visitors. Since 1996, Dr. Phillips hagib Chief Executive Officer of
International Initiative, Inc., a personal congudtinitiative. Since 1993,
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Dr. Phillips has been Executive Vice Chairman, €Bbeecutive Officer and Secretary/Treasurer of Mang Moscow, Inc. (formerly, Soviet
American Venture Initiatives (US-USSR)), a 501(¢)¥8ucational and training venture. Since 1974 Hbillips has been Professor of
Government and Politics at the University of MandaDr. Phillips is also a director of AMBO, LLCn&lbanian, Macedonian and Bulgar
Oil Company, LLC.

Charles P. Revoilavas elected a director in 1993 following the cosidu of his seven-year tenure as our Senior ViesiBent, General
Counsel and Secretary in 1992. From 1971 to 1985Révoile was Vice President and General Courfsétanwick Corporation. Currently,
Mr. Revoile is a legal and business consultantanthdependent investor.

Dr. Glenn Ricarthas been a director since 1998. Since 1999, DarRias been Executive Vice President and Chiefifi@ogy Officer of
CenterBeam, Inc., a managed service provider ofused computing. From 1995 to 1999, Dr. Ricart ®anior Vice President and Chief
Technology Officer of Novell, Inc, a network softigaand directory software company. Dr. Ricart wasierly a director of SCO, Inc., a
vendor of Unix operating systems, EDUCOM, a corigortof educational institutions organized to advatie use of technology in higher
education, BITNET, a network of higher educatioamadl research institutions, and the National Assiociaf State Universities and Land
Grant Colleges. Dr. Ricart is currently a direabFirst USA Financial Services, Inc., a providécredit card processing and related finar
services.

Vincent L. Salvatorhas been a director since 1998. Mr. Salvatori isecully a director of GMSI, Inc. From 1992 to 1994, Salvatori was
Chairman of the Board of Dynamic Engineering, lanig from 1992 to 1998, Mr. Salvatori was CEO ahdi@nan of the Board of
QuesTech, Inc. From 1968 to 1984, Mr. Salvatori Wige President of Quest Research, a company th&gunded in 1968. Mr. Salvatori
was formerly a director of the Washington Chapfahe Association for Corporate Growth.

William B. Snydehas been a director since 1996. Since 1993, Mrd&riyas been General Partner of Merastar Partimited Partnership.
From 1985 to 1993, Mr. Snyder was Chairman and{@hiecutive Officer of GEICO Corporation. Mr. Snyds a director of Doctors’
Preferred, Inc (formerly Phillips Publishers, Inc).

Richard P. Sullivathas been a director since 1996. Since 1997, Mlivanlhas been President and Chief Executive Qffié&argill Detroit
Corporation, a machine builder. From 1992 to 198i,Sullivan was Chairman and Chief Executive Gffiof The J.L. Wickham Co., Inc., a
machine builder. Mr. Sullivan was formerly a dicbdf Equitable Bancorporation, a bank holding camp Monumental Corporation, an
insurance company, Noxell Corporation, a cosmetiaufacturer and PRC, Inc., an information technplogmpany, PharmakKinetics Labs,
Inc., a drug testing company, and the National Aisdimn of Manufacturers Trade Association.

John M. Toupthas been a director since 1993. Mr. Toups is iref Halifax Corporation, a technical servicesnpany, NVR, Inc., a
home builder, and GTSI Corp., a provider of intégglainformation technology solutions. Mr. Toupsiso a trustee of INOVA Health
System, a not-for profit hospital system, and aator of the Professional Services Council. Mr. @@was formerly a director of PRC, Inc.,
an information technology services company, Em@arporation, an industrial products company, Wegtan Bancorp, a bank holding
company, Washington Gas Light Company, a publittyiServing natural gas, and Guest Services, d &@vices company.
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PRINCIPAL STOCKHOLDERS

The following table provides information with regpéo the beneficial ownership of our common staslof December 31, 2001, ¢
as adjusted to give effect to the sale by us oBlaes of our common stock offered under thisgecisis, by:

e each person or entity known to us to own beneficfale percent or more of our common stc
e each of our director

* our chief executive officer and our four other axae officers; an

e all of our directors and executive officers as augr

Beneficial ownership is determined in accordandd wie rules of the SEC. The persons named irtdbis have sole voting and
investment power with respect to all shares of comstock shown as beneficially owned by them, stitiecommunity property laws whe
applicable and subject to the information contaimetthe footnotes to this table. Shares of comntookssubject to options currently
exercisable or exercisable within 60 days followihg date of this table are deemed outstandingdomputing the share ownership and
percentage of the person holding such optionsalnot deemed outstanding for computing the pé&aigerof any other person. The number
of shares of common stock outstanding as of the affathis table, December 31, 2001, was 23,496 AB4hares included below under
“Right to Acquire” represent shares subject to anding stock options currently exercisable or eisable within 60 days following the date
of this table.

Shares beneficially owned Percent beneficially owned
Right to Before the After the
Outstanding acquire Total offering offering
J. P. Londor 560,00( 170,00( 730,00( 3.1% 2.6%
L. Kenneth Johnso — — — — —
Stephen L. Waecht: 7,00C 40,00( 47,00( * *
Gregory R. Bradfort 30,00( — 30,00(¢ * *
Jeffrey P. Elefant — — — — —
Peter A. Derov 10,00¢( 5,00( 15,00( * *
Richard L. Leatherwood (: 17,00( 5,00( 22,00( * *
Warren R. Phillips 212 1,00 1,21z * *
Charles P. Revaoil 32,17¢ 5,00( 37,17¢ * *
Glenn Ricart 2,00( 5,00( 7,00(C * *
Vincent L. Salvator 1,00(¢ 5,00( 6,00( * *
William B. Snyder 10,00( 5,00( 15,00( * *
Richard P. Sullivai 3,00(¢ 5,00( 8,00(C * *
John M. Toup: 6,00( 5,00( 11,00(¢ * *
All directors and executive officers as a group fiedsons 678,38¢ 251,00( 929,38t 3.£% 3.2%
* Less than one perc¢

1) Includes 4,000 shares held by Mr. Leatherwsadlife

49



Table of Contents

DESCRIPTION OF CAPITAL STOCK

We are authorized to issue 40,000,000 shares s élacommon stock and 10,000,000 shares of prefstoek. As of December 31,
2001, there were 23,496,194 shares of common staistanding, held of record by 587 stockholdersd, mm shares of preferred stock
outstanding.

Our certificate of incorporation once authorizedasssue up to 40,000,000 shares of class B constumk, but there are no shares
of class B common stock outstanding, and we alemger permitted to issue any shares of class Brommstock. Accordingly, unless we
state otherwise, references to our common stockedgeences to our class A common stock.

Common Stock

Holders of common stock are entitled to one votespare for each share held of record on all msttebe voted upon by the
stockholders. Holders of common stock do not haveuwative voting rights. Holders of common stock entitled to receive any lawful
dividends declared by the board of directors, stttifethe preferences of the holders of any shafrpseferred stock then outstanding. In the
event of our liquidation, dissolution or winding,Umlders of common stock are entitled to theipprtionate share of all assets remaining
after payment of liabilities, subject to the pratistribution rights of the holders of any sharepiaferred stock then outstanding. Shares of
common stock have no preemptive or conversionsighbther subscription rights. No redemption okisig fund provisions apply to the
common stock. All outstanding shares of commonkséoe fully paid and nonassessable.

Preferred Stock

Our board of directors is authorized to issue upa®00,000 shares of preferred stock in one oerseries without stockholder
approval. Our board has the discretion to deterrtiealividend, voting, conversion, redemption, ié@tion and other rights, preferences and
limitations of each series of preferred stock. Tigats of the holders of common stock will be aféetby, and may be adversely affected by,
the rights of holders of any preferred stock thatmay designate and issue in the future. The issuainpreferred stock, while providing
desirable flexibility in connection with possibleauisitions and other corporate actions, could hheeffect of making it more difficult for
others to acquire, or of discouraging others frat@napting to acquire, a majority of our outstandiaging stock. We have no current plans to
issue any shares of preferred stock.

Anti-Takeover Effects of Provisions of Delaware Law and Our Charter and By-Laws

Provisions of Delaware law and our certificaterafarporation and by-laws could make it more diffi¢a acquire us by means of a
tender offer, a proxy contest, open market purchasenoval of incumbent directors and otherwisesehprovisions, summarized below, are
expected to discourage types of coercive takeontipes and inadequate takeover bids and to eageyrersons seeking to acquire control
of us to first negotiate with us. We believe the benefits of increased protection of our potéatidity to negotiate with the proponent of an
unfriendly or unsolicited proposal to acquire astracture us outweigh the disadvantages of disgingaakeover or acquisition proposals
because negotiation of these proposals could resatt improvement of their terms.

As a Delaware corporation, we are subject Sectihd® the Delaware General Corporation Law, antakiover law. In general,
Section 203 prohibits a publicly held Delaware cogtion from engaging in a business combinatiom &it interested stockholder for a
period of three years after the date the persoarhes an interested stockholder, unless the busteaskination or the transaction in which
the person becomes an interested stockholder ieagypin a prescribed manner. Generally, a busio@sination includes a merger, asst
stock sale, or other transaction resulting in aritial benefit to an interested stockholder. Arriested
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stockholder includes a person who, together wififisiés and associates, owns, or did own withieé¢hyears before the person was
determined to be an interested stockholder, 158are of a corporation’s voting stock. The existeatthis provision generally will have an
anti-takeover effect for transactions not approweadvance by the board of directors, includingdisaging attempts that might result in a
premium over the market price for the shares ofrmomstock held by stockholders.

For any proposal to merge or consolidate with amotlorporation or to dispose of all or substantiall of our assets or property, we
must send written notice to our stockholders oftfaposal not less than 20 and not more than 68 blefore the annual meeting of
stockholders.

Our by-laws provide that only candidates nomindigdhe board of directors or by a stockholder ioomdance with the prescribed
procedure may be elected as directors. In ordes &iockholder to nominate a candidate for thedoédirectors, the stockholder must give
us written notice of the nomination. Our secretanst receive the notice not less than 150 daysédie first anniversary of the last
stockholders’ meeting for the election of directdrge notice must contain information about thedfieral ownership interest in our
corporation of both the nominating stockholder #tr@inominee.

Our by-laws also provide that, at any annual megatinstockholders, we may conduct only the busitiessis specified in the notice
of the meeting or that is otherwise properly braumgfore the meeting. In order for a stockholdeprimperly bring business before an annual
meeting, the stockholder must give us written reotitthe proposed business. Our secretary musvesttee notice not less than 150 days
before the first anniversary of our last annual timgeof stockholders. The notice must contain ecdpson of the business the stockholder
desires to bring before the meeting, its reasonddimg so, any material interest the stockholday imave in the business, and the
stockholder’s beneficial ownership interest in oarporation.

Special meetings of stockholders may only be cdilethe board of directors, our chairman of therbaa our president. Except as
required by law, we must give notice of a speciakting of stockholders in the same manner as notiae annual meeting of stockholders,
and the notice must specify the general natureebtisiness to be transacted.

Our by-laws provide that any action that may betatt a stockholders’ meeting may be taken withaueeting if it is authorized in
writing by the holders of the required votes. Amygon seeking to have the stockholders authorimgmorate action by written consent must
request in writing that the board of directorsdixecord date for the determination of the stodtéia entitled to consent to the corporate
action. A stockholder may revoke its written corigera corporate action by giving written noticere¥ocation to us, to the stockholder or
stockholders soliciting consents or soliciting reations in opposition to action by consent or tway solicitor designated by us or the
stockholders soliciting revocation. In such a casemay appoint independent inspectors of eledtaeview the validity of the written
consents and related revocations. The inspectakeofion will determine, in cooperation with uglan accordance with the procedures in
by-laws, whether the requisite number of valid ancevoked consents has been obtained to authbezeotporate action.
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UNDERWRITING

We are offering the shares of common stock desgiitbéhis prospectus through a number of underv&it®anc of America
Securities LLC, Raymond James & Associates, IncS, Bancorp Piper Jaffray Inc. and Legg Mason Wadker, Incorporated are the
representatives of the underwriters. We have ethiete an underwriting agreement with the represtives. Subject to the terms and
conditions of the underwriting agreement, we hayead to sell to the underwriters, and each undemras separately agreed to purchase,
the number of shares of common stock listed neitstoame below at the public offering price, l#ss underwriting discounts and
commissions described on the cover page of thispatus:

Underwriters Number of shares

Banc of America Securities LL

Raymond James & Associates, |

U.S. Bancorp Piper Jaffray In

Legg Mason Wood Walker, Incorporat
Total

4,250,001

The underwriting agreement is subject to a numbé&srms and conditions and provides that the undtews must buy all of the
shares if they buy any of them and that they mpctall or part of any order. The underwriterslwéll the shares of common stock to the
public when and if the underwriters buy the shéres us. The underwriters expect to deliver theest@af common stock to investors
on , 2002.

The underwriters initially will offer shares to tpeblic at the price specified on the cover pagthisf prospectus. The underwriters
may allow to selected dealers a concession of woerhan $ per share. The underwriteag also allow, and any other dealers may
reallow, a concession of not more than $  per share to some other dealers. If all the shafresmmon stock are not sold at the public
offering price, the underwriters may change thenfify price and the other selling terms. No chandbe public offering price will vary the
proceeds to be received by us as specified onaber page of this prospectus. The common stocKésenl subject to a number of conditio
including:

* the receipt and acceptance of the common stockéwynderwriters; ar
e the right to reject orders in whole or in p

We have granted the underwriters an option to 637,500 additional shares of common stocks&laelditional shares would
cover sales of shares by the underwriters thatezktlee number of shares specified in the table @bbive underwriters may exercise this
option at any time within 30 days after the datéhif prospectus. If the underwriters exercise tipison, they will each purchase, subject to a
number of terms and conditions, additional shafemmmon stock approximately in proportion to timecaunts specified in the table above. If
purchased, the underwriters will offer such addiilbshares on the same terms as those on whieh266,000 shares are being offered.
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The following table shows the per share and tatdleawriting discounts and commissions to be paith¢éounderwriters. These
amounts are shown assuming no exercise and fuitiseeof the underwriters’ option to purchase adddl shares of common stock.

No exercise Full exercise

Per share underwriting discounts and commiss
Total underwriting discounts and commissit

The expenses of the offering, not including undéimg discounts and commissions, are estimateca:tagproximately $800,000 and
will be paid by us. Expenses of this offering, esive of the underwriting discounts and commissiamdude the SEC filing fee, the NASD
filing fee, legal and accounting fees, printing erpes, transfer agent and registrar fees and mikeellaneous fees.

We, our executive officers and directors have eaténto lock-up agreements with the underwritensdét these agreements, subject
to exceptions, we may not issue any new sharesmfron stock, and our executive officers and dimsgctwe may not offer, sell, contract to
sell or otherwise dispose of or hedge any commacksir securities convertible into or exchangeétieshares of common stock without the
prior written consent of Banc of America Securiti¢sC. These restrictions will be in effect for arjpel of 90 days after the date of the final
prospectus. These restrictions do not apply to:

* transactions relating to shares of common stoakluer securities acquired in open market transastédter completion of this
offering; and

e certain estate planning transactions for the ben&fimmediate family membel

At any time and without notice, Banc of America @dttes LLC may, in its sole discretion, releasleoalsome of the securities from
these lock-up agreements.

We will indemnify the underwriters against somdilidies, including some liabilities under the Saties Act. If we are unable to
provide this indemnification, we will contribute tioe payments the underwriters may be requiredakenm respect of those liabilities.

Our common stock is quoted on the Nasdaq Natioraak&t under the symbol CACI.

In connection with this offering, the underwritensly purchase and sell common stock in the openaharkese transactions may
include:

* short sale:
* stabilizing transactions; a
e purchases to cover positions created by short.

Short sales involve the sale by the underwritei@ gfeater number of shares than they are reqtgrpdrchase in the offering. In
order to cover a short position, the underwritees iid for and purchase shares of our common stottie open market or may exercise tt
over-allotment option. Stabilizing transactions sishof bids or purchases made for the purposeeManting or retarding a decline in the
market price of our common stock while this offerie in progress.

The underwriters may also impose a penalty bids Tieans that if the representatives purchase simattes open market in
stabilizing transactions or to cover short salles,representatives can require the underwritetsstiid those shares as part of the offering to
repay the underwriting discount received by them.
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The underwriters may engage in activities thatibta) maintain or otherwise affect the price o tommon stock, including:

e overallotment

* stabilization

e syndicate covering transactions;
e imposition of penalty bid

As a result of these activities, the price of tbenmon stock may be higher than the price that atisermight exist in the open
market. If the underwriters commence these aatvjtihey may discontinue them at any time. The mwriters may carry out these
transactions on the Nasdaq National Market, irotrex-the-counter market or otherwise.

In connection with this offering, some underwritarsl any selling group members who are qualifiecketanakers on the Nasdaq
National Market may engage in passive market makangsactions in the common stock on the NasdampidtMarket in accordance wi
Rule 103 of Regulation M during the business ddgreethe pricing of the offering, before the commement of offers or sales of the
common stock. Passive market makers must complyagiplicable volume and price limitations and nhestdentified as a passive market
maker. In general, a passive market maker muskagisis bid at a price not in excess of the higlimedépendent bid for the security; if all
independent bids are lowered below the passive ehankkers bid, however, the bid must then be lowered whentmse limits are exceed

One or more of the underwriters may facilitate rieerketing of this offering online, either directly through one or more of their
affiliates. In those case, prospective investorg wiew offering terms and a prospectus online aleghending upon the particular underwriter,
place orders online or through their financial advs.

Some of the underwriters or their affiliates havéhie past engaged, and may in the future engagmrisactions with and perform
services for us, including commercial banking, ficial advisory and investment banking servicesh@ordinary course of business. These
underwriters and their affiliates have received| aray receive, customary fees for their services.

Banc of America Securities LLC is an affiliate ok of America, N.A., which is the agent and a Emghder our existing credit
facility. U.S. Bancorp Piper Jaffray Inc. is anilife of Firstar Bank, National Association. Thiank is also a lender under our existing
credit facility. A portion of the net proceeds frdhs offering will be used to repay approximat®69.8 million under our existing credit
facility. Banc of America Securities LLC and U.Saorp Piper Jaffray Inc. are members of the Natidgsociation of Securities Dealers,
Inc., or NASD. Because more than 10% of the pros@édhis offering, not including underwriting coesation, will be received by the
entities who are affiliated with the NASD membeiisonare participating in this offering, this offegiis being conducted in compliance with
NASD Conduct Rule 2710 (c) (8). Pursuant to thé,rthe appointment of a qualified independent mwdéer is not necessary in connecti
with this offering, because a bona fide independesntket (as defined in the NASD Conduct Rules)texis our common stock.
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LEGAL MATTERS

The validity of the shares of common stock offelnedeby will be passed upon for us by Foley, Hoagli&t LLP, Boston,
Massachusetts. Legal matters in connection withdffering will be passed upon for the underwriteysShearman Sterling, New York, New
York.

EXPERTS

The financial statements as of June 30, 2001 afd,2(hd for each of the three years in the penmtkd June 30, 2001, included in
this prospectus and the related financial statesamdule included elsewhere in the registratiatestent have been audited by Deloitte &
Touche LLP, independent auditors, as stated im tepbrt appearing herein and have been so inclirdediance upon the report of such firm
given upon their authority as experts in accoungéing auditing.

WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION

We file annual reports, quarterly reports, curreprts, proxy statements and other informatiom wie Securities and Exchange
Commission. You may read and copy any of our SE@E at the SEC’s Public Reference Room at 45th Bfreet, N.W., Washington, D.C.
20549. You may call the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330dahgr information about the Public Reference RoGmr. SEC filings are also available
to the public on the SEC’s web site at http://wvweg.gov.

The SEC allows us to “incorporate by referencebdinfation from some of our other SEC filings. Thisans that we can disclose
information to you by referring you to those otfiings, and the information incorporated by refece is considered to be part of this
prospectus. In addition, some information that ikeevlith the SEC after the date of this prospegtilsautomatically update, and in some
cases supersede, the information contained orwibeincorporated by reference in this prospedis are incorporating by reference the
information contained in the following SEC filings:

e our annual report on Form Xfor our fiscal year ended June 30, 2001 (as filedseptember 26, 200
» our quarterly report on Form XQ-for the three months ended September 30, 200filgdn November 15, 200
e our quarterly report on Form ¥Q-for the six months ended December 31, 2001 g din February 7, 20C

e our current reports on Form 8-K (as filed on Febyus8, November 9, November 13, November 14, 20@iLRebruary 7,
2002);

e our definitive proxy statement in connection withr 001 annual meeting of stockholders (as filedatober 25, 2001
» the description of our common stock contained inregistration statement on FormA&A (as filed on February 7, 2002); ¢
* any filings that we make with the SEC under Secti8(a), 13(c), 14 or 15(d) of the Securities ExdeAct of 1934 after the

date of this prospectus and before the date ofitetion of this offering. Information in these filis will be incorporated as of
the filing date.

55



Table of Contents

You may request copies of the filings, at no cbgtwriting to or calling our Investor Relations Gdmator at:

CACI International Inc
1100 North Glebe Road
Arlington, VA 22201
Telephone: (703) 841-3719

This prospectus is part of a registration stateroarfform S-3 that we filed with the SEC under tkewBities Act of 1933. This
prospectus does not contain all of the informationtained in the registration statement. For furthidrmation about us and our common
stock, you should read the registration statemedtlae exhibits filed with the registration staterme
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To The Board of Directors and Shareholders
CACI International Inc
Arlington, Virginia

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsimeets of CACI International Inc and subsidsafiee Company) as of June
30, 2001 and 2000, and the related consolidatéeinseants of operations, shareholdemsuity, cash flows, and comprehensive income foh
of the three years in the period ended June 3(@,.2D0r audits also included the financial statensehedule. These financial statements and
financial statement schedule are the responsilufithe Company management. Our responsibility is to expresspaman on these financi
statements and the financial statement scheduedlmsour audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with audi&tagdards generally accepted in the United StdtAsnerica. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to ebtaasonable assurance about whether the finataieiments are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on glasis, evidence supporting the amounts and digids in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting ptesused and significant estimates made by marageas well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe thatadits provide a reasonable basis for our opinio

In our opinion, such financial statements presainlyf, in all material respects, the financial giwsi of the Company as of June 30,
2001 and 2000, and the results of its operatiodstarcash flows for each of the three years inptgod ended June 30, 2001, in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted m thited States of America. Also, in our opinioncls financial statement schedule, when
considered in relation to the basic consolidatedrfcial statements taken as a whole, present faidjl material respects the information set
forth herein.

/sl Deloitte & Touche LLP

McLean, Virginia

August 14, 2001, except for paragraphs 3 and 4

of Note 14, as to which the dates are Novembef@12
and January 6, 2002, respectively
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Revenue

Costs and expens
Direct costs
Indirect costs and selling expen:
Depreciation and amortizatic
Goodwill amortizatior

Total operating expens
Income from operatior
Interest expens
Income before income tax

Income taxe:

Income from Continuing Operatiol
Discontinued Operatior

CACI INTERNATIONAL INC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(amounts in thousands, except per share data)

Year ended June 30,

(Unaudited)
Six Months Ended
December 31,

(Loss) income from operations from discontinued QUAT
products business and Marketing Systems Group (less
applicable income taxes (benefit) of ($93), ($42%5), $80,

and ($128)

Gain (Loss) on disposal of COMNET products busirss$
Marketing Systems Group including provision of $HI®l
$284 for operating losses during phase-out petess (
applicable income taxes (benefit) of $0, $13,5855 $0

and ($766)

Net Income

Earnings per common and common equivalent share

Average shares outstandi
Basic:
Income from continuing operatiol

(Loss) income from discontinued operati

Gain (Loss) on dispos

Net Income

Average shares and equivalent shares outstal

Diluted:
Income from continuing operatiol

(Loss) income from discontinued operati

Gain (Loss) on dispos

Net Income

1999 2000 2001 2000 2001
$427,42;  $484,54*  $557,89( $ 258,61t $ 308,14
252,87. 286,43 342,23 157,02 188,08
137,11 153,95 164,62 78,93( 90,66:
7,224 7,77¢ 8,52: 3,991 5,547
3,08( 3,76¢ 5,157 2,344 —
400,29( 451,92 520,53 242,29 284,29°
27,13: 32,61¢ 37,35¢ 16,32 23,84’
3,631 3,29( 3,31¢ 1,58¢ 1,221
23,50: 29,32¢ 34,04¢( 14,74: 22,62¢
9,18¢ 11,43t 13,27t 5,74¢ 8,597
14,317 17,89: 20,76¢ 8,99: 14,02¢
(147) (615) (9) 12¢ (209)
— 21,13¢ 1,54¢ — (1,250)
$14,17C $3841: $2230. $ 911t $ 12,57(
| | | | |
21,79: 22,62 22,63 22,59¢ 23,20«
$ 066 $ 07¢ $ 09z $ 04 $  0.6C
(0.01) (0.09) 0.0¢ 0.01 (0.01)
— 0.9¢ 0.07 — (0.08)
$ 068 $ 17C $ 09¢ $ 041 $ 054
| | | | ]
22,44( 23,15¢ 23,05¢ 22,91¢ 23,97¢
$ 06/ $ 077 $ 09C $ 03¢ $  05¢
(0.01) (0.09) 0.0¢ 0.01 (0.01)
— 0.9: 0.07 — (0.0
$ 06: $ 166 $ 097 $ 04 $ 052
| | | | ]



See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CACI INTERNATIONAL INC
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(dollars in thousands)

(Unaudited)
June 30, December 31
2000 2001 2001
ASSETS
Current assetl
Cash and equivalen $ 4,931 $ 14,84: $ 14,00:
Accounts receivabl
Billed 98,17¢ 114,95: 128,18(
Unbilled 12,40« 11,03¢ 15,33:
Total accounts receivab 110,58: 125,99: 143,51:
Income tax receivabl — — 94¢
Deferred income taxe 23t 407 422
Deferred contract cos 1,48¢ 1,45¢ 1,25:
Prepaid expenses and ot 7,37z 8,56z 6,08¢
Total current asse 124,60¢ 151,25¢ 166,22t
Property and equipment, r 15,03¢ 15,68¢ 15,691
Accounts receivable, loi-term 11,13¢ 13,68¢ 8,79¢
Goodwill 75,40: 88,89t 117,68
Other asset 7,022 12,89¢ 16,41:
Intangible asset — — 7,88(
Deferred contract costs, lo-term — — 234
Deferred income taxe 2,78¢ 2,30¢ 2,78¢
Total asset $235,99° $284,73: $ 335,71:
| | |
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS ' EQUITY
Current liabilities
Notes payabl: $ — $ — $ 3,50(
Accounts payabl 7,087 7,532 10,86¢
Other accrued expens 23,84 28,32: 21,06t
Accrued compensation and bene 24,45¢ 26,86¢ 27,60¢
Income taxes payab 1,70% 15€ —
Deferred income taxe 5,021 6,421 5,36(
Total current liabilities 62,11¢ 69,297 68,40(
Note payable, lor-term 28,26: 48,88¢ 73,307
Deferred rent expens 1,02t 1,28¢ 1,38
Deferred income taxe 12k 11€ 12C
Other lon¢-term obligations 2,50(C 4,94( 6,84(
Shareholder equity
Common stocl
$.10 par value, 40,000,000 shares authorized, 3M0Q, 30,572,000 and 31,268,000
shares issue 3,001 3,051 3,121
Capital in excess of pi 18,21¢ 23,26¢ 35,66
Retained earning 136,99° 159,29¢ 171,86¢
Accumulated other comprehensive | (2,589 (4,486 (3,98¢)
Treasury stock, at cost (7,052,000, 7,768,000 arid27000 share: (13,667) (20,939 (21,019
Total shareholde’ equity 141 ,96¢ 160,20« 185,65¢




Total liabilities and sharehold¢ equity $235,99° $284,73: $ 335,71

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CACI INTERNATIONAL INC
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(dollars in thousands)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income

Reconciliation of net income to net cash providgaperating

activities

Depreciation and amortizatic

(Gain) loss on sale of property and equipn
Provision for deferred income tax

(Gain) loss from sale of COMNET product business an

Marketing Systems Group busing

Changes in operating assets and liabili

Accounts receivabl

Prepaid expenses and other as

Accounts payable and accrued expel

Accrued compensation and bene

Deferred rent expens:

Income taxe:

Deferred contract cos

Other lon¢-term obligations

Net cash provided by operating activit

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisitions of property and equipme

Purchase of business

Proceeds from sale of busine

Proceeds from sale of property and equipn
Capitalized software costs and ot

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activi

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds under line of cre

Payments under line of cre:

Proceeds from stock optio

Purchase of common stock for treas

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi
Effect of exchange rates on cash and equiva

Net increase in cash and equivale
Cash and equivalents, beginning of y

Cash and equivalents, end of y

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW
INFORMATION
Cash paid during the period for income taxes, het¢foinds

Cash paid during the period for inter

Year ended June 30,

(Unaudited)
Six Months ended
December 31,

1999 2000 2001 2000 2001
$ 14,17C $ 3841 $ 22300 $ 9,11  $12,57(
10,87¢ 11,96° 14,14: 6,56- 5,671
30 10¢ (15) — —

1,517 4,00¢ 1,831 (81) (1,545)
— (21,257 (1,545) — 96€
(10,029 1,007 (9,870 (13,346 (376)
(1,726) (1,381) (1,415) (201) 2,86¢
2,16¢ 1,50¢ 2,82( (3,226) (7,709
4,58¢ (3,161) 1,98¢ 5,21¢ (2,57€)
(46€) 332 152 224 (12)
(1,999 (11,08%) (1,604) 3,05¢ 1,17¢
331 1,04¢ 31 24 (31)
(750) (1,601) 2,49¢ (1,496) 1,901
18,72: 19,907 31,32 5,84¢ 12,90:
| | | | |
(7,507) (8,090) (8,717) (4,667 (3,440
(44,41%) (17,479 (29,40) (28,169 (39,749
— 37,00 1,481 — _

9 16 19 — —

(195) (521) (2,547 (1,239 (3,961)
(52,117) 10,93: (39,169 (34,070 (47,149
| | | | |
200,63 168,61 208,76: 133,54 83,28¢
(168,36)  (202,42)  (188,13)  (98,08) (62,370
1,601 5,83¢ 5,10¢ 1,95¢ 12,46¢
— — (7,272 (7,200) (83)
33,87( (27,970 18,46: 30,21¢ 33,30
(15€) (340) (709) (52) 97
32z 2,52¢ 9,911 1,94% (839)
2,081 2,40: 4,931 4,931 14,84:

$ 2440: $ 4931 $ 1484: $ 687/  $ 14,00
| | | | |
$ 790¢ $ 1593 $ 8766 $ 114/ $ 3,69
| | | | |
$ 316( $ 359 $ 330/ $ 1458 $ 1,27¢
| | | | |



See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS'’ EQUITY
(amounts in thousands)

BALANCE, July 1, 199¢

Net income

Currency translation adjustmel

Exercise of stock options (including $834
income tax benefit

BALANCE, June 30, 199

Net income

Currency translation adjustmel

Exercise of stock options (including $436
income tax benefit

BALANCE, June 30, 200

Net income

Currency translation adjustmet

Exercise of stock options (including $1,967
income tax benefit

Purchase of common stock for Treas

BALANCE, June 30, 200

Net income

Currency translation adjustmet

Fair Value of Interest Rate Sw

Exercise of stock options (including $2,100
income tax benefit

Purchase of common stock for Treas

BALANCE, December 31, 2001(unaudite

CACI INTERNATIONAL INC

Common stock

Accumulated

Treasury stock

Capital in other Total
excess of Retained comprehensive shareholders’

Share Amount par earnings loss Shares Amount equity
28,74: $2,87: $10,900 $84,41' $ (207) 7,05 $(13,66)  $84,32
— — — 14,17( — — — 14,17(
— — — — (1,16) — — (1,167
25€ 26 1,57¢ — — — — 1,601
28,99¢ 2,90 12,48: 98,58¢ (1,368 7,052 (13,667) 98,931
_ — — 38,41 NI — — 38,41
— — — — (1,21  — — (1,216)
1,01¢ 101 5,73¢ — — — — 5,83t
30,01« 3,001 18,21¢ 136,99 (2,584 7,05. (13,66 141,96¢
— — — 22,30: — — — 22,30:
— — — — (1,909 — — (1,907
55¢ 56 5,05: — — — — 5,10¢
— — — — — 71€ (7,272 (7,272
30,57: 3,051 23,26¢ 159,29 (4,486) 7,76¢ (20,939 160,20«
— — — 12,57( — — — 12,57(
— — — — 97€ — — 97€
— — — — (47¢)  — — (47€)
69¢€ 70 12,39¢ — — — — 12,46¢
— — — — — 4 (83 (83
31,26¢ $3,127 $35,66° $171,860 $ (3,98¢) 7,77 $(21,01)  $185,65'
IS I I B I —

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CACI INTERNATIONAL INC AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(dollars in thousands)

(Unaudited)
Six months ended
Year ended June 30, December 31,
1999 2000 2001 2000 2001
Net income $14,17( $38,41: $22,30: $9,11¢ $12,57(
Currency translation adjustme (1,167 (1,21¢) (1,909 (329 97€
Fair value of interest rate sw — — — — (47¢€)
Comprehensive incon $13,00¢ $37,19¢ $20,39¢ $8,79¢ $13,07(
| L] L] ] |

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CACI INTERNATIONAL INC
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Business Activities

The Company is an international information systamd high technology services corporation. It devinformation technology
and communications solutions through four areaxpertise or lines of business: systems integratimnaged network services, document
technology and engineering services. The Companwighes these services in support of U.S. natiopfdrmse and civilian agencies, agencies
of foreign governments, state and local governmemd commercial enterprises.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include tAeements of CACI International Inc and its whobiywned subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Company”). All significant inteompany balances and transactions have been atiiin consolidation.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue on cost—plus—fee contracts is recogniztitetextent of costs incurred plus a proportioaaeunt of the fee earned.
Revenue on fixed—price contracts is recognizechempercentage-of-completion method based on austsred in relation to total estimated
costs. Revenue on time-and-material contractcisgrized to the extent of billable rates times balglivered plus expenses incurred.
Revenue from software license sales under agreemestognized upon delivery when there is no §icgnit obligation to perform after the
sale, but is recognized under the percentage-optetion method when there is significant obligatfonproduction, modification or
customization after the sale. Revenue from maimeaaupport services is nonrefundable and is giyesaognized on a straight-line basis
over the term of the service agreement. Provisionsstimated losses on uncompleted contractsegaded in the period such losses are
determined.

The Company’s U.S. Government contracts (approxm@&5% of total revenue in 2001) are subject to subseigovernment auc
of direct and indirect costs. The majority of surcturred cost audits have been completed through 30, 1998. Management does not
anticipate any material adjustment to the constdidlinancial statements in subsequent periodaddits not yet completed.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment is recorded at cost. Degiieni of equipment has been provided over the estidhuseful life of the
respective assets of three to seven years, usgngfthight—line method. Leasehold improvementganerally amortized using the straight—
line method over the respective remaining leasa tarthe useful life of the improvements, whicheigeshorter.

June 30,
2000 2001
(dollars in thousands)

Equipment and furnitur $ 47,86¢ $ 37,33}
Leasehold improvemen 5,94¢ 6,05¢
Property and equipment, at c 53,81 43,39¢
Less accumulated depreciation and amortize (38,77%) (27,71)
Total property and equipment, r $ 15,03¢ $ 15,68:
I L ]
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CACI INTERNATIONAL INC
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continu ed)

During 2001, the Company wrote off $10.6 millionfolly depreciated assets and the related accustuldgpreciation.
Deferred Contract Costs

Deferred contract costs include the cost of equigraequired by the Company to provide communicatigervices under contract.
The costs are charged to expense as the assoséateck revenue is billed to the customer. As oJ80, 2001, total deferred costs of
approximately $1.5 million are classified as a entrasset, because this amount is expected tacbeared within the next twelve months.

Capitalized Software Costs

Costs incurred internally in creating a computdtvgare product to be sold or licensed are chargezkpense when incurred as
research and development until technological félétgibas been established for the product. Tecbgichl feasibility is established upon
completion of a detailed program design or, iralisence, completion of a working model. Thereafiésuch software development costs are
capitalized and subsequently reported at the l@vanamortized cost or estimated net realizablaezaCapitalized costs are amortized based
on current and future revenue for each product aithual minimum amortization equal to the straigig-amortization over the remaining
estimated economic life of the product, which ranfyem three to eight years.

Goodwill

The excess of cost over fair market value of ns¢@sacquired is being amortized using the strdightmethod, generally over 10
30 years. Accumulated amortization was $12,140:0@D$17,082,000 at June 30, 2000 and June 30, g&ctively. As of July 1, 2001,
the Company adopted the Financial Accounting StattsdBoard (“FASB”) Statement 142, “Goodwill and @thntangible Assets”.

Income Taxes

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effettemmporary differences between the carrying amoohessets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and the amounts useshfome tax purposes, as well as operating Inddax credit carry forwards.

U.S. income taxes have not been provided on $29887n undistributed earnings of foreign subsidmthat have been
permanently reinvested outside the United Statesich earnings were distributed to the UnitedeStatertain foreign tax credits would be
available to reduce the associated tax liability.

Currency Translation

The assets and liabilities of the Company’s foreighsidiaries whose functional currency is othantthe U.S. dollar are translated
at the exchange rates in effect on the reportirig, @ad income and expenses are translated atdighted average exchange rate during the
period. The Compang’primary practice is to negotiate contracts inghmme currency in which the predominant expensemaurred, therek
mitigating the exposure to foreign currency excleaftgctuations. The net effect of such translagains and losses is not included in
determining net income, but is accumulated as aragpcomponent of shareholders’ equity. Foreigreogy transaction gains and losses are
included in determining net income.
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CACI INTERNATIONAL INC
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continu ed)

Earnings Per Share

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SPA¥S. 128 requires dual presentation of basic adluded earnings per share on
the face of the income statement. Basic earningshme excludes dilution and is computed by digdncome available to common
shareholders by the weighted average number of aomsiares outstanding for the period. Diluted eggsper share reflects potential
dilution that could occur if securities or othent@cts to issue common stock were exercised orerted into common stock. Diluted
earnings per share includes the incremental effiestiock options calculated using the treasuryksioethod.

Statement of Cash Flows

For purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, sfeont-investments with an original maturity of threenths or less are considered
cash equivalents.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying amounts of the Company’s accountsigayend accrued expenses approximate their fairevdlhe lines of credit have
floating interest rates that vary with current el and, as such, the recorded value approxiraitesafue.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in confeymiith accounting principles generally acceptethi@ United States of America
requires management to make estimates and assasftat affect the reported amounts of assetsiabitities and the disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date effittencial statements and the reported amounsvehue and expenses during the reporting
period. Actual results could differ from those psites.

Unaudited Interim Financial Statements

The accompanying unaudited condensed consolidetaddial statements have been prepared in accadaitit accounting
principles generally accepted in the United StafeSmerica. In the opinion of management, all atijents, consisting only of normal
recurring adjustments considered necessary far ariesentation, have been included. Operatingltsefar any period are not necessarily
indicative of the results for any other period ar the full year.

Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made to ther pgars’ financial statements in order for thensdaform to the current
presentation.

New Accounting Pronouncements

On June 29, 2001, the FASB issued Statement 14fsifiBss Combinations”, and Statement 142, “Gooawidl Other Intangible
Assets”, that amend APB Opinion No. 16, “BusinessnBinations”, and supersede APB Opinion No. 17digible Assets”. The two
statements modify the method of accounting for
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CACI INTERNATIONAL INC
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continu ed)

business combinations entered into after June@M, 2nd address the accounting for intangible as§be Company has elected to
implement FASB No. 141 and No. 142 as of July 13120

In July 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 143, “Acammfor Asset Retirement Obligations.” SFAS No3léquires that the fair
value of a liability for an asset retirement obtiga be recognized in the period in which it isunmed, if a reasonable estimate of fair value
can be made. The associated asset retirement oukt e capitalized as part of the carrying amaidithe long-lived asset. SFAS No. 143
will be effective for fiscal years beginning afteme 15, 2002. We have not determined the effettlis statement will have on our
consolidated financial position or results of opierss .

In October 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 144, tActing for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-LivAssets,” that replaces
SFAS No. 121. SFAS No. 144 requires that long-limegets be measured at the lower of carrying anariatr value less cost to sell,
whether reported in continuing operations or irtdiginued operations. SFAS No. 144 also broademsdaorting of discontinued operations
to include all components of an entity with opeyas that can be distinguished from the rest ottitéy and that will be eliminated from the
ongoing operations of the entity in a disposalgeantion. The provisions of SFAS No. 144 are effecfor financial statements issued for
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2001 hatee not yet completed our analysis of this newnpomcement and the impact it will he
on our consolidated financial statements.

In November 2001, the Emerging Issues Task Force| T, issued Topic No. D-103, “Income Statemehafcterization of
Reimbursements Received for “Out-of-Pocket” Expsriseurred,” EITF Topic No. D-103 requires that quanies report reimbursements
received for out-of-pocket expenses incurred asmreg, rather than as a reduction of expenses. ibvésipns of EITF Topic No. D-103 are
effective for financial statements issued for flgezars beginning after December 15, 2001. As we téstorically accounted for
reimbursements of out-of-pocket expenses in theneraprovided for under EITF Topic No. D-103, werdi expect the adoption of the
provisions of EITF Topic No. D-103 to have an imipa our consolidated financial position or resolft®perations.

NOTE 2. CAPITALIZED SOFTWARE DEVELOPMENT COSTS

The costs for software development capitalizedandrtized for the years ended June 30, 1999, 200@@01, included on the
Consolidated Balance Sheets as other assets, wésboavs:

1999 2000 2001

(dollars in thousands)
Annual activity

Balance, beginning of ye $ 1,86: $ 1,54¢ $ 4,26¢
Capitalized during yee 501 4,504 4,38:
Amortized during yea (81€) (1,789 (1,539
Balance, end of ye: $ 1,54¢ $ 4,26¢ $ 7,11¢
| | |
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continu ed)

NOTE 3. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

CACI INTERNATIONAL INC

Total accounts receivable are net of allowanceléubtful accounts of $2,817,000, $4,301,000 an645000 (unaudited) at June
30, 2000 and 2001 and December 31, 2001, resplctdecounts receivable are classified as follows:

Billed receivable:
Billed receivable:

Billable receivables at end of peri

Total billed receivable
Unbilled receivable:

Unbilled pending receipt of documents for billi
Unbilled retainages and fee withholdings expectellet
billed beyond the next 12 mont

Total unbilled receivable

Total accounts receivab

NOTE 4. GOODWILL (Unaudited)

2000

2001

(Unaudited)
December 31, 2001

(dollars in thousands)

$ 85,16f $ 100,09! $ 112,51
13,01 14,85¢ 15,667
98,17¢ 114,95: 128,18(
12,40¢ 11,03¢ 15,33:
11,13¢ 13,68¢ 8,79¢
23,54( 24,72¢ 24,12¢
$ 121,714 $ 139,677 % 152,30¢
L] L]

The Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASRently issued Statements of Financial Accountitag&@ards (“SFAS”) No.
141 “Business Combinations”, and SFAS No. 142, “@eid and Other Intangible Assets. SFAS No. 14ingliated the pooling method of
accounting for all business combinations initiaaégér June 30, 2001. SFAS No. 142 requires thatlgdlono longer be amortized against
earnings, but instead reviewed periodically for @nment, with any identified impairments treatechasumulative effect of a change in

accounting principle.
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CACI INTERNATIONAL INC
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continu ed)

The Company elected to adopt SFAS No. 142 effedtidg 1, 2001, as a result, amortization of goobwis discontinued. A
reconciliation of previously reported net incomel @arnings per share with the amounts adjustethéoexclusion of goodwill amortization
net of related income tax effect follows (in thonds):

(Unaudited) Three Months Ended (Unaudited) Six Months Ended

December 31, December 31,
2000 2001 2000 2001
Reported net incom $ 4,766  $ 599 % 9,11¢ $ 12,57(
Goodwill amortization (net of tay 758 — 1,43( —
Adjusted net incom $ 551¢ $ 599t $ 1054¢ $ 12,57(
L | L | L] L]
Basic Earnings Per Shal
Reported EP-Basic $ 02z % 0.2¢ $ 041  $ 0.54
Goodwill amortization (net of ta 0.0z — 0.0¢ —
Adjusted Basic EP. $ 028 % 0.2¢ $ 047 % 0.54
L] L] | |
Diluted Earnings Per Shar
Reported EP-Diluted $ 021 $ 028 $ 04C $ 0.52
Goodwill amortization (net of tay 0.0z — 0.0€ —
Adjusted Diluted EP! $ 024 % 02t % 04¢ $ 0.5Z
L] L] | |

NOTE 5. NOTE PAYABLE

On June 19, 1998, the Company replaced an existedit facility with a new five-year unsecured dtejreement which permits
borrowings of up to $125.0 million with a sublinait $55.0 million of borrowings in the first yearrfacquisitions and a sublimit of $40.0
million per year for acquisitions in subsequentrgedhe existing agreement permits similar borr@aptions and interest rates as those
offered by the prior agreement. The current LIBQfian is at the applicable period rate plus 0.37B6%addition, the Company pays a fee on
the unused portion of the facility. The intereserand unused portion fee are determined quathased on debt leverage ratio thresholds.
agreement contains customary financial covenartgatios related to debt leverage, fixed charges@me and net worth. Under this
agreement, the Company had outstanding borrowih$48888,000 and $28,263,000 at June 30, 2002@64d, respectively. The applicable
interest rate was 4.4% and 7.0% at June 30, 2002600, respectively.

On January 8, 2001, the Company entered into anesit rate swap agreement with a notional amou$29f0 million under which
the Company will pay a fixed interest rate of 5.1pMs the applicable spread, currently 0.375% a&uwdive the prevailing LIBOR interest
rate, plus applicable spread over the two year te#rthe swap agreement without the exchange ofitickerlying notional amounts. Of the
outstanding borrowings of $48,888,000 at June 8012%$25,000,000 is covered by this swap agreement.
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CACI INTERNATIONAL INC
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continu ed)

NOTE 6. INCOME TAXES

The provision (benefit) for income taxes for thasgeended June 30, consists of:

1999 2000 2001
(dollars in thousands)
Current

Federa $ 5,80¢ $ 5,247 $ 9,14¢
State and loce 71z 487 49¢
Foreign 1,152 1,697 1,79¢
Total current 7,672 7,427 11,43¢

Deferred
Federa 1,62¢ 4,06¢€ 1,481
State and loce (129 152 287
Foreign 15 (210 69
Total deferrec 1,51z 4,00¢ 1,837
Tota $ 9,18¢ $ 11,43t $ 13,27¢
| | .|

A reconciliation of the income tax provision (beitiedind the amount computed by applying the stajutbS. income tax rate of 3£
for the years ended June 30, is as follows:

1999 2000 2001
(dollars in thousands)

Amount at statutory U.S. ra $ 8,20¢ $ 10,28 $ 11,91t
State taxes, net of U.S. income tax ber 351 41F 49¢
Taxes on foreign earnings at different effectiies (39 (10€) (126
Non-deductible goodwil 667 44¢ 704
Other 4 394 282
Total $ 9,18¢ $ 11,43t $ 13,27¢
Effective tax rate 39.1% 39.(% 39.(%

| ] ]
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CACI INTERNATIONAL INC
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continu ed)

The tax effects of temporary differences that gise to significant deferred tax assets and dedemar liabilities at June 30, 2000 ¢
2001, are as follows:

2000 2001

(dollars in thousands)
Deferred tax asse

Accrued vacation and other expen $ 3,494 $ 4,28¢
Appreciation of option: 1,60¢ 1,60¢
Accrued posretirement obligation 421 22¢
Deferred ren 552 60¢

Other lon¢-term obligations 367 —
Foreign transactior 10¢ 291
Pensior 31 41
Depreciatior 41% 30C
Other 11 13
Total deferred tax ass: 7,004 7,372

Deferred tax liabilities

Unbilled revenue (4,746 (4,930
401(Kk) (2,619 (3,510
Capitalized softwar (1,349 (2,48))
Goodwill (36¢) (399
Other (51 12¢
Total deferred tax liabiliti (9,127 (11,199
Net deferred tax asset (liabilit $ (2,129 $ (3,82))
I |

NOTE 7. STOCK INCENTIVE PLAN

In 1996, the Company’s shareholders approved andymg Stock Incentive Plan (the “1996 Plan”), whieblaced a 1986 Plan that
expired. The 1996 Plan permits the award of inverdnd non-qualified stock options, and stock grémbfficers and employees of the
Company. The 1996 Plan limited total awards andksgants to 3,000,000 shares over the life ofl®@6 Plan. In November 2000, the Bc
adopted, and the shareholders approved, an amentoread 1,100,000 more shares to the 1996 Plamo@pfor 3,746,000 shares have b
granted under the 1996 Plan through June 30, 20@1véth certain exceptions, one-third of the skdrecome exercisable each year over a
three year period, beginning one year from the daggant.

Under the 1996 Plan, options lapse and are no tagrcisable if not exercised within ten yearshef date of grant. Grantees who
terminate their CACI employment have 60 days dfteir termination date to exercise options thatthes exercisable or risk forfeiture of
their right to the options. Options that would hdseen exercisable at a future date are forfeitethéyerminating employee and become
available to the pool for future grants under tlanp

All awards granted under the 1996 Plan have beargoalified stock options. The stock option exersiprices were at fair market
value on the date of grant. Accordingly, no compéinga cost has been recognized for stock optiontgréddad compensation cost for the
Company’s stoclkased compensation plans been determined basée airtvalue at grant dates for awards under tptesgs consistent wi
the method of
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CACI INTERNATIONAL INC

NOTES TO FINANCIAL CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT—(Continue d)

accounting under SFAS No. 123, the Company’s regtnire and earnings per share would have been retlutied pro forma amounts

indicated below:

2000

2001

(dollars in thousands, except per share)

1999
Net income
As reportec $ 14,17C  $
Pro forma 13,691
Diluted earnings per sha
As reportec $ 63 $
Pro forma .61

38,
37,

41:
01¢

1.6¢€
1.6C

$ 22,30
20,39

$ 97
.88

The fair value of each option is estimated on thie @f grant using the Black-Sholes option-priaimgdel with the following

additional assumptions:

Year ended June 30,

1999
Dividend yield 0%
Volatility rate 36.4%
Discount rate 6.C%
Expected term (year: 5

Stock option activity and price information regaglithe Plans follows:

2000 2001
0% 0%
26.2% 36.4%
5.2% 4.8%
5 5
Weighted Average

Exercise Price

Exercise Price

(shares in thousands

Number
of Shares
Shares under option, July 1, 1¢ 2,36¢ $ 94 —
Granted 75C 7.71 —
Exercisec (25€) 91 —
Forfeited (102 178 —
Shares under option, June 30, 1! 2,75¢ 94—
Granted 1,27¢ 10.0C —
Exercisec (1,016 91  —
Forfeited (60€) 750 —
Shares under option, June 30, 2! 2,41« 94 —
Granted 81¢ 8.47 —
Exercisec (55¢) 91—
Expired (8) 91  —
Forfeited (440 91  —
Shares under option, June 30, 2! 2,22¢ $750C —
|

$10.14
9.41
7.5C
9.6¢

10.1¢
12.72
12.72
11.1¢

12.7:
19.1(
11.1¢

9.41]
12.72

$19.1(

$

5.07
8.64
4.6z
6.8¢

6.04
10.91
4.7z
9.82

8.31
10.1¢
5.62
5.2¢
6.5¢
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CACI INTERNATIONAL INC
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continu ed)

Weighted
Weighted Average
Average Remaining
Number Exercise Contractual
of Shares Exercise Price Price Life
(shares in thousands
Shares under option, June 30, 2 3BC $75( — $84 % 781 $ 7.2¢€
364 8471 — 9.41 9.11 7.54
1,14( 9.9¢ — 11.0C 10.4% 8.6(
192 11.07 — 11.2¢ 11.22 8.7¢
18C 11.8¢ — 19.1( 12.81 8.9t
2,22¢
L]
Options exercisable, June 30, 2( 15€ 7.5C — 8.44 7.82
82 847 — 9.41 9.3¢
54 9.9¢ — 11.0C 10.9:
46 11.07 — 11.2¢ 11.22
102 11.8¢ — 19.1C 12.67
44C
L]

NOTE 8. PENSION PLAN

The Company maintains a defined contribution pladen Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue CdueQACI SMART PLAN.
Employees can contribute up to 15% (subject taagedtatutory limitations) of their total compensat The Company provides matching
contributions equal to 50% of the amount of the leyge’s contribution, up to 6% of the employeetaltdiscal year cash compensation. In
addition, the Company may also make discretionaofitpsharing contributions to the plan. Employentributions vest to the employees
according to a schedule entitling full vesting aftee years of employment. The CACI $MART PLANdsalified under the Internal Reven
Code, as determined by the Internal Revenue Service

The Company maintains a non-qualified, defined idoation plan, the CACI International Inc Group Ex¢ive Retirement Plan,
which is available to certain executives partidipgin the CACI $MART PLAN whose annual compensatixceeds the statutory limit of 1
qualified plan. The Company contributes 5% of sextess eligible compensation to eligible partictpan the Group Executive Retirement
Plan. Each participant is fully vested immediatelyis account balance. The Company contributiarst 20% per year over a five year
period.

The total consolidated expense for pension and @osnpontribution to the 401(k) plan and the Groupdutive Retirement Plan f
the years ended June 30, 1999, 2000 and 2001 w&31$800, $5,909,000 and $4,820,000, respectiifélg.Company funds the costs of the
qualified plans as they accrue.
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NOTE 9. OTHER LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

The Company has established a retirement benafitfor certain executives. At June 30, 2001 tharzd of the obligations by
category are as follows:

2001

(dollars in thousands)
Accrued posretirement obligations

Group Health Pla $ 25¢
Executive Life 25C
Deferred Compensatic 4,022
Total accrued po-retirement obligation 4,53(
Other lon¢-term obligation: 41C
Total $ 4,94(

Group Health Plan. CACI has provided for extended medical and dergakfiit coverage to eligible employees, both foramt active, and
their dependents. The accumulated post-retirememfii obligation represents the estimated pressoe of future claims by participants
under this plan.

Executive Life . The Company maintains life insurance policiesectimg certain officers, both former and activeptigh their lifetimes, in
accordance with their respective employment agreésn@&he cost of the insurees’ premiums is treagzdompensation expense.

Deferred Compensation . Effective July 1, 2000, CACI established the CAkrnational Inc Group Executive Retirement PlHEnmis plan

is available to certain executives under which timay defer compensation. Upon termination or ret@et, account balances are paid to
participants as taxable income. A correspondingstment asset representing an offset to the Def€oenpensation amount is recorded on
the Company’s books.

Other Long-Term Obligations . These consist primarily of amounts due to cetfimimders of QuesTech (no longer affiliated witm@any
as employees) under confidential settlement agreemBayments under the agreements will contintgaitin 2004.

NOTE 10. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Company conducts its operations from leasadeofécilities, all of which are classified as opimg leases and expire primarily
over the next nine years.

The following is a schedule of future minimum lepsgments under non—cancelable leases with a rémgagrm greater than one
year as of June 30, 20C

Operating Leases

Year ended June 30 (dollars in thousands)

2002 $ 13,95¢
2003 13,01:
2004 10,30(
2005 7,38
2006 6,50:
Thereaftel 18,55¢

Total minimum lease payme $ 69,70«
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Operating leases reflect the minimum lease paymezitef a minimal amount of sub-lease income. Ra&pense incurred from
operating leases for the years ended June 30, 2099,and 2001 amounted to $13,383,000, $15,579:0@D$13,750,000, respectively.

NOTE 11. BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS
2001 Acquisitions

On December 2, 2000, the Company completed itsisitign of the federal services business and rdlassets (the “Federal
Services Business”) of N.E.T. Federal, Inc., a &lias/ of Network Equipment Technologies, Inc.,mpbusiness as net.com. The total
consideration paid by the Company was $25.0 miliiocash plus an additional $1.0 million paid witlsix months after closing and an
additional $1.0 million to be held in an escrowdunr one year. Additional payments of up to $11Bilion may also be made based upon
achievement of specific milestones of which $2.8iom has been paid as of June 30, 2001. The paeches financed from the Company’s
line of credit with a group of banks. The acquibeginess provides secure network services offeimggding network engineering and
design, implementation, installation and integmatias well as network maintenance and managemsrga# of this acquisition,
approximately 185 employees transferred to CAClpragimately $19.3 million of the purchase considierahas been allocated to goodwill
based upon the excess of the purchase price avestihmated fair value of net assets acquired.FBueral Services Business contributed
revenue of $27.6 million for the period from DecemnB, 2000 to June 30, 2001.

On October 6, 2000, the Company acquired the ccistemnd selected assets of the special projeasati(“Special Projects
Business”) of Radian International, LLC (“Radiard)subsidiary of URS Corporation, for $1.3 millimncash. The purchase was financed
from the Company line of credit with a group of banks. Approximgat$0.6 million of the purchase price has beencaited to goodwill. Th
Special Projects Business, which provides sentizéise intelligence community, contributed revenfi§0.9 million for the period from
October 6, 2000 to June 30, 2001.

2000 Acquisitions

On February 1, 2000, the Company acquired all ®fcttimmon stock of XEN Corporation (“XEN") for cashthe amount of $4.3
million. XEN specialized in providing systems enggning, engineering design, distance learningpitrgidevelopment, multimedia support,
and data security services to national intelligemrggnizations, the Department of Defense, andltSe Navy. The transaction was funded
through borrowings under the Company'’s existing liri credit. Approximately $2.4 million of the phase consideration has been allocated
to goodwill based upon the excess of the purchese pver the estimated fair value of net assegsiaed. XEN contributed $3.6 million of
revenue for the period from February 1, 2000 teeJ3®, 2000.

On September 23, 1999, the Company purchased skésasf MapData Online International Ltd. and QibiapData Online Ltd.
(collectively, “MapData”) for $0.6 million in castMapData provided demographic software which, winemdled with existing products and
services, enhanced the Company’s capabilities drdgenographic and customer data analysis. The pwgivace has been allocated basel
the fair market value of the assets acquired. Nmlgadll has been recognized in connection with thassaction. Since the acquisition, the
operations acquired from MapData have contributd illion in revenue through June 30, 2000.

1999 Acquisitions

On November 13, 1998, the Company acquired ah@fcommon stock of QuesTech, Inc., a company fgetialized in the
development and application of information techgglcscientific research and
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management support services for the defense aimmhabsecurity communities. The total considerapaid by the Company, including the
assumption of liabilities, was approximately $4éhillion. The transaction was funded through bormyg under the Company’s existing line
of credit. Approximately $31.0 million of the pui$e consideration has been allocated to goodve#dbapon the excess of the purchase
price over the estimated fair value of net assegsised. QuesTech (renamed CACI Technologies, banjributed revenues of $56.1 million
for the period from November 13, 1998 to June 3@91

On August 13, 1998, the Company purchased thesasbiiformation Decision System (“IDS”) for $2.6llon in cash. IDS
provided internet access to demographic site inédion and enhanced the Company’s capabilities dadggnographic and customer data
analysis. Approximately $2.4 million has been adliedl to goodwill based upon the excess of the jseprice over the estimated fair value
of net assets acquired. IDS contributed approxim&.2 million in revenue for the period August, 1998 to June 30, 1999.

Pro Forma Information (unaudited)

The following unaudited pro forma combined conderstatements of operations set forth the cons@dtietsults of operations of
the Company for the years ended June 30, 1999, 20@Q@001 as if the above-mentioned acquisitiodsdtaurred at the beginning of both
the year of acquisition and the year prior to tbguasition. This unaudited pro forma informatioredaot purport to be indicative of the ac
financial position or the results that would aclpalave occurred if the combinations had been fiecefor the years ended June 30:

1999 2000 2001

(dollars in thousands, except per share amount:
Revenue $ 489,32 3 510,69: $ 578,00«
Net income 14,68 38,90( 26,04
Diluted earnings per sha $ 06 $ l16¢ $ 1.1z

NOTE 12. BUSINESS SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Company reports operating results and finarleitd in two segments: domestic operations andiatienal operations. The
domestic operations provide information technolagg communications solutions through all four & @ompany’s major lines of business:
systems integration, managed network services,mentitechnology and engineering services. Its ouste are primarily U.S. federal
agencies, however, it does serve a number of ageoé€iforeign governments and customers in the cential, and state and local sectors.
The international operations offer services to lmmmmercial and government customers through thepaay’s systems integration line of
business. The accounting policies of the operag@uments are the same as those described in tleasyiraf significant accounting policies
in Note 1 to the financial statements. The Comparaluates the performance of its operating segnirasisd on income (loss) before income
taxes. Summarized financial information concerritrggCompany'’s reportable segments is shown indh@afing tables. The “Other” column
includes the elimination of intersegment revenug @rporate related items. Corporate assets, phintansisting of property and equipme
are reported in the “Other” column. The operatiagreentsincome (loss) and corporate related amounts toéaatmount presented as incc
before taxes in the “Consolidated Statements off@joms”. Prior year segment information has besstated in order to provide for
consistent presentation with the current year hedrtformation related to the discontinued operetibas been excluded from this
presentation.

F-20



Table of Contents

CACI INTERNATIONAL INC

NOTES TO FINANCIAL CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT—(Continue d)

Domestic International
Operations Operations Other Total
(dollars in thousands)
Year Ended June 30, 1999
Revenue from external custom $ 383,50¢ $ 4391 $ — $427,42:
Pre-tax income (loss 22,97¢ 3,441 (2,919 23,50!
Total asset 192,36: 28,62 72¢ 221,71
Capital expenditure 5,73( 1,50¢ 76¢ 8,00¢
Depreciation and amortizatic 8,381 1,61¢€ 307 10,30¢
Year Ended June 30, 2000
Revenue from external custom: $ 439,35 $ 4510¢ $ 86 $484,54!
Pre-tax income (loss 28,25¢ 4,87¢ (3,809 29,32¢
Total asset 199,11¢ 30,58 6,291 235,99°
Capital expenditure 6,182 767 1,66t 8,614
Depreciation and amortizatic 8,36( 2,11C 1,07t 11,54¢
Year Ended June 30, 2001
Revenue from external custom: $ 510,99¢ $ 46,70: $ 19c $557,89(
Pre-tax income (loss 33,22: 5,791 (4,979 34,04(
Total asset 241,20( 32,83: 10,69¢ 284,73
Capital expenditure 11,69¢ 79C 1,711 14,197
Depreciation and amortizatic 10,16¢ 1,68¢ 1,82: 13,68(
Six Months Ended December 31, 2000 (Unaudited)
Revenue from external custom: $ 236,86: $ 21,56 $ 19t $258,61¢
Pre-tax income (loss) from continuing operatic 14,157 2,38t (1,807 14,74:
Six Months Ended December 31, 2001 (Unaudited)
Revenue from external custom: $ 288,16¢ $ 19,92¢ § 51 $308,14-
Pre-tax income (loss) from continuing operatic 23,33¢ 2,431 (3,139 22,62¢
The loss in the “other” column primarily represeatsllocated corporate costs.
Major Customers. The Company earned approximately 81%, 81% and 858 kevenue from the U.S. Government for the gearded
June 30, 1999, 2000, and 2001, respectively. Re&/bypwcustomer sector for the three years ended
June 30, 2001 is as follows:
1999 % 2000 % 2001 %
(dollars in thousands)
Department of Defens $ 216,57: 50.7% $ 249,77¢ 515% $ 325,11¢ 58.3%
Federal Civiliar 130,76¢ 30.6% 141,39: 29.2% 149,20! 26.8%
Commercial 57,81( 13.5% 60,18 12.4% 61,02¢ 10.9%
State & loca 22,27: 5.2% 33,19¢ 6.9% 22,53¢ 4.0%
Total $ 427,42. 100.0% % 484,54! 100.0%  $ 557,89( 100.0%
| I | ] | ]
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Geographic Information . Revenue is attributed to geographic areastbasé¢he location of the assets producing the neweihe
international operation amounts consist primarflpi@duct and systems integration sales in theddinitingdom. Financial information
relating to the Company’s operations by geographga is as follows:

1999 2000 2001
(dollars in thousands)
Revenue
Domestic Operation $ 383,50¢ $ 439,44: % 511,18t
International Operatior 43,91 45,10 46,70:
$ 427,42: $ 484,54¢  $ 557,89(
| | |
Identifiable Assets
Domestic Operation $ 193,09: $ 20541 $ 251,30:
International Operatior 28,62 30,587 33,43(
$ 221,71.  $ 235,99° $ 284,73:
I I

NOTE 13. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

On December 15, 1999, the Company completed tleo$dlhe net assets of the COMNET products busifoesk37.0 million in
cash and $3.0 million in escrow all of which haetbeeceived. Net income (loss) from the Companigsahtinued operations has been
segregated from continuing operations and repases separate line item on the consolidated statsméoperations. Prior year reported
results have been restated in order to providedasistent presentation.

The COMNET sale resulted in a net after tax gairtie Company of $21.1 million and $1.5 million the years 2000 and 2001,
respectively. Included in the gain was a net aéerloss from discontinued operations of $118 thadsfor the period from November 3, 1¢
to December 15, 1999. Revenues from discontinuedatipns were $8.3 million and $3.1 million, foethears ended June 30, 1999 and =
respectively.

NOTE 14. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On August 13, 2001, the Company announced thaidtsigned a letter of intent to acquire all of shares of Digital Systems
International Corporation (“DSIC”), a privately kdehformation technology (“IT”) company headquaein Arlington, Virginia. It is
expected that the acquisition, which will be finad¢hrough the Company’s existing credit facilityll be completed within ninety days.

On November 1, 2001, the Company purchased dflebtitstanding capital stock of Digital Systemednational Corporation
(DSIC) for $47.4 million, of which approximately @0 million has been paid. Under the terms of te@ment, the Company will pay an
additional $7.0 million over the next eighteen nfmtThe $40 million payment was financed through@empany’s existing credit facility.
The acquired business implements enterprise res@laoning (ERP) systems, including large-scalarfoial and human resource systems,
and e-procurement applications; develops clientéseand web-enabled applications; operates anigemetworking and information
assurance practice; solves complex business prehiétin a recognized process modeling and simulatiethodology; and provides
acquisition/program management consulting servigesiarily to the Federal Government. As part a$ gcquisition, approximately 550
employees transferred to CACI. Approximately $28i8ion of the purchase consideration has beercatkd to goodwill, based upon the
excess of the purchase price over the $15.1 milsiimated fair value of net assets acquired am&8hl million assigned to Intangible
Assets. The Company is amortizing substantiallpBthese intangible assets over a period of tto¢en years. DSIC contributed revenue of
$9.2 million for the period from November 1, 20@10ecember 31, 2001 (unaudited).
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On November 7, 2001, the Company’s Board of Dinecteclared a two-for-one stock split to be effdétethe form of a common
stock dividend. This dividend was payable on Deaan 2001 to shareholders of record on NovembgP@01. Accordingly, the number of
shares of common stock outstanding, earnings @eeshand the number of shares used in the catnulaitearnings per share all have been
restated to retroactively reflect the split.

In December 2001, the Company executed a formaltplaell the net assets of its domestic MarkeBiggtems Group and entered
into a letter of intent with Environmental SysteResearch Institute, Ing’'subsidiary, ESRI Business Information Solutiars$3.5 million in
cash. On January 6, 2002, the Company completeddhe. This resulted in a net-after-tax losster@ompany of $966 thousand, which will
be recorded in the quarter ended December 31, 20€ided in the loss will be a net-after-tax bénfedm discontinued operations of $284
thousand for the period of October 31, 2001 to dan6, 2002. As a result, in accordance with APBni@m No. 30, Reporting the Results
Operations—Reporting the Effects of Disposal okgr8ent of a Business, and Extraordinary, Unusualiainequently Occurring Events and
Transactions,Yesults of operations for the years ended Jun2@l, 2000 and 1999 have been classified as diso@at and prior years ha
been restated. Revenues from this discontinuedatiperwere $5,920,000, $5,928,000 and $6,027,00théyears ended June 30, 2001, -
and 1999.

The Company entered into a Letter of Intent (LG1)January 14, 2002 to acquire the stock of an erging and information
technology services company, specializing in th&gie integration and management of value-oriergedyre enterprise network systems for
agencies of the Federal Government. The closirigeo&cquisition is contingent upon completion oé diiligence that is satisfactory to the
Company in its sole discretion. The anticipatecchase price is approximately $36.0 million, wittpegximately $34.0 million paid at closi
and $2.0 million paid twelve months after the abgsi(Unaudited)

On February 4, 2002, the Company replaced itsiagistedit facility with a new five-year unsecure@dit agreement, which
permits borrowings of up to $185.0 million with @bdimit of $75.0 million of borrowings each year f@cquisitions. The new agreement
permits similar borrowing options and interest sade those offered by the prior agreement. Theotiapplicable interest rate is at LIBOR
plus a margin of 0.875%. In addition, the Compaayspa fee on the unused portion of the facilitye filargin rate and unused portion fee are
determined quarterly based on leverage, net wardhfized charge coverage ratios. (Unaudited)

NOTE 15. COMMON STOCK DATA (UNAUDITED)

The Company’s stock trades on the Nasdaq Natiorek®t System. The ranges of high and low saleggffiar each quarter during
fiscal years 2000 and 2001 were as follows:

2000 2001
Quarter High Low High Low
1st $ 11.817 % 10.12¢  $ 12.75( % 8.37¢
2nd $ 12.00C $ 9.87t % 12.25(  $ 9.56:
3rd $ 15.12¢  $ 10.37¢F $ 14.06: $ 11.09¢
4th $ 15.06: $ 9.128 % 23.50C % 13.31
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NOTE 15. QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED)

The quarterly financial data is unaudited, buti@ opinion of management, all adjustments nece$sagyfair presentation of the

selected data for these interim periods have hesaded.

Year ended June 30, 2000
Revenue

Income from operation
Income from continuing operatiol

Net Income

Basic Share

Income from continuing operatiol
Loss from discontinued operatio
Gain on dispose

Net Income

Diluted Share:

Income from continuing operatiol
Loss from discontinued operatio
Gain on dispose

Net Income

Weighted average shares used in per share
computatior
Basic
Diluted
Year ended June 30, 2001
Revenue

Income from operation

Income from Continuing Operatiol

Net Income

Basic Share
Income from continuing operatiol
Gain (loss) from discontinued operatic
Gain on dispose

Net Income

Diluted Share:
Income from continuing operatiol
Gain (loss) from discontinued operatic
Gain on dispose

Net Income

First Second Third Fourth
(dollars in thousands, except per share

$ 117,44( $ 119,79( $ 120,67: $ 126,64«
7,76¢ 8,291 7,84¢ 8,70t

4,07t 4,43t 4,46t 4,91¢

$ 3,81 $ 25,35¢ $ 441¢  $ 4,82z
| | | |
$ A8 $ .2C $ A¢ 8 21
(.01 (.02 .0C .0C

— .94 — —

$ A7 $ 1.1z $ A¢ 8 21
I I | I
$ 18 $ A¢ $ A 8 21
(.01 (0.01) .0C .0C

— .92 — —

$ A7 $ 1.1C $ A¢ 8 21
| | | |
21,97¢ 22,61¢ 22,85¢ 23,03:

22,72 23,07 23,38¢ 23,43¢

$ 124,80¢ $ 133,81: $ 146,65 $ 152,61°
7,781 8,54 9,89( 11,14:

4,34¢ 4,64¢ 5,43 6,33¢

$ 4,352 $ 4,76¢€ $ 5561 $ 7,622
I I | I
$ A¢ $ 21 $ 24 $ .28
.0C .01 .0C (.01

— — — .07

$ A¢ $ 22 $ 24 $ .34
I I | I
$ A¢ $ .2C $ 24 $ 27
.0C .01 .0C (.01

— — — .07

$ A¢ $ 21 $ 24 % .33



Weighted average shares used in per share

computatior
Basic 22,70¢ 22,48: 22,60: 22,74(
Diluted 23,04¢ 22,79( 23,01« 23,37:
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PART Il
INFORMATION NOT REQUIRED IN PROSPECTUS
Item 14. Other Expenses of Issuance and Distributio  n.

The following table provides the various expensmgple by CACI in connection with the issuance distribution of the securities
being registered, other than underwriting discoanis commissions. All amounts shown are estimatespe the Securities and Exchange
Commission registration fee and the Nasdaq Natibtzaket listing fee.

Payable by CACI

Securities and Exchange Commission registratiol $ 16,32:
National Association of Securities Dealers, Inkngj fee 18,24:
Nasdaq National Market listing f 22,50(
Printing and engraving expens 200,00(
Transfer agent fee 10,00(
Accounting fees and expens 200,00(
Legal fees and expens 300,00t
Blue Sky fees and expenses (including related Hfeges) 5,00(C
Miscellaneous 27,93t
Total $ 800,00(

Item 15. Indemnification of Directors and Officers.

Section 145 of the Delaware General Corporation hffards a Delaware corporation the power to indiéyrits present and former
directors and officers under certain conditiongicte EIGHTH of CACI’s Certificate of Incorporatioprovides that CACI may, to the full
extent permitted by Section 145 of the Delawareeg@nCorporation Law, indemnify all persons thas ipermitted to indemnify under
Section 145 of the Delaware General Corporation,lasithe same exists or may hereafter be amendetiois9 of ARTICLE V of CACI'’s
By-Laws provides that CACI shall indemnify and hblairmless to the fullest extent permissible unberelaware General Corporation Law
every person who was or is a party or is threaténde made a party to or is involved in any actguit, or proceeding, whether civil,
criminal, administrative, or investigative, by reasf the fact that he or a person of whom heeddlyal representative is or was a director or
officer of CACI or is or was serving at the requeSCACI as a director or officer of another corgidon, against all expense, liability, and |
(including attorneys’ fees, judgments, fines, ahdpproved by CACI’s board of directors, amounasdpor to be paid in settlement)
reasonably incurred or suffered by him in connectidgth that action, suit, or proceeding. Sectionf ARTICLE V of CACI’s By-Laws also
provides that CACI may pay expenses incurred biyexbr or officer in connection with the defendeany civil or criminal action, suit, or
proceeding in advance of the disposition of th@acsuit, or proceeding, upon a commitment bymbehalf of the director or officer to
repay such amounts if it is ultimately determinkat the is not entitled to be indemnified by CACI.

Section 145 of the Delaware General Corporation htswe affords a Delaware corporation the powerbtaio insurance on behalf of
its directors and officers against liabilities in@d by them in those capacities. [CACI has prodwaeirectors’ and officers’ liability and
company reimbursement liability insurance policgttta) insures directors and officers of CACI agtlosses (above a deductible amount)
arising from certain claims made against them lagaa of certain acts done or attempted by sucktdiror officers and (b) insures CACI
against losses (above a deductible amount) arfsdng any such claims, but only if CACI is requiredpermitted to indemnify such directors
or officers for such losses under statutory or camhaw or under provisions of its Certificate o€émporation or its By-Laws.
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The effect of these provisions would be to auttesach indemnification by CACI for liabilities airg out of the Securities Act of
1933.

Item 16. Exhibits.
Exhibit No. Description

1.1  Underwriting Agreement.
4.1  Certificate of Incorporation of CACI Internationalc, as amended to date, is incorporated by referemthe
Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K filed witie Securities and Exchange Commission for thalfigear ended
June 30, 200(
4.2  By-laws of CACI International Inc, as amended tted#s incorporated by reference to the Registsafitinual Report o
Form 1(-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissarthe fiscal year ended June 30, 2(
5.1  Opinion of Foley, Hoag & Eliot LLP.
11.1 Computation of Earnings per sha
23.1  Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP, independent audil
23.2  Consent of Foley, Hoag & Eliot LLP (included in Eit 5.1).
24.1  Power of Attorney (contained on the signature pe

* To be filed by amendme

Item 17. Undertakings.

The undersigned registrant hereby undertakesftrgturposes of determining any liability under Becurities Act, each filing of tl
registrant’s annual report pursuant to Section Y18(d5(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 198dd, where applicable, each filing of an
employee benefit plag’annual report pursuant to Section 15(d) of treuffies Exchange Act of 1934) that is incorporatgdeference in tt
Registration Statement shall be deemed to be a@giatration statement relating to the securitiésred therein, and the offering of such
securities at that time shall be deemed to beritialibona fideoffering thereof.

Insofar as indemnification for liabilities arisingder the Securities Act of 1933 may be permitteditectors, officers and
controlling persons of the registrant pursuanhtforegoing provisions, or otherwise, the regitieas been advised that in the opinion of
Securities and Exchange Commission such indemtidités against public policy as expressed in tlet ad is, therefore, unenforceable. In
the event that a claim for indemnification agamsth liabilities (other than the payment by thasgnt of expenses incurred or paid by a
director, officer or controlling person of the rsigant in the successful defense of any actiomosyroceeding) is asserted by such director,
officer or controlling person in connection withethecurities being registered, the registrant willess in the opinion of its counsel the me
has been settled by controlling precedent, suldtdourt of appropriate jurisdiction the questidrether such indemnification by it is
against public policy as expressed in the Act aitidoe governed by the final adjudication of sushuie.

The undersigned registrant hereby undertakes that:

(1) For purposes of determining any liability unttee Securities Act of 1933, the information ondtfeom the form of prospectus
filed as part of this registration statement inarete upon Rule 430A and contained in a form ofpeetus filed by the registrant pursuant to
Rule 424(b)(1) or (4) or 497(h) under the Secwifiet shall be deemed to be part of this registrastatement as of the time it was declared
effective.

(2) For the purpose of determining any liabilityden the Securities Act of 1933, each post—effedimendment that contains a form
of prospectus shall be deemed to be a new regstratiatement relating to the securities offereddhn, and the offering of such securities at
that time shall be deemed to be the initiaha fideoffering thereof.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the SecuritiesoA&B33, the registrant certifies that it has readbe grounds to believe that it me
all of the requirements for filing on Form S-3 dmak duly caused this registration statement tagmed on its behalf by the undersigned,
thereunto duly authorized, in the city of Arlingtdfirginia, on February 6, 2002.

CACI | NTERNATIONAL | NC

By: /s/ J.P.Londo

J. P. Londor
Chairman and Chief Executive Offic

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL BY THESE PRESENTS that each individual vagosignature appears below hereby constitutesgrardas J. P.
London, Stephen L. Waechter, and Jeffrey P. Elefantl each of them, his true and lawful attorney&ct and agents with full power of
substitution, for him and in his name, place amédfin any and all capacities, to sign any angraH or post-effective amendments to this
registration statement, any subsequent registrateement for the same offering which may be filader Rule 462(b) under the Securities
Act (a "Rule 462(b) registration statement") angl and all pre- or post-effective amendments theitd to file the same, with all exhibits
thereto, and all documents in connection therewitth the Securities and Exchange Commission, grgninto said attorneys-in-fact and
agents, and each of them, full power and authtoigo and perform each and every act and thingiwthiey, or any of them, may deem
necessary or advisable to be done in connectidmnti$ registration statement or any Rule 462(bjsteation statement, as fully to all intents
and purposes as he might or could do in persoebliantifying and confirming all that said attorsep-fact and agents or any of them, or
substitute or substitutes for any or all of thenayrfawfully do or cause to be done by virtue hereof

Pursuant to the requirements of the SecuritiesoAtB33, this registration statement has been difpyethe following persons in the
capacities and on the dates indicated.
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Signature

Title Date

/s/ J.P. London

J.P. Londor

/sl Stephen L. Waechter

Stephen L. Waechtt

Is/  Peter A. Derow

Peter A. Derov

/s/ Richard L. Leatherwood

Richard L. Leatherwoo

/sl Warren R. Phillips

Warren R. Phillips

/sl Charles P. Revoile

Charles P. Revoil

/s/ Glenn Ricart

Glenn Ricar

/sl Vincent L. Salvatori

Vincent L. Salvator

/sl William B. Snyder

William B. Snyder

/s/ Richard P. Sullivan

Richard P. Sullival

/s John M. Toups

John M. Toup:t

Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive Officer =~ February 6, 2002
and Director (Principal Executive Officer)

Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer February 6, 2002
and Treasurer (Principal Financial and Accounting

Officer)

Director February 6, 2002
Director February 6, 2002
Director February 6, 2002
Director February 6, 2002
Director February 6, 2002
Director February 6, 2002
Director February 6, 2002
Director February 6, 2002
Director February 6, 2002
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SCHEDULE Il
CACI INTERNATIONAL INC AND SUBSIDIARIES
VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
FOR YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 1999, 2000 AND 2001
(dollars in thousands)
Other
Balance at Changes Balance at
Beginning of Additions Add End
Description Period at Cost Deductions (Deduct) of Period
1999
Reserves deducted from assets to which they a
Allowances for doubtful accoun $ 3631 $ 78 $ (2409 $ 1,03t % 3,05(
I L] L] | I
2000
Reserves deducted from assets to which they a
Allowances for doubtful accoun $ 3,05 $ 77C $ (1,32) % 3¢ % 2,81
| ] ] ] ]
2001
Reserves deducted from assets to which they a
Allowances for doubtful accoun $ 2817 % 134: $ (149) % 1632 $ 4,301
| ] ] ] ]
Table of Contents
EXHIBIT 11

CACI INTERNATIONAL INC AND SUBSIDIARIES
COMPUTATION OF EARNINGS PER SHARE
(amounts in thousands, except per share data)

Year ended June 30,

1999 2000 2001

Net Income $14,17C $38,41. $22,30:
| | |
Average shares outstanding during the pe 21,79: 22,62( 22,63¢
Dilutive effect of stock options after applicatiohtreasury stock methc 64¢ 534 422
Average number of shares and equivalent sharetaadtag during the peric 22,44( 23,15¢ 23,05¢
| | |
Basic earnings per she $ 658 $ 17 $  .9¢
| | |
Diluted earnings per sha $ 63 $ 166 $ .97
| | |
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Exhibit 23.1

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' CONSENT
We consent to the inclusion in this Registratioat&nent of CACI International Inc on Form S-3 of cgport dated August 14, 2001, except
for paragraphs 3 and 4 of Note 14, as to whictddtes are November 7, 2001 and January 6, 20(i2atbgely, appearing in the Prospec



and to the references to us under the headingectgel Consolidated Financial Data" and "Expertsh@Prospectus, which is part of this
Registration Statement.

We also consent to the incorporation by referendhis Registration Statement of CACI Internatiomal on Form S-3 of our report dated
August 14, 2001, except for paragraphs 2 and 3obé N3, as to which the dates are November 7, a8@81)anuary 6, 2002, respectively,
appearing in the Current Report on Form 8-K of CA@érnational Inc dated February 7, 2002.

Deloitte & Touche LLP

McLean, Virginia

February 7, 2002
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